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Republic of Lebanon [ ,:u.“]
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1- The sentence “present document”,
whrever mentioned hereto, means the
document of Commitment by the Right
Holders to Drill an Exploration Well during
the First Exploration Period.

2- Pursuant to the provisions of article 7.2 of
this EPA signed between the Right Holders
and the Lebanese State represented by the
Minister of Energy and Water and pertaining
to Block no...of the Lebanese Offshore, The
Right Holders commit, by the present
document submitted and signed by them on
the date of.....to drill one Exploration Well in
the Block subject to this EPA (Block no...)
during the remaining period of the First
Exploration Period in Block no...specified by
article 7.1 of the EPA.

Starting the date of signature of the present
document by the Right Holders, the
commitment to drill an Exploration Well
during the remaining period of the First
Exploration Period shall be deemed as the
Minimum Work Commitment that shall be
fulfilled and the EPA provisions related to
the completion of the Minimum Work
Commitment shall apply in this regard,
particularly the provisions of articles 7, 8
and 9 of the EPA related to Block....

3- The Right Holders, hereby undersigned,
present to the Minister of Energy and Water
the Indicative Amount of
(United States Dollars) related to the
completion of drilling of the Exploration
Well during the remaining period of the First
Exploration Period.

The Minister of Energy and Water in
collaboration  with  the  Petroleum
Administration may discuss with the Right
Holders to determine the final amount
related to the completion of drilling of the
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Exploration Well during the remaining
period of the first Exploration Period within
10 (ten) business days from the registration
of the present document at the bureau of
the Ministry of Energy and Water provided
to transfer it to the register of the Petroleum
Administration.

The Minister of Energy and Water approves
the final indicative amount pertaining to the
completion of drilling of an Exploration Well
during the remaining period of the First
Exploration Period and the Minister signs
with the Right Holders the final version of
the present document upon the approval by
the Minister of Energy and Water, based on
the opinion of the Petroleum
Administration, of the final amount related
to the completion of drilling of the
Exploration Well during the remaining
period of the First Exploration Period, as
determined in paragraph 4 of this
document.

4- The Right Holders have allocated, after
the approval of the Minister of Energy and
Water granted by his decision issued on the
date of ....,.an Amount of ....USD ( United
States Dollars) to complete the drilling of the
Exploration Well during the remaining
period of the First Exploration Period in
Block no...

In the event that any part of the Minimum
Work Commitment for the first Exploration
Period described in the present document
has not been performed by the end of the
first Exploration Period, the Right Holders
shall pay to the State the above mentioned
amount, less the amount of Recoverable
Costs incurred during the first Exploration
Period in fulfilment of the Minimum Work
Commitment.

5- Right Holders commit, within 15 (Fifteen)
business days from the date of signature of
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the final version of the present document, to
submit to the Minister of Energy and Water
the Work Commitment Guarantee to drill an
Exploration Well during the remaining
period of the First Exploration Period as per
Annex F of the EPA related to Block no...

6- Upon signature and submission of the
present document to the Minister of Energy
and Water, Right Holders have submitted to
the Minister of Energy and Water and to the
Petroleum Administration a document
showing the expected timeline to drill the
Exploration Well during the First Exploration
Period including the schedule of drilling the
Well and information about the nature of
this Well and the targeted geological
structures. The provisions of Decree no.
10289/2013 (PAR) related to drilling an
Exploration Well remain applicable.

7- In the event that the Right Holders fail to
complete the Minimum Work Commitment
related to drilling an Exploration Well during
the remaining period of the First Exploration
Period for a reason other than the Event of
Force Majeure, the Exploration Period shall
terminate at the end of the First Exploration
Period.

8- The present document constitutes an
integral part of the EPA signed between the
Right Holders and the Lebanese State
represented by the Minister of Energy and
Water and pertaining to Block no....in the
Lebanese Offshore, and this document is
automatically deemed to be covered by
article 14 (Stamp Duty Fee) of the Law no.
§7/2017 concerning the provisions of this
article related to the Stamp Duty Fee due on
each copy of the Exploration and Production
Agreements and the Stamp Duty Fee due on
the present document is deemed to be paid
upon the payment of the fee due on the
EPA’s copy by the Right Holders.
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9- The provisions of the EPA and Its Annexes
signed between the Right Holders and the
Lebanese State represented by the Minister
of Energy and Water and pertaining to Block
no...in the Lebanese Offshore remain
applicable.

Date of submission of the present document
by the Right Holders and their signatures

The final version of the present document
has been signed after the determination of
the amount stipulated in paragraph 3 on the
date of.....
Signature

Right Holders

Lebanese State represented by the Minister
of Energy and Water
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Exploration Well during the 400N wilisiuy)

Second Exploration Period

The Ministry of Energy and Water of the
Republic of Lebanon

[Address]

[Date]
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1- The sentence “present document”, obal 3 5 Layl " Hall atiudl” §jle a5 -)

whrever mentioned hereto, means the ;.. Dl GiliSul iy iay pIAIYY Aiise
document of Commitment by the Right . A
Holders to Drill an Exploration Well during cgiall Gilaal U3 e A0 GlsauY|

the Second Exploration Period.

2- Pursuant to the provisions of article 7.5 of ?L_"s“y‘ qih;\ “" e .aLJ{ f‘lsab s\‘_‘ &t
this EPA signed between the Right Holders Gl “"L““ o L “_" 4‘_‘-’" ‘ E'hm-’
and the Lebanese State represented by the salall olgall g 20 552 Aliaa Al 51
Minister of Energy and Water and pertaining p 3k LU 4y el syall 3] dai )l
to Block no...of the Lebanese Offshore, The aisall (Hlall iiud) i gay siall ol
Right Holders commit, by the present agapil as P> < PPN TS T PAT IV )
document signed and submitted by themon (Al CHLASILN 3ad) dailall CLASILYY ddai
the date of...., and in parallel with the 2.5 ) o SV Lo saaly CSEM )y hay
submission of an Exploration Plan pertaining 1.3 ) o3 ZlYy ¢ ALESTL s g 3o 30
to the Second Exploration Period, to drill at soaaall A CaLESELY) saa A é\!&,( o)

least one Exploration Well in the Block . M.
GLASELYT @S e VY dall
subject to this EPA (Block no...) during the Y O Y W t ;r
td 5

Second Exploration Period specified as per
article 7.1 0f the EPA. =~ =07

Starting the date of signature of the present oiall lasal Jd 05e q'“"'“ usall &b L)
document by the Right Holders, the 33 (D& CHLISIL) iy Jisy ol NI iy
commitment to drill an Exploration Well Jaall i gal A3V 2ol (e 4l GaLESELY)
during the Second Exploration Period shall 4.a guady Coadady 45N LESELYY Bad) saitall
be deemed as the Minimum Work Zaliall UiV, CALESILYY dilis) P‘S;‘ v

i o T Mol el el otin s
: ; : A e Vg Ay Y Ol gl
related to the completion of the Minimum sty sV alsd
Work Commitment shall apply in this regard,

particularly the provisions of articles 7, 8

and 9 of the EPA.

3-The Right Holders have determined Y1 aall Cae (pay (dsiadl lanal 320 ¥
among the Minimum Work Commitment I8l ALY ol sailall Jaall Silip gal

pertaining to the Second Exploration Period - b 9 LSl il dasily plaall
to conduct the following Exploration

Activities and studies: [eoeecerinnnnsunns ]
 R— |

(To be also specified in the Exploration Plan 3ailall LS5 idad 4 Lyl Wapas &)
related to the Second Exploration Period). (P LI Bl

e sl L\ disb gl
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commitment to conduct the
abovementioned Exploration Activities and
studies is deemed to be the Minimum Work
Commitment pertaining to the Second
Exploration Period and all EPA provisions
related to the completion of the Minimum
Work Commitment shall apply in this regard,
particularly the provisions of articles 7, 8 and
9 of the EPA.

4- The Right Holders, hereby undersigned,
present to the Minister of Energy and Water
the Indicative Amount of ...USD (United
States Dollars) related to the completion of
drilling of the Exploration Well during the
Second Exploration Period and to conduct
Exploration Activities and studies (in case
they are determined in the present
document and in the Exploration Plan
related to the Second Exploration Period).

The Minister of Energy and Water in
colaboration  with  the  Petroleum
Administration may discuss with the Right
Holders to determine the final amount
related to the completion of drilling of the
Exploration Well and the completion of
Exploration Activities and studies (in case
they are determined in the present
document and in the Exploration Plan
related to the Second Exploration Period)
during the Second Exploration Period within
10 (ten) business days from the registration
of the present document at the bureau of
the Ministry of Energy and Water provided
to transfer it to the register of the Petroleum
Administration.

The Minister of Energy and Water approves
the final indicative amount related to the
completion of drilling of the Exploration
Well during the Second Exploration Period
and the completion of Exploration Activities
and studies (in case they are determined in
the present document and in the
Exploration Plan related to the Second
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Exploration Period), such approval is
granted by a decision issued by the Minister
and the Minister signs with the Right
Holders the final version of the present
document, upon approval of the Minister of
Energy and Water based on the opinion of
the Petroleum Administration of the final
amount related to the completion of drilling
of the Exploration Well during the Second
Exploration Period and the completion of
Exploration Activities and studies (in case
they are determined in the present
document and in the Exploration Plan
related to the Second Exploration Period) as
determined in paragraph 5 of the present
document.

5- The Right Holders have allocated, after
the approval of the Minister of Energy and
Water granted by his decision issued on the
date of ...,an Amount of ...USD (United
States Dollars) to complete the drilling of the
Exploration Well and to conduct Exploration
Activities and studies during the Second
Exploration Period in Block no...

In the event that any part of the Minimum
Work Commitment for the Second
Exploration Period described in this
document has not been performed, the
Right Holders shall pay to the State the
abovementioned amount, less the amount
of Recoverable Costs incurred during the
Second Exploration Period in fulfilment of
the Minimum Work Commitment.

6- Right Holders commit, within 15 (fifteen)
business days from the date of signature of
the final version of the present document, to
submit to the Minister of Energy and Water
the Work Commitment Guarantee to
complete the drilling of the Exploration Well
during the Second Exploration Period and to
conduct Exploration Activities and studies
(in case they are determined in the present
document and in the Exploration Plan
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related to the Second Exploration Period) sxilall ZLisY) y CALASTLY) A8l e " " 3alall
as per Annex F of the EPA related to Block e 4ad
no...

7- Upon signature and submission of the 303 @Y el il f"—‘ﬁJ t-é-’: PR

resent document to the Minister of Ener g .
: - B'SY) U'“ t:‘));"“ “—‘1&4‘ a o\,_u.“ 9 aahll

and Water, Right Holders shall submit to the Ry N .
Minister of Energy and Water and to the G} glkd 3,3 & iy olually ddLLY)

Petroleum Administration a document % visd dad giall Lt 3 Saall 4y () siad) Taitina
showing the expected timeline to drill the (esail 40l GLASILY 3aa DA Cal3Saul
Exploration Well during the Second sl iajll Jsaall juaall ¥ JUl Josu e
Exploration Period including the schedule of lgiac 5 il oda dapl (e Ciloglaay il
drilling the Well and information about the aax iy Adgiudl a daall il
nature of this Well and the targeted LJASSH) YOVY/NeYAR i) oyl plSal
geological structures. The provisions of AR (3-313 il MSIL; Gt ac) il

Decree no. 10289/2013 (PAR) related to I o =
3 { daa LSl
drilling an Exploration Well remain Gl Ly sna i D han

applicable.

8- The present document constitutes an 3 3 o Dads V12 e M) aiiwall JS8 <A

. ¢ PA si
integral part of the EPA signed between the iy ! e Lo o Ayl Y5 Gyl

Right Holders and the Lebanese State . - .
represented by the Minister of Energy and obyall g AN ) 3 59 Alhaa Alidll A ol y (3 il

Water and pertaining to Block no....in the Al 4 pall olall LI pd) Aad il ailall
Lebanese Offshore, and this document is asdall au ) V€ 5alall Gy ¥ gadia i€a by,
automatically deemed to be covered by dgal &llhy Y. VV/OV o8, o glill (o (Il
article 14 (Stamp Duty Fee) of the Law no. J<I & shaiall au,lly dilatall salall o3a plSal
57/2017 concerning the provisions of this Fany g ‘Et:,_m 5 ALASILY) Bl e das
article related to the Stamp Duty Fee due on lacal 8l 3 aes P ol il oy

each copy of the Exploration and Production BN Aa ol | 2 aal
Agreements and the Stamp Duty Fee due on T ol e giall ps Ml (3 gial

the present document is deemed to be paid
upon the payment of the fee due on the
EPA’s copy by the Right Holders.

9- The provisions of the EPA and its Annexes E\_—,_-,w 5 calASTLNY el ‘,\5;1 fax (A5 -4
signed between the Right Holders and the ~ _ \ . .. Leia™
Lebanese State represented by the Minister Goall ‘ ca Lo « Aad sl =

of Energy and Water and pertaining to Block f“:"‘"“ °"=‘fn3 4.5\.1:.!\ 2 d““ 4"“"‘"1.]" 4;!-"“-’
no..in the Lebanese Offshore remain 4 sime Lilialll 4y ol olyall (8, a5 4l )l
applicable. LGkl

Date of submission of the present document (3 siall Cilaual (i 30 hall astiuall P8 ey 51
by the Right Holders and their signatures perdl g3 g
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The final version of the present document
has been signed after the determination of
the amount stipulated in paragraph 4 on the
date of.....

Signature

Right Holders

Lebanese State represented by the Minister
of Energy and Water
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Annexes

Annex A Description of the EPA Block
Annex B Map of the EPA Block

Annex C Heads of Joint Operating
Agreement

Annex D Accounting and Financial
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AnnexG Form of Commitment to drill
an Exploration Well During the First

Exploration Period.

AnnexH Form of Commitment to drill
an Exploration Well During the Second

Exploration Period.
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Art 1 EPA Documents

1. This Exploration and Production
Agreement, hereinafter referred to as

AT Clatiaee ) Salall
i Y, Glasiyl g Gl )
Os CRIANIG L L B gl

the “EPA”, consists of the mainbody of ~ ._« y s ALY 03] 30 () sanadll

this EPA and the following Annexes,

which form an integral part hereof:

Annex A Description of the EPA
Block

Annex B Map of the EPA Block

Annex C Heads of Joint
Operating Agreement

Annex D Accounting and
Financial Procedure

Annex E Form of Parent
Company Guarantee

Annex F Form of Work

Commitment Guarantee

Annex G

First Exploration Period.

Annex H

Second Exploration Period.

Form of Commitment to
drill an Exploration Well During the

Form of Commitment to
drill an Exploration Well During the
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2. The purpose and function of the
main body of this EPA is principally to
regulate the legal and contractual
relationship between the State and
the Right Holders.
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3. This EPA, and all operations or
transactions related to Petroleum
Activities pursuant to this EPA, shall be
governed by applicable Lebanese law.
in the event of conflict between the
provisions of this EPA and applicable
Lebanese law, applicable Lebanese law
shall prevail.

4. In the event of conflict between the
provisions of the main body of the EPA
and its Annexes, the main body of the
EPA shall prevail.
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“Minimum Work Commitment” means
the activities or tasks which the Right
Holders are required to perform during
each of the first two Exploration Periods,
as set forth in Articles 7 and 8 and Annex
G and Annex H of this EPA.
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Consultation: The discussions conducted
by the Minister of Energy and Water in
collaboration with the Petroleum
Administration or with the Right Holders
or the discussions conducted by the
Petroleum Administration with the Right
Holders to inquire about the content of
Exploration Plans submitted by the Right
Holders and to strive to improve such
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plans in accordance with the interest of
the Lebanese State. Consultation also
means the discussions conducted by the
Minister in collaboration with the
Petroleum Administration to determine
the final Indicative Amount related to
the completion of drilling of the
Exploration Well during the First
Exploration Period and the Exploration
Well during the Second Exploration
Period and the completion of
Exploration’s activities and studies
during such period (in case they are
determined in the Exploration Plan
pertaining to the Second Exploration
Period) as specified in Annexes G and H
of the Exploration and Production
Agreement.

Art 7. Exploration Phase and
Exploration Period

1. The Exploration Phase shall have a
maximum duration of Six (6) years.
The Exploration Phase shall
commence on the date on which a
decision is made (or deemed to be
made) with respect to the approval
of the Exploration Plan for the initial
Exploration Period, pursuant to
Article 7.7 of this EPA.

2. The Exploration Phase shall be
divided into two Exploration Periods as
follows:
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The first Exploration Period consists of
three (3) years. The second Exploration
period consists of two (2) years which
may be extended with the approval of
the Minister as provided in this Article
7.2.
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The first Exploration Period shall
commence on the date of
commencement of the Exploration
Phase determined pursuant to Article
7.1 of this EPA. During the First
Exploration Period and within a
deadline that shall not exceed twelve
(12) months from the date of approval
of the Exploration Plan by the Minister,
Right Holders shall take a decision to
commit to drill or not to drill an
Exploration Well in the awarded Block
within the abovementioned twelve
months’ deadline and shall notify their
decision to the Minister and the
Petroleum Administration before the
expiry of such deadline. Provisions
related to such deadline do not apply in
case drilling an Exploration Well during
the First Exploration Period is included
in the Minimum Work Commitment
suggested under the Technical
Proposal submitted by the Right
Holders or the Initial Right Holders,
upon submission of the Licensing
Round Application.

In the event that the Minister of Energy
and Water and the Petroleum
Administration are not notified about
any decision by the Rights Holders
regarding the drilling of the Exploration
Well within the period specified in this
Article, this shall be deemed as a
decision by the Rights Holders not to
commit to drill the well.

In the event that the Right Holders
commit to drill an Exploration Well
during the First Exploration Period as
mentioned above, and they notify the
Minister and the Petroleum
Administration of their decision within
the legal deadline specified in this
article, Right Holders shall sign with the
Minister the document of
“Commitment to drill an Exploration
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Well during the First Exploration
Period” in the form provided in Annex
G of tand Right his EPA and Right
Holders shall submit the Work
Commitment Guarantee relted to their
commitment to drill the Well during
the First Exploration Period within the
deadline specified in Annex G of this
EPA .

The Exploration Phase shall terminate
in the event that the Right Holders did
not commit to drill an Exploration Well
within twelve (12) months from the
approval of the Exploration Plan by the
Minister or in the event that the Right
Holders did not sign the document of
“Commitment to drill an Exploration
Well during the First Exploration
Period” as per the Form provided in
Annex G of this EPA. The decision of
the Right Holders of not committing to
drill the Well or not signing the
document of “Commitment to drill an
Exploration Well during the First
Exploration Period” is deemed to be an
Early Termination of the Exploration
and Production Agreement as per the
provisions of this EPA and the
provisions stipulated in article 36.1 (a)
of this EPA shall apply in this case.

The second Exploration Period shall
commence on the expiration date of
the first Exploration Period, except that
there shall be no second Exploration
Period if the Right Holders fail to

complete the Minimum Work
Commitment  during the first
Exploration Period, including the

commitment to drill the Exploration
Well and the completion of drilling of
this Well during the First Exploration
Period, other than by reason of an
Event of Force Majeure (and the
Exploration Phase shall terminate at
the end of the first Exploration Period).
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If at the end of the two-year term of
the second Exploration Period the
Right Holders have completed the
Minimum Work Commitment for such
second Exploration Period (unless
prevented from doing so by an Event of
Force Majeure), and are pursuing
Appraisal Activities pursuant to an
approved Appraisal Plan, or have
submitted an Appraisal Plan for
approval in a timely manner but have
not yet received a response, the
Minister (based on the
recommendation of the Petroleum
Administration) may approve an
extension of the second Exploration
Period of one (1) year, upon request by
the Right Holders submitted at least
sixty (60) days prior to the end of the
second Exploration Period. Exploration
Periods may be extended by reason of
an Event of Force Majeure pursuant to
Article 7.9 of this EPA. The Exploration
Phase shall terminate at the end of the
second Exploration Period (as it may be
extended), unless it is extended
pursuant to Article 7.10 of this EPA.

3. During the Exploration Phase, the

Right Holders may conduct
Reconnaissance, Exploration and
Appraisal  Activities pursuant to

approved Exploration Plans. Each
Exploration Plan shall contain at a
minimum the information required by
Article 31 of the decree no 10289/2013
(PAR) (except that information
regarding the technical qualifications
of the Right Holders need not be
submitted if it would be duplicative of
the information already provided in
connection with the award of this EPA).
Exploration Plans may contain
applications for drilling permits
contemplated by the decree no
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10289/2013 (PAR), in which case the
approval by the Minister of the
Exploration Plan shall also constitute
the approval of the relevant drilling
permit or permits.

4. The initial Exploration Plan shall be
submitted and notified to the Minister
with a copy to the Petroleum
Administration within sixty (60) days of
the Effective Date. Such Exploration
Plan shall, at a minimum, provide for
the completion of the Minimum Work
Commitment for the first Exploration
Period.

S. No later than sixty (60) days prior to
the expiration of the first Exploration
Period, and notwithstanding the
provisions related to the Commitment
to drill an Exploration Well during the
First Exploration Period stipulated in
article 7.2 of this EPA, the Right Holders
may submit an Exploration Plan for the
second Exploration Period to the
Minister with a copy to the Petroleum
Administration. The Exploration Plan
related to the Second Exploration
Period shall include the commitment of
the Right Holders to drill at least one
Exploration Well during the Second
Exploration Period and this Well is
deemed to be among the Minimum
Work Commitment Obligations related
to the Second Exploration Period and
the Right Holders shall sign with the
Minister the document of
“Commitment to drill an Exploration
Well during the Second Exploration
Period” as per the Form provided in
Annex H of this EPA and the Right
Holders shall submit to the Minister the
Work Commitment Guarantee related
to the drilling of the Well that they
commited to drill during the Second
Exploration Period. No  such
Exploration Plan may be submitted
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unless (i) the Right Holders confirm in
writing that they will complete the
Minimum Work Commitment prior to
the end of the current Exploration
Period (unless they are prevented from
doing so by reason of an Event of Force
Majeure), (ii) the Right Holders sign
the Form related to the Commitment
to drill an Exploration Well during the
Second Exploration Period as per the
Form provided in Annex H of this EPA
(i) such Exploration Plan, at a
minimum, provides for the completion
of the Minimum Work Commitment (if
any) for the Exploration Period to
which it applies, and (iii) such
Exploration Plan provides for the
relinquishment of a portion of the
remaining area in the Block as provided
in Article 7.6 and delineates the portion
of the Block to be relinquished. Upon
approval by the Minister of such
Exploration Plan, the rights of the Right
Holders to conduct Reconnaissance,
Exploration and Appraisal Activities
shall be maintained in the relevant
Exploration Period, and the Block shall
be reduced by the area that is
relinquished as of the first day of such
Exploration Period.

6. The Right Holders shall relinquish
twenty-five per cent (25%) of the Block
at the start of the second Exploration
Period. For purposes of the foregoing,
any Appraisal Area and any
Development and Production Area
shall not be subject to relinquishment.
The percentage set forth above shall be
applied to the portion of the Block that
is outside any Appraisal Area and any
Development and Production Area.
The portion of the Block to be
relinquished shall be contiguous and
delimited by meridians and parallels
expressed in minutes of a degree. The
same shall apply to the portion of the
Block that is retained by the Right
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Holders. The size and shape of the
Block to be retained shall be subject to
approval by the Minister, based on the
opinion of the Petroleum
Administration.

At the end of the second Exploration
Period and upon the extension request
of the Exploration Phase, the Right
Holders shall relinquish an additional
25% of the initial block size in order to
fulfill the obligation stipulated in the
article 24 of the Law No 132/2010 (OPR
Law).

7. The Petroleum Administration shall
review each Exploration Plan and
provide an opinion to the Minister as
to whether to approve or reject such
Exploration Plan within sixty (60) days
from the date of notification of the
Petroleum Administration of such
Exploration Plan and if the Petroleum
Administration fails to provide its
opinion, the Exploration Plan shall be
deemed approved. If the Minister does
not take any explicit decision
concerning the request of approval of
the Exploration Plan within sixty (60)
days from the date of notification of
the Minister of such Exploration Plan,
the Exploration Plan shall be deemed
approved. The Minister issues a
decision as to whether to approve or
reject such Exploration Plan but the
Exploration Plan shall not be explicitly
or implicitly approved unless (i) the
relevant conditions set forth in Articles
7.4 or 7.5 of this EPA relating to the
Minimum Work Commitment are not
met, (i) the Exploration Plan related to
the Second Exploration Period does
not include a Commitment to drill at
least one Exploration Well as per
article 7.5 of this EPA (iii) the Right
Holders did not sign the Form related
to the Commitment to drill an
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Exploration Well during the Second
Exploration Period as per the Form
provided in Annex H of this EPA (iv) any
required Work Commitment
Guarantee has not been provided (v)
the Exploration Plan does not provide
for the required relinquishment
pursuant to Article 7.6 of this EPA, {vi)
the activities contemplated in the
Exploration Plan are not in accordance
with Best International Petroleum
Industry Standards, (vii) such activities
would, in the reasonable opinion of
the Petroleum Administration, present
an unacceptable risk to health, safety
or the environment, or (viii) such
activities would violate applicable
Lebanese law. Any decision to reject
an Exploration Plan shall be
accompanied by a written explanation
of the reasons for such rejection. In the
event that any Exploration Plan is not
approved, the Right Holders may
submit an amended Exploration Plan
addressing the issues giving rise to its
rejection, and such Exploration Plan
shall be evaluated on the basis of the
same standards. Unless the Minister
allows otherwise, the Right Holders
may only submit one such amended
Exploration Plan in respect of each
Exploration Period. Prior to the
rejection of any such amended
Exploration Plan by the Minister, the
Petroleum Administration shall notify
the Right Holders of the contemplated
rejection, and upon the request of the
Right Holders shall engage in good
faith discussions with the Right
Holders for at least thirty (30) days
with regard to possible further
amendments to the Exploration Plan.
Pending the outcome of such
discussions, the Exploration Plan shall
not be deemed approved or rejected.
If such discussions result in agreed
further amendments, the Right
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Holders shall have the right to submit
an Exploration Plan with such
amendments in replacement of the
prior amended Exploration Plan
(notwithstanding the restriction that
would otherwise limit the Right
Holders to one amended Exploration
Plan}, notwithstanding the provisions
related to the Commitment to drill at
least one Exploration Well during the
Second Exploration Period.

For the avoidance of doubt, the non
commitment of the Right Holders to
drill an Exploration Well during the
Second Exploration Period
automatically leads to the Early
Termination of the Exploration and
Production Agreement as per the
provisions of this EPA and the
provisions stipulated in article 36.1 (a)
of this EPA shall apply.

8. In the event that, at the end of the
first Exploration Period, the Right
Holders do not submit an Exploration
Plan for the second Exploration Period
including at least, the commitment to
drill an Exploration Well during the
Second Exploration Period, or any such
Exploration Plan (and any amended
plan) is finally rejected, then the Right
Holders may not conduct any further
Petroleum Activities, except for (i)
Appraisal Activities conducted within
an Appraisal Area in accordance with
an Appraisal Plan, and (ii) Petroleum
Activities  conducted within a
Development and Production Area in
accordance with a Development and
Production Plan. In such event, the
Right Holders shall be deemed to have
relinquished the entire Block, except
for any Appraisal Area or Development
and Production Area that has been
approved, and any proposed Appraisal
Area or proposed Development and
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Production Area that is the subject of
an Appraisal Plan or Development and
Production Plan that is under review
for possible approval.

9. In the event that Reconnaissance,
Exploration or Appraisal Activities
contemplated in an Exploration Plan
are substantially interrupted due to an
Event of Force Majeure, the relevant
Exploration Period (and the period for
completion of the relevant Minimum
Work Commitment) shall be extended
by the number of days of the
interruption  notwithstanding  the
provisions related to the Commitment
to drill an Exploration Well during the
First Exploration Period stipulated in
article 7.2 of this EPA and the
provisions related to the Commitment
to drill an Exploration Well during the
Second Exploration Period stipulated in
article 7.5 of this EPA . However, no
Exploration Period may be extended
beyond the end of the Exploration
Phase, except with the prior approval
of the Council of Ministers in
accordance with Article 21-1 of the Law
no 132/2010 (OPR Law). In such event,
the Exploration Phase may not be
extended beyond the latest date
permitted by the Law no 132/2010
(OPR Law).

10. At the end of the Exploration Phase,
the Right Holders may apply to the
Minister, with a copy to the Petroleum
Administration, for an extension of the
Exploration Phase pursuant to Article
21 of the Law no 132/2010 (OPR Law).
Such an application must be submitted
within the time period contemplated in
Article 33 of the Decree no 10289/2013
(PAR). The application shall provide
the following information:
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a) the reasons the Right
Holders are seeking an
extension (which must be
valid operational reasons or
an Event of Force Majeure,
as provided in Article 33 of
the Decree no 10289/2013
(PARY));
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b) the proposed duration of
the extension,

¢ a description of the portion @V A=l (a6l Caay ta
of the Block to be okl e ke 33 plana
relinquished pursuant to ') */VYY A sl (e Y
Article 24 of the Law no & Assadl il o 4l8)
132/2010 (OPR Lawy), and (Al olall

d) a proposed Exploration Plan (230 4a jiia aliSiul 4l €

covering the period of the
extension (or a statement to
the effect that the purpose
of the extension is to pursue
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activities under  an (leale A3 5ol
approved Appraisal Plan, or
to prepare a Development
and Production Plan for

approval).

The Right Holders may propose to
provide a guarantee relating to the
work contemplated in such Exploration
Plan (including pursuant to the Work
Commitment Guarantee provided in
connection  with  the  Second
Exploration Period, if appropriate), and
the Minister shall consider any such
guarantee in deciding whether to
submit the extension request to the
Council of Ministers for approval
pursuant to Article 21-1 of the Law no
132/2010 (OPR Law). Any such
extension shall be effective only upon
the approval by the Council of
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Ministers based on the proposal of the
Minister.

11. For the avoidance of doubt, the axefsae 38 ST ol «dall Lo 1)
duration of the Exploration Period(s) 4l gall gl aity CaliSiwY) Ala ya 5 CilESTLY)
and the Exploration Phase shall notbe  Say zliil 5 yoki Abaa ol aygii ddad o
affected by the submission or approval  CilaSiuY! Aadil Miti Aajlia (3 siall Claual
of an Appraisal Plan or a Development  4ad jli ¢} jal AVENPL RPN ) & sl
and Production Plan. The Right Holders  (L3Siuy! Aa jo e dgagiall 5 yull @l
may continue to conduct Exploration, - dagali s yisll G\:.;,}n_, o glaill dlaia (pauia g
Reconnaissance and Appraisal  Jiaa 13) .E\:.:,‘g'. s ey LAWY Ala je
Activities in all parts of the Block for the gldl 3 gaall laal e i lal Gl
remaining duration of the Exploration By oda @ lede Ua gaiall Silel oY)

Phase, and inside of a Development i) ALY 1 by
and Production Area for the remaining

duration of the Exploration Phase and
the Production Phase. If an additional
Discovery is made, the Right Holders
shall follow  the procedures
contemplated by this EPA in respect of
such additional Discovery.
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a) Drill an Exploration Well/wells...:(in
the event that Right Holders or Initial
Right Holders commit to drill an
Exploration Well/wells during the First
Exploration Period upon submission of
the Technical Proposal as per the
provisions of the Tender Protocol).

Each Exploration Well shall be drilled
according to the Technical Proposal
submitted by the Right Holders or the
Initial Right Holders in the event that
Right Holders or Initial Right Holders
commit to drill an Exploration Well
during the First Exploration Period
upon submission of the Technical
Proposal or pursuant to what will be
specified later in the Commitment of
Right Holders to drill an Exploration
Well during the First Exploration Period
as per article 7.2 of this EPA and
according to the document related to
the “Commitment to drill an
Exploration Well during the First
Exploration Period” as per the Form
provided in Annex G of this EPA.

b) Exploration Activities and studies
(determined upon submission of the
Techical Proposal as per the provisions
of the Tender Protocol).

In case any part of the Minimum Work
Commitment for the first Exploration
Period described in this Article has not
been performed by the end of the first
Exploration Period, the Right Holders
shall pay to the State an amount of
| T (~...)] United States dollars,
less the amount of Recoverable Costs
incurred during the first Exploration
Period in fulfilment of the Minimum
Work Commitment and shall be added
to the aforementioned amount the
amount specified in the document
related to the Commitment to drill an
Exploration Well during the First
Exploration Period as per the Form
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provided in Annex G of this EPA in the
event that the Right Holders commit to
drilt an Exploration Well during the First
Exploration Period.

3. During the second Exploration Period
(excluding any extension approved by
the Minister pursuant to Article 7.2),
the Right Holders shall conduct the
Minimum Work Commitment specified
by the Exploration Plan related to the
Second Exploration Period and
according to what will be determined
in the document related to the
Commitment of the Right Holders to
drill an Exploration Well during the
Second Exploration Period as per article
7.5 of this EPA and in accordance with
the document related to the
“Commitment to drill an Exploration
Well during the Second Exploration
Period” as per the Form provided in
Annex H of this EPA. The Minimum
Work Commitment may include
Exploration Activities and studies
conducted by the Right Holders during
the Second Exploration Period .

In case of non-performance of any part
of the Minimum Work Commitment for
the second Exploration Period
described in this Article and in the
document related to the Commitment
to drill an Exploration Well during the
Second Exploration Period and among
Exploration Activities and studies
(specified in the Exploration Plan
related to the Second Exploration
Period) as per the Form provided In
Annex H of this EPA, by the end of the
second Exploration Perlod, the Right
Holders shall pay to the State the
amount specified in the document
related to the Commitment to drill an
Exploration Well during the Second
Exploration Period as per the Form
provided in Annex H of this EPA , less
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the amount of Recoverable Costs
incurred during the second Exploration
Period (or carried forward from the
first Exploration Period as provided
below) in fulfilment of the minimum
Work Commitment,

4. At the end of each Exploration
Period, if the Minimum Work
Commitment has not been satisfied,
including the drilling of an Exploration
Well during each of the First and
Second Exploration Periods and the
Exploration Activities and studies that
the Right Holders commit to
conduct(excluding any extension
approved by the Minister pursuant to
Article 7.2 of this EPA, in the case of the
second Exploration Period), , the Right
Holders shall provide a statement of
the Recoverable Costs incurred in
fulfilment of the Minimum Work
Commitment within sixty (60) days of
the end of such Exploration Period. The
Right Holders shall pay the requisite
amount described in the paragraph
above, and the amounts described in
the final documents related to the
Commitment to drill an Exploration
Well in each of the First and Second
Exploration Periods and signed by the
Minsiter and the Right Holders, as the
case may be, within thirty (30) days of
the delivery of such statement. Such
payment shall be without prejudice to
the right of the Petroleum
Administration to dispute the amount
of such Recoverable Costs or their
attribution to the Minimum Work
Commitment. In the event that any
such payment is not made in a timely
manner, the Minister may draw the
relevant amount under the applicable
Work Commitment
Guarantee/Guarantees. In the event
that the statement of Recoverable
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Costs is not submitted in a timely
manner, the Minister may draw the
entire amount of the applicable Work
Commitment Guarantee/Guarantees,
as if the Recoverable Costs were zero,
unless the failure to submit the
statement is cured before the drawing
is made. [The Minister shall draw the
full amount available under the
applicable Work Commitment
Guarantee/Guarantees including the
Work Commitment Guarantee
pertaining to the Commitment of the
Right Holders to drill an Exploration
Well during the First Exploration
Period as per article 7.2 of this EPA and
according to the document related to
the “Commitment to drill an
Exploration Well during the First
Exploration Period” as per the Form
provided in Annex G of this EPA and the
Work Commitment Guarantee
pertaining to the Commitment of the
Right Holders to drill an Exploration
Well during the Second Exploration
Period as per article 7.5 of this EPA and
to conduct Exploration Activities and
studies (determined in the Exploration
Plan related to the Second Exploration
Period) according to the document
related to the “Commitment to drill an
Exploration Well during the Second
Exploration Period” as per the Form
provided in Annex H of this EPA before
making any claim under any guarantee
provided pursuant to Articles [6.4/6.8
of this EPA] arising from any failure by
the Right Holders to satisfy the
Minimum Work Commitment.]

The last paragraph will be amended or
deleted in case any guarantee is
requested pursuant to Articles 6.4 and
6.8 of this EPA.
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5. The Right Holders must complete the
work contemplated by the Minimum
Work Commitment regardless of the
amount of Recoverable Costs incurred

in doing so. The Minimum Work
Commitment is a minimum work
obligation and not a spending
obligation.

6. Should any Well forming part of the
Minimum Work Commitments be
abandoned before reaching the
defined objectives of such Well for any
reason, the Right Holders shall drill a
substitute Well, unless the Right
Holders are exempted from the
obligation to drill a substitute Well
exclusively in the following cases:

(i) a formation
stratigraphically older
than the deepest target

formation is
encountered;

(ii) basement is
encountered;

(i)) further drilling would
present an obvious
danger, such as but not
limited to the presence
of abnormal pressure or

excessive losses of
drilling mud;

(iv) impenetrable
formations are
encountered;

(v) Petroleum-bearing
formations are
encountered which
require protecting,
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thereby preventing
planned depths from
being reached.

In such circumstances the drilling of any
such well may be terminated at a lesser
depth and shall be deemed to have
satisfied the obligations of the Right
Holders in respect of that Well. In the
event that the Right Holders are
required to drill a substitute Well, the
Right Holders may apply to the Minister
for an extension of the relevant
Exploration Period, which the Minister
may grant, to the extent such extension
is reasonably necessary to allow for
drilling and evaluation of the substitute
Well. No such extension may last
beyond the end of the Exploration
Phase (unless an extension of the
Exploration Phase is applied for
pursuant to Article 7.10 of this EPA and
approved by the Council of Ministers in
accordance with Article 21-1 of the Law
no 132/2010 (OPR Law)). No such
extension shall be available if the
relevant Well is abandoned before
reaching its defined objectives as a
result of the failure by the Operator to
conduct the relevant Petroleum
Activities in accordance with the
standards required by this EPA and the
decree no 10289/2013 (PAR).

The exemption from the ogligation to
drill a substitute Well shall be made by
a justified decision issued by the
Minister based on the opinion of the
Petroleum Administration.

7. In the event the number of Wells
drilled by the Right Holder (excluding
any appraisal Well) or the Data
acquired during the first Exploration
Period exceeds the number of Wells or
the amount of Data acquired provided
for in the Minimum Work Commitment
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for that Exploration Period as specified
by this EPA and by the Right Holders
according to the document related to
the “Commitment to drill an
Exploration Well during the First
Exploration Period” as per the Form
provided in Annex G of this EPA, the
number of additional Wells drilled or
the amount of additional Data acquired
by the Right Holder during such
Exploration Period may be carried
forward and treated as work
undertaken in discharge of the Right
Holder's Minimum Work Commitment
to drill Wells or acquire Data during the
second Exploration Period if such work
would comply with the requirements of
the second Exploration Period;
provided, however, if by reason of the
provisions of this Article the Minimum
Work Commitment of the Right Holder
for the second Exploration Period as
specified by this EPA and in the
document related to the “Commitment
to drill an Exploration Well during the
Second Exploration Period” as per the
Form provided in Annex H of this EPA
has been fully discharged by the Right
Holders before that Exploration Period
commences, the Right Holders shall,
after consultation with the Petroleum
Administration, adjust the Exploration
Plan for the second Exploration Period
so as to ensure the continuity of
Petroleum Activities in the Block
pursuant to this EPA.

8. Appraisal Wells drilled with respect
to a Discovery shall not be considered
Exploration Wells for purposes of the
Minimum Work Commitment. In the
event of a Discovery, only the Discovery
Well shall be deemed to be an
Exploration Well for purposes of the
Minimum Work Commitment.
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Art 9. Work Commitment Guarantee

1. On or prior to the date of this
Agreement, the Right Holders have
jointly and severally provided to the
Minister one or more Work Commitment
Guarantees in the aggregate amount of
USS___. (This amount will be
determined pursuant to the Tender
Protocol).

In the event that the Right Holders
commit to drill an Exploration Well during
the First Exploration Period as per article
7.2 of this EPA and according to the
document related to the “Commitment
to drill an Exploration Well during the
First Exploration Period” as per the Form
provided in Annex G of this EPA, the Right
Holders shall also submit the Work
Commitment Guarantee related to the
drilling of the Exploration Well as
specified in Annex G of this EPA as per the
final Form provided in Annex H of this EPA
and signed by the Minister and the Right
Holders.

2. Upon submission of an Exploration
Plan for the second Exploration Period,
the Right Holders shall be jointly and
severally required to provide to the
Minister within the deadline stipulated in
Annex H of this EPA, one or more Work
Commitment Guarantees according to
the aggregate amount determined in the
document related to the “Commitment
to drill an Exploration Well during the
Second Exloration Period as per the final
Form provided in Annex H of this EPA and
signed by the Minister and the Right
Holders.

3. Following the end of each calendar
year, the Right Holders may present to
the Minister, with a copy to the
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Petroleum Administration, a statement
of the Recoverable Costs they incurred in
fulfiiment of the Minimum Work
Commitment during such calendar year.
Within thirty (30) days after the receipt of
such statement, the Minister, based on
the recommendation of the Petroleum
Administration, shall provide to the Right
Holders a certificate (in the form
attached to the Work Commitment
Guarantee) providing for the reduction of
the amount of the Work Commitment
Guarantee in an amount equal to the
lesser of (i) the Recoverable Costs set
forth in the statement and (i} the
aggregate of the Indicative Work
Commitment Amounts provided by the
Right Holders in the Technical Proposal
that corresponds to the particular
Minimum Work Commitments
completed during such calendar year (iii)
the aggregate of the Indicative Work
Commitment Amounts determined in the
two documents related to the Work
Commitments as provided in Annex G
and Annex H of this EPA and which final
versions are both signed by the Right
Holders and the Minister in accordance
with the Minimum Work Commitments
derermined in each of these two
documents. The foregoing
notwithstanding, the Work Commitment
Guarantee/Guarantees shall under no
circumstances be reduced to an amount
that is less than the aggregate of the
Indicative Work Commitment Amounts
estimated by the Right Holders in the
Technical Proposal submitted as per the
Tender Protocol and the amount of the
Work Commitment Guarantee shall not
be, in any case, less than the final amount
specified in the final document signed by
the Minister and the Right Holders and
related to the “Commitment to drill an
Exploration Well during the First
Exploration Period” as per the Form
provided in Annex G of this EPA and shall
not be less than the final amount
determined in the final document signed
by the Minister and the Right Holders and
related to the Commitment to drill an
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that the Minister, based on the
recommendation of the Petroleum
Administration, disputes the amount of
ahy such Recoverable Costs, or their
allocation to the Minimum Work
Commitment, the Minister shall provide a
certificate with respect to the undisputed
portion thereof. The Petroleum
Administration and the Right Holders
shall discuss the resolution of such
dispute, and if no agreement is reached
within thirty (30) days of the date of
delivery of such statement, the Right
Holders may submit the question to a
sole expert for determination pursuant to
Article 39 of this EPA. Such determination
shall be final and binding on the Parties.
Following the resolution of the dispute,
the Minister shall provide the Right
Holders with an additional certificate to

reduce the Work Commitment

Guarantee in an amount reflecting such

resolution,

4. When the Minimum Work <basad 531 aall ol 5l Slasf o ¢
Commitment for an Exploration Period S jad quay «aliSiul sad Jaal)
has been completed, the Work LASiLY) s e Janldl Shin gay of 3N
Commitment Guarantee for the

Exploration Period in question shall be
released within thirty (30) days after the
Right Holders dellver a request for such
release to the Petroleum Administration.
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Art 20 Recruitment and training and
institutional support

1. The Right Holders shall develop and
carry out an effective recruitment and
training program for Lebanese
personnel in accordance with this EPA,
the law no 132/2010 (OPR Law) and
decree no 10289/2013 (PAR),
including such additional
requirements as may be specified by
the Petroleum Administration
pursuant to Article 164 of the decree
no 10289/2013 (PAR). A proposal for a
detailed recruitment and training
program shall be submitted to the
Petroleum Administration for
approval no later than six (6) months
after the Effective Date of this EPA. An
updated program for recruitment and
training shall be submitted annually to
the Petroleum Administration by 31
December each year. As of the
beginning of the Exploration Phase,
the Right Holders and their
contractors and  subcontractors
according to article 67 of the Law no
132/2010 (OPR Law) shall recruit
qualified Lebanese nationals, if
available, and starting the beginning
of the Development and Production
Phase, not less than eighty per cent
(80%) of the aggregate number of
employees of the Right Holders
(including the Operator) shall be
Lebanese nationals. During the
Development and Production Phase,
the Right Holders and their
contractors and subcontractors and
according to article 67 of the Law no
132/2010 (OPR Law) shall achieve this
eighty per cent (80%) threshold as
soon as possible, to the extent that
they are able to recruit a sufficient
number of Lebanese nationals with
the requisite qualifications, and the
Right Holders and their contractors
and subcontractors shall in any event
maximize the proportion of Lebanese
nationals employed by them, subject
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to their obligation to conduct
Petroleum Activities in accordance
with Best International Petroleum
Industry Standards. In the event that
as of the beginning of the
Development and Production Phase or
at any time thereafter the aggregate
number of employees of the Right
Holders (including the Operator) and
their contractors and subcontractors
who are Lebanese nationals is less
than eighty per cent (80%), the Right
Holders shall submit to the Minister on
their behalf and on behalf of their
contractors and subcontractors in
writing an explanation of the reasons
why this requirement has not been
met and a request for a temporary
exemption from this requirement. The
Right Holders may request one or
more temporary exemptions, but no
exemption may be requested for a
period exceeding consecutive twelve
(12) months. The Minister may, based
on the opinion of the Petroleum
Administration and after consulting
with the concerned ministries, grant
such a temporary exemption to the
Right Holders and their contractors
and subcontractors subject to
compliance with such terms and
conditions, including achievement of
any lesser targets for the employment
of Lebanese nationals, as the Minister
determines are appropriate upon
recommendation of the Petroleum
Administration. Pending a decision on
the exemption request, the Right
Holders and their contractors and
subcontractors  shall not be
considered to be in breach of this
requirement.

2. Without limiting the foregoing, the
Operator shall employ, and cause all
Contractors and Subcontractors to
employ, qualified personnel of
Lebanese nationality whenever
available. The Right Holders shall fund
the training of Lebanese personnel
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associated with Petroleum Activities.
Each Exploration Plan and
Development and Production Plan shall
include a plan for the hiring and
training of persons of Lebanese
nationality, including hiring and
training of management, engineering
and other professional staff, consistent
with the recruitment and training
program prepared pursuant to Article
20.1 of this EPA.

3. The Right Holders shall pay costs
related to the support of public sector
institutions and the training of public
sector personnel with functions relating
to the oil and gas sector identified by the
Petroleum Administration in addition to
those nominated by the concerned
ministries and notified to the Petroleum
Administration (including awarding
public sector personnel research
grants), in an amount up to $/300,000/
per year (increased by 5% each year)
until the beginning of the Production
Phase, and thereafter $/500,000/ per
year (increased by 5% each year). The
Right Holders shall, upon request by the
Petroleum Administration, assist the
Petroleum Administration in arranging
third party training opportunities for
such public sector personnel, to be paid
for by the Right Holders pursuant to the
preceding sentence. The Right Holders
shall pay all such costs directly to the
provider of the training (or to the
recipient of the research grant) when
due and shall, promptly upon request
from the Petroleum Administration,
provide satisfactory evidence of
payment of such costs in order to enable
the Petroleum Administration to
monitor and verify the Right Holders’
expenditure under this Article.

4. The Right Holders and their Affiliates
may provide training or participate in the
preparation of training programs
contemplated by Article 20.3 of this EPA,
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unless doing so would represent an
actual or potential conflict of interest
(such as training auditing personnel who
would be expected to audit the books
and records of the Right Holders). As
soon as practicable after the Effective
Date, the Right Holders and the
Petroleum Administration shall jointly
prepare, and shall subsequently update
at least annually, a plan for institutional
support and training programs to be
implemented pursuant to Article 20.3 of
this EPA, including type and amount of
any contemplated institutional support,
types of training and the categories of
personnel to receive training, lists of and
methods for selecting eligible training
service providers (which may include the
Right Holders and their Affiliates except
as provided above in this Article 20.4),
and such other information as they may
consider appropriate.

5. The cost incurred by the Right Holder
for recruitment and training of Lebanese
personnel and the annual contribution
for the support of public sector
institutions and training and
participation of public sector personnel
as provided in this Article shall be
Recoverable Costs for the purpose of the
Accounting and Financial Procedure that
constitutes Annex D of this EPA.
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Art 23 Entitlements for Royalties;
Disposable Petroleum; Cost Recovery

1. The Right Holders shall be entitled to
receive a volume of Petroleum
sufficient to allow them to deliver
pursuant to Article 43.5 of the law no
132/2010 (OPR Law) and Article 71 of
the Decree no 10289/2013 (PAR) or
pay Royalties in accordance with
Article 22 of this EPA.
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2. All Disposable Petroleum shall be
allocated between the Right Holders
and the State in accordance with this
Article 23 and Article 24 of this EPA.

3. Recoverable Costs incurred by the
Right Holders shall be recovered
exclusively from and to the extent of
Cost Petroleum. The Right Holders shall
be entitled to receive and lift, in each
Quarter, a volume of Petroleum (“Cost
Petroleum”) equal to the lesser of (i) [...]
percent (..%))percentage shall be
determined by bidding{ of the
Disposable Petroleum for such Quarter
and Cost Petroleum Ceiling shall not
exceed the limit of 80% of disposable
petroleum, and (i) a volume of
Petroleum with a value (determined in
accordance with Articles 79, 80 and 81
of the decree no 10289/2013 (PAR))
equal to the sum of the Recoverable
Costs for such Quarter, plus the
Recoverable Costs for previous Quarters
that were not fully recovered from
allocations of Cost Petroleum during or
prior to the immediately preceding
Quarter. For these purposes, lifting
rights to Cost Petroleum shall be
determined on the basis of estimated
Recoverable Costs for the current
Quarter, with appropriate adjustments
applied in the following Quarter, as
specified in Article 77 of the decree no
10289/2013 (PAR). Detailed procedures
for making such estimates and
adjustments shall be specified in the
Development and Production Plan.

4. Subject to Article 14, Cost Petroleum
shall be taken in the form of Crude Oil,
Natural Gas or Natural Gas Liquids in
accordance with the provisions of
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Article 76 of the decree no 10289/2013
(PAR).

5. Recoverable Costs and Cost
Petroleum shall be determined on an
aggregate basis for all Development and
Production Areas that are subject to this
EPA. The Right Holders shall take their
aggregate Cost Petroleum entitlement
from Petroleum extracted from one or
more Development and Production
Areas in a manner that, in the
reasonable opinion of the Right Holders,
will minimize aggregate costs of
Facilities and permit compliance with
commitments under offtake
agreements specified in any Gas
Infrastructure and Marketing Plan. In
the event that there are differences in
the quality of Petroleum produced from
separate Discoveries, an appropriate
adjustment factor shall be applied (to be
specified in the Development and
Production Plan).

Art. 27 Procurement and supply bases

1. Subject to applicable Lebanese law and
the provisions of the Joint Operating
Agreement for the procurement of goods
and services for the purpose of Petroleum
Activities pursuant to this EPA, Right
Holders shall conduct procurement on
the basis of competitive tenders (except
that competitive tenders shall not be
required for (i) any contract between the
Operator and the Initial Right Holder or its
Affiliates which has been approved in
advance by the Minister in accordance
with Article 27.2 of this EPA or (ii) any
contract, or group of related contracts,
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with a total value of US$50,000 or less, or
such other lower threshold as the Right
Holders may agree in the Joint Operating
Agreement). The Right Holders shall
ensure that preferential treatment is
given to Lebanese goods and services that
are competitive with regard to quality,
availability, and performance, in
accordance with Article 67 of the law no
132/2010 (OPR Law) and Article 157 of
the decree no 10289/2013 (PAR).
Without limiting the foregoing, the Right
Holders shall procure that:

a) in selecting Contractors for the
provision of services in relation to
Petroleum Activities, the
Operator shall select, when
possible, individuals who are
Lebanese or Entities which are
majority-owned or controlled by
Lebanese nationals and that
provide such services through
permanent establishments in
Lebanon, provided that:

(i) the Operator, in its
judgment acting
reasonably, is satisfied (on
the basis of demonstrated
ability, experience, quality,
timely performance,
workmanship and other
relevant criteria) with their
ability to properly perform
the work entrusted to
them;

(i) the other terms and
conditions applicable to
such services are
otherwise competitive
with those available from
foreign individuals or
Entities that are not
majority-owned or
controlled by Lebanese
nationals; and
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b) in purchasing goods, the Operator
shall give preference to goods
which originate from Lebanon, or
are manufactured or constructed
in Lebanon, in each case by
Entities that are majority-owned
or controlled by Lebanese
nationals, provided that:

(i) the Operator is
reasonably satisfied (on
the basis of demonstrated
quality, workmanship,
avallability in the quantity
and at the times when
needed, and, as may be
appropriate, availability of
service and support, and
other relevant criteria)
with the fitness of the
goods;

(ii) the other terms and
conditions on which such
goods are offered or
otherwise available are
competitive with available
goods that do not originate
from Lebanon, are not

manufactured or
constructed in Lebanon or
are not supplied

by Entities that are not
majority-owned or
controlled by Lebanese
nationals.

Right Holders and the Operator shall
procure that Contractors and their Sub-
Contractors shall comply with this Article.
The Exploration Plan and each
Development and Production Plan shall
include a plan for retaining Lebanese
companies as  Contractors  and
Subcontractors, including priority rules
meeting the requirements set forth in this
Article.
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2. The Operator may enter into
agreements with Contractors (and permit
Contractors to enter into agreements
with Subcontractors) for the conduct of
Petroleum Activities, and with suppliers
of goods, equipment and materials to be
used in Petroleum Activities, so long as
such agreements are consistent with the
terms of this EPA, the Joint Operating
Agreement and Lebanese law. In the
absence of Lebanese law specifying the
procedures to be followed by the
Operator in the procurement of goods
and services under this EPA, the Joint
Operating Agreement shall specify the
applicable procurement procedures,
provided that any agreement (i) between
the Operator and any Right Holder or
Affiliate thereof or (ii) which provides for
a total amount of Recoverable Costs to be
incurred under such agreement (or any
group of related agreements) in excess of
US$10 million in any calendar year, or
US$20 million overall, must be approved
in advance by the Minister upon the
recommendation of the Petroleum
Administration.

Any request for approvals shall include
the amount of the relevant agreement or
group of related agreements, the name of
the relevant Contractor and either a copy
of the agreement(s) or a description of
the material terms thereof in reasonable
detail. In the event that the Minister does
not respond to a properly submitted
request for approval of any agreement
within thirty (30) days of submission, the
request shall be deemed to be approved.

3. Supply bases for the provisions of
goods and services, understood to
include transhipment points, including air
transport related to Petroleum Activities
pursuant to this EPA, shall be used as
stipulated by applicable Lebanese law
and Article 8 of the decree no
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10289/2013 (PAR), and approved plans
for Development and Production.
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Art. 34 Assignment and mortgage

1. No Right Holder shall be permitted to
sell, assign, transfer or otherwise dispose
of all or part of its Participating Interest
(an “Assignment”’) otherwise than in
accordance with this Article or as
required by Article 36 of this EPA. A
Change of Control of a Right Holder shall
be deemed to be an Assignment under
this EPA and shall be subject to this
Article.

2. Each Right Holder shall have the right
to make an Assignment to a Wholly-
Owned Affiliate. Prior to such
Assignment becoming effective the Right
Holder shall agree to remain liable for or
guarantee the obligations transferred
pursuant to the Assignment on terms
reasonably acceptable to the Minister.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the
event that the Right Holder’s obligations
under this EPA are guaranteed pursuant
to Article 6.4, such Right Holder shall
submit to the Minister in connection with
such Assignment a confirmation that the
obligations of the guarantor will apply to
the obligations of the Wholly-Owned
Affiliate taking such Assignment. In such
case, the Right Holder making such
assignment need not remain liable for or
guarantee the obligations transferred
pursuant to the Assignment.

3. Each Right Holder shall also have the
right to make an Assignment to any party
(other than pursuant to Article 34.2
above), provided that:
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a) the third party is qualified in
accordance with the law no
132/2010 (OPR Law); and

b) The Minimum Work
Commitment for the First
Exploration Period has been

fulfilled, including the drilling of
an Exploration Well during the
First Exploration Period as per
article 7.2 of this EPA and what is
specified in the document related
to the “Commitment to drill an
Exploration Well during the First
Exploration Period” according to
Annex G of this EPA.

Such Assignment shall not result in any
Right Holder: (i) holding a Participating
Interest of less than ten per cent (10%),
or (ii) if the Right Holder or its Affiliate is
the Operator, holding a Participating
Interest of less than thirty-five per cent
(35%). No Right Holder may make an
Assignment to another Right Holder if,
following such Assignment, there would
be fewer than three (3) Right Holders.

4. Any Assignment must be approved by
the Council of Ministers pursuant to
Article 70 of the law no 132/2010 (OPR
Law) before becoming effective.

5. In order for any Assignment under
paragraphs 2 and 3 of this Article to be
effective the Parties and the assignee
shall enter into a binding and enforceable
instrument of  assignment and
assumption, which shall include an
undertaking by such assignee to fulfil any
obligations under the EPA. Following the
entry into such an instrument and the
approval of the Council of Ministers as
contemplated by paragraph 4 of this
Article, the assignee shall be deemed to
be a Right Holder for the purposes of this
EPA.
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6. Notwithstanding anything to the
contrary in this Article, for the purpose of
financing Petroleum Activities, any Right
Holder may mortgage or otherwise
encumber, totally or partially, its rights
under this EPA to a reputable
international bank and/or financial
institution, subject to Articles 50 to 53 of
the law no 132/2010 (OPR Law) and to
any Decree adopted thereunder.
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Art. 36 Early Termination and Forced
Assignment

1. Early Termination

a) The Minister may terminate this EPA
by giving all of the Right Holders 90
days’ written notice (an “EPA
Termination Notice”) specifying in
reasonable detail the relevant
circumstances if any of the following
events or circumstances (each, a
“Termination Event”) occurs and is
continuing:

(i) In the event that (a) the Right
Holders did not commit to drill
an Exploration Well during the
First Exploration Period within
a period not exceeding twelve
(12) months from the date of
approval of the Exploration
Plan by the Minister and in this
case the Minister shall notify
the Right Holders (an “EPA
Termination Notice”) and the
90 days’ deadline stipulated in
this EPA shall not apply , (b)
the Right Holders did not sign
the document related to the
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Commitment to drill an
Exploration Well as per Annex
G of this EPA, (c) the Right
Holders did not submit the
Minimum Work Commitment
Guarantee related to drilling
the Exploration Well within
the deadline stipulated in
Annex G of this EPA (d) the
Right Holders did not commit
to drill an Exploration Well
during the Second Exploration
Period as per the provisions
orf article 7.5 of this EPA (e)
the Right Holders did not sign
the document related to the
Commitment to drill an
Exploration Well as per Annex
H of this EPA (f) the Right
Holders did not submit the
Minimum Work Commitment
Guarantee related to drilling
the Exploration Well
pertaining to the Second
Exploration Period.

(ii) a material or repeated
breach by the Right
Holders or the Operator
of the law no 132/2010
(OPR Law), the decree
no 10289/2013 (PAR) or
this EPA;

(iii)  the Right Holders have
failed to comply within a
reasonable period of
time with any final
decision reached: (A) as
the result of arbitration
proceedings in
accordance with Article
38 of this EPA, or (B) by a
sole expert in
accordance with Article
39 of this EPA that is
final and binding in
accordance with the
provisions of this EPA;
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the occurrence of an
Event of Force Majeure
that substantially
disrupts the conduct of
Petroleum Activities for
a period of at least

(iv)

thirty-six (36)
consecutive months
providled that the
Minister reasonably

believes, based on the
recommendation of the
Petroleum
Administration, that a
party  qualified in
accordance with the
Lebanese Law would be
capable of conducting
the Petroleum Activities
in the Block pursuant to
this EPA
notwithstanding the
events giving rise to such
Event of Force Majeure;
or

(v) The revocation of the
Petroleum Right granted
hereunder pursuant to
Article 161 of the decree
no 10289/2013 (PAR).

b) If the Right Holders have remedied
the Termination Event within the 90
days’ notice period, without applying
such provision on the case of Early
Termination when the Right Holders
did not commit to drill an Exploration
Well during the First Exploration
Period within a period not exceeding
twelve (12) months from the date of
approval of the Exploration Plan by the
Minister as stipulated in paragraph 1
(a) of this article, the EPA Termination
Notice shall be deemed to be no longer
in effect. If the Right Holders notify the
Minister that the Termination Event is
not capable of remedy within such 90
day period, but is capable of remedy in
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a longer perlod of time, the Minister
may grant an extension and suspend
the effect of the EPA Termination
Notice, so long as the Right Holders are
diligently pursuing a remedy.

c) Any termination of this EPA pursuant
to this Article shall be -effective
notwithstanding any dispute by the
Right Holders of the grounds for such
termination. In the event that an
arbitral tribunal appointed pursuant to
Article 38 of this EPA determines that
such termination was not justified, the
remedy of the Right Holders shall be
limited to monetary damages based on
the fair market value (determined in
the manner set forth in paragraph (d),
except for the additional limitation
relevant to an Event of Force Majeure)
of their rights under this EPA as of the
date of termination.

d) No compensation shall be paid to
the Right Holders in connection with
any termination pursuant to this

Article, except that upon any
termination  resulting from a
Termination Event set forth in

paragraph 1(a)(iii) of this Article, the
State shall pay to the Right Holders an
amount equal to the greater of (i) all
Recoverable Costs that have not been
recovered as of the time of such
termination, and (ii) 80% of the fair
market value of the Participating
Interests of the Right Holders as of the
date of termination (such fair market
value being equal to the amount that a
willing buyer would pay to a willing
seller of such Participating Interests,
free of all Encumbrances, for cash
consideration in U.S. dollars and on
arm’s length terms, determined on a
going concern basis and assuming that
the Event of Force Majeure ends as of
the date of termination).
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The fair market value shall be
determined by the Parties through
negotiations, but if such negotiations
do not result in an agreement within
ninety (90) days, then either the State
or the Right Holders may submit the
issue to final resolution through
arbitration pursuant to Article 38 of this
EPA.

e) The Right Holders may
terminate this EPA by giving the State
90 days’ written notice upon an Event
of Force Majeure occurring and
continuing that substantially disrupts
the conduct of Petroleum Activities for
a period of at least thirty-six (36)
consecutive months. The Right Holders
may also withdraw from this EPA and
surrender their rights hereunder in the
circumstances contemplated in Article
39 of the decree no 10289/2013 (PAR).
Any such withdrawal or surrender must
be made by all of the Right Holders (or
by the Operator acting on their behalf,
if duly appointed to do so by the Right
Holders). The withdrawal or surrender
of a Participating Interest by one or
more (but less than all) Right Holders
shall be treated as an Assignment and
may only be made in compliance with
the requirements of Article 34 of this
EPA. No compensation shall be paid to
the Right Holders in connection with a
termination or surrender contemplated
in this paragraph.

2. Forced Assignment

a) A “Forced Assignment
Event” shall be considered to have
occurred if any of the following events
or circumstances occurs and s
continuing:

(i) the occurrence of a Termination
Event resulting primarily from
the actions or omissions of, or
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an Event of Force Majeure
affecting, a particular Right
Holder;

(ii) a material breach of Article 26,
35 or 41 of this EPA or Article
147 of the decree no
10289/2013 (PAR )by a Right
Holder;

(iii) a Right Holder has provided any
materially false or misleading
statement(s) to, or withheld any
significant information from,
the Council of Ministers or the
Minister or the Petroleum
Administration relating to this
EPA or any Petroleum Activities;
or

(iv) the making of any order or the
passing of any resolution or the
taking of any other step by any
person for the receivership,
administration, liquidation,
bankruptcy, insolvency,
dissolution, or reorganization
for the benefit of the creditors,
or any similar or analogous
process in any part of the world,
of any Right Holder or any Entity
that guarantees the obligations
of a Right Holder pursuant to
paragraph 4 [or paragraph 8] of
Article 6 of this EPA, save where
the foregoing is for the purpose
of amalgamation or
reorganization of a Right Holder
or such guarantor and its
Affiliates.

b) In the event of a Forced
Assignment Event, the Minister may
elect to require the Right Holder
responsible for the Forced
Assignment Event (the “Defaulting
Party”) to assign its Participating
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Interest unconditionally, without
consideration and free from all
Encumbrances to the other Right
Holders (the “Non-Defaulting
Parties”) in proportion to the Non-
Defaulting Parties’ Participating
Interests (a “Forced Assignment”)
by giving the Defaulting Party 90
days’ written notice and specifying
in reasonable detail the Forced
Assignment Event (a “Forced
Assignment Notice”).

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if
the Forced Assignment Event is a
result of a breach of Article 41 of
this EPA, the Minister may require
the Forced Assignment to take place
with immediate effect.

c) If the Defaulting Party has
remedied the Forced Assignment
Event within the 90 days’ notice
period, the Forced Assignment
Notice shall be deemed to be no
longer in effect. If the Defaulting
Party notifies the Minister that the
Forced Assignment Event is not
capable of remedy within such 90
day period, but is capable of remedy
in a longer period of time, the
Minister may grant an extension and
suspend the effect of the Forced
Assignment Notice, so long as the
Defaulting Party is diligently pursuing
a remedy. The delivery of a Forced
Assignment Notice shall be deemed
to suspend, and the conclusion of a
Forced Assignment shall be deemed
to remedy, any Termination Notice
delivered in respect of the same
events or circumstances.

d) In the event of a Forced
Assignment under Article 36.2(b) of
this EPA, each Non-Defaulting Party
shall be required to accept the
assignment of its share of the
Defaulting  Party’s  Participating
Interest, provided that the Non-
Defaulting Parties shall not be liable
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for any obligations of the Defaulting
Party accrued prior to the Forced
Assignment. From the date of the
Forced Assignment, the Non-
Defaulting Parties shall be jointly and
severally liable for all obligations
arising from the Defaulting Party’s
Participating Interest including but
not limited to, any Minimum Work
Commitment. The Right Holders may
agree to arrangements among
themselves for the compensation (or
absence of compensation) of the
Defaulting Party, but no such
agreement shall have any impact on
the effectiveness of, or result in a
delay in, any Forced Assignment.

e) Notwithstanding Article 36.2(b),
the Minister may elect to have the
State or an Entity wholly-owned by
the State (provided that such Entity
will be financially capable of meeting
its obligations under the EPA) (i) take
a Forced Assignment of the Defaulting
Party’s entire Participating Interest in
lieu of the Non-Defaulting Parties, or
(i) take an assignment of a
Participating Interest of 0.01% from
the Defaulting Party, in which case the
assignment to each Non-Defaulting
Party shall be reduced accordingly.
No compensation shall be paid to the
Defaulting Party in connection with
any such Forced Assignment.

f) Any Forced Assignment shall be
effective notwithstanding any dispute
by the Defaulting Party of the grounds
therefore. In the event that an arbitral
tribunal appointed pursuant to Article
38 of this EPA determines that such
Forced Assignment was not justified,
the remedy of the Defaulting Party shall
be limited to monetary damages based
on the fair value of its rights under this
EPA as of the date of Forced
Assignment, less any compensation
received.
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g) Nothing in this Article shall
preclude the State from pursuing any
and all remedies in respect of a default
by a Defaulting Party available under
this EPA, Lebanese law or otherwise.

3. Consequences of Termination.
If the EPA is terminated in accordance

with an EPA Termination Notice, the
Right Holders shal:

a) forfeit all their future rights
and interests under the EPA as from the
date of termination;

b) release the State from any
and all actions, claims, demands and
proceedings that may arise out of such
termination other than in respect of a
dispute in relation to such termination;
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c) if termination occurs during an
Exploration Period, forfeit the Work
Commitment Guarantee, which the
Minister may draw in an amount equal
to its face amount less the Recoverable
Costs incurred during such Exploration
Period and attributable to the relevant

Minimum Work Commitment. aal
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2.5 General and Administrative Expenses

“General and Administrative Expenses” means:
All main office, field office and general
administrative costs in the Republic of Lebanon
incurred by Operator on behalf of the Right
Holders, including but not limited to
supervisory, accounting and employee relations
services. If such main office, field office or other
administrative functions are used for Petroleum
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Activities and for activities conducted under
other exploration and production agreements
or other activities outside the scope of the EPA,
such costs shall be allocated on an equitable
basis in accordance with applicable Lebanese
law or, in absence of such basis, as agreed to
between the Minister, based on the opinion of
the Petroleum Administration, and the Operator
and, failing agreement, the allocation shali be
determined by a sole expert in accordance with
the EPA.

(a)

General and Administrative Expenses
for services rendered inside and outside
the Republic of Lebanon by the Right
Holders’ Affiliates for managing the
Petroleum Activities and for staff advice
and assistance including financial, legal,
accounting and employee relations
services, but excluding any
remuneration for services charged
separately under section 4.1(e(ii).
These General and Administrative
Expenses shall be limited to a maximum
of one percent (1%) of all Exploration
Costs, Development Costs, and
Operating Costs for each vyear
{excluding, for the avoidance of doubt,
General and Administrative Expenses
otherwise included therein) and these
General and Administrative Expenses
shall be determined by a detailed study
to be submitted by the Operator to the
Lebanese Petroleum Administration for
approval on a yearly basis {(within ninety
(90) Calendar days of the end of such
Calendar year). The limit of one precent
may be reviewed and adjusted by the
Petroleum Administration from time to
time where appropriate, in particular for
the Development and Production Costs,
by mutual agreement in writing
between the Minister and the Operator.
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(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

All General and Administrative Expenses
shall be regularly allocated as specified
in Sections 2.1(f), 2.2(i) and 2.3 to
Exploration Costs, Development Costs
and Operating Costs, respectively.

General and Administrative Expenses
incurred during the period commencing
with the Effective Date and ending with
the date of approval of the first plan for
Development and Production and the
approval of the Gas Infrastructure and
Marketing Plan (in the case of a Natural
Gas Discovery) by the Council of
Ministers for a proposed Development
and Production Area, shall be fully
allocated to Exploration Cost.

Commencing with the date of approval
of the first plan for Development and
Production and the approval of the Gas
Infrastructure and Marketing Plan (in
the case of a Natural Gas Discovery) by
the Council of Ministers for a proposed
Development and Production Area, if it
becomes necessary to allocate General
and Administrative Expenses to or
between Petroleum Activities pursuant
to different exploration and production
agreements, such allocation shall be
made on an equitable basis in
accordance with applicable Lebanese
law, or, in absence of such basis, as
agreed to between the Minister, based
on the opinion of the Petroleum
Administration, and the Operator and,
failing agreement, the allocation shall be
determined by a sole expert in
accordance with the EPA.

The Right Holder shall furnish a
description of its allocation procedures
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pertaining to General and
Administrative Expenses determined as
set forth above, along with each
proposed plan for Development and
Production.
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(x) Licensed Geophysical Data

Costs of 3D geophysical licensed data in an
awarded Block, licensed before or after the date
of the Block award.
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4.3 Costs not recoverable under the EPA

The following costs shall not be cost recoverable
pursuant to the EPA:

(a) Petroleum marketing costs (except as
otherwise contemplated in an approved Gas
Infrastructure and Marketing Plan) and
Transportation costs of Petroleum beyond the
Delivery Point(s) as set forth in an approved
Development and Production Plan;

(b) costs of any nature (including attorneys’ fees
and the fees of the ICC, arbitrators, the sole
expert, other experts, professionals and
translators) incurred in connection with any
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consultation, arbitration or sole expert process
under Articles 37 to 39 (inclusive) of the EPA;

(c) Royalty;

(d) Costs and expenditures incurred as a result
of a breach of any provision of the EPA, Gross
Negligence or Willful Misconduct on the part of
the Right Holders or the Operator, or their
Affiliates;

(e) Costs that are not adequately supported and
documented;

() Costs and charges incurred before the
Effective Date. The provisions of Paragraph (x) of
Article 4.1 of this Accounting and Financial
Procedure shall remain applicable,

(g) Interest, or any charge or payment in the
nature of, in lieu of, or having the commercial
effect of interest related to the financing of
Petroleum Activities;

{h) Any taxes measured by or based upon the
revenues, income, gains, dividends and net
worth of a Right Holder or physical person,
wherever imposed (save for any Excess
Corporate Income Tax);

(i) The Value Added Tax paid by the Right Holder
except the non-deductible Value Added Tax and
the tax which deduction is not approved by the
tax authorities;

{(j) Any taxes paid to authorities outside the
Republic of Lebanon;

(k) Any taxes subject to reimbursement or
refund;

(1) Any other taxes that should be deemed non-
allowable costs;
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(m) Fines and penalties imposed by any public ‘;‘ B e diagptall il gaall g Silal jall ()
authority in the Republic of Lebanon or OSa ‘;1 ‘éﬁ J1 3l 4 ) geaall @ didle 4
elsewhere and any interest due thereon; o _l Aiatie 321 ti‘J ).}1

(n) Commissions and arrangement fees paid to cellan ol de ghaall o g )l g Y gaall ()
intermediaries;

(0) Commissions and arrangement fees and Laj) allS3ll (30 b 1t 5 o gua Y 5 Y ganll (L)
other costs (including borrowing costs, interest al\ss ‘ég 5 el (ol RV CallSs el @
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Company Guarantee. ,\aS{\ A< Al AUS y Jeadl
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(q) Donations and contributions made by the laal (o Zedidl Sl eyl ()
Right Holders; ¢(3skal)

r) Costs incurred by the Operator under . giall Caa gay Jaudiall A 3l Gl (Ua)
contracts or amendments thereto that were (i) 33) 4ol :‘-=,~ g (\) ‘é_ﬂ\) lele  Daeill J|

subject to approval by the Minister, the . 1oy 4 - ‘. “ .
oW Asal Jf O sl e Uai s ol ddua 4l 5560
Petroleum Administration or the Management ESEHIAERE 5 % A e

Committee and were not so approved, or (ii) Ll “'*‘U\S _(“)_ s ‘W_&‘}A‘ (*::' el
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competitive tender in accordance with Article ri;; ol 4l e Yy CaliSIWY) 4860 (e
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the basis of a competitive tender or otherwisein - . . Caf 2 : R
Lo yall Agplidll ol all HlSa) e S il
compliance with applicable Lebanese law or the  ~ i sl ¢ & -

provisions of the Joint Operating Agreement ‘Jﬂ‘ o jidal) Joel) 48l t‘\s“‘ J‘ el a¥

governing the procurement of goods and cilaadll QJ-“-“ 35 Qlelyal e 5
services;

(s.) Costs t.hat are not documented in accordance Ol oill Gy Lgad 5 oy o A @llsall (5)
with applicable law, the EPA or this Accounting | (53} § CHLASSLYY AEUEY § cel a1 Lo ol
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(t) Costs of any disputes arising under the Joint Jualdll Gl e Lot ciled 3 ‘;‘ dlSs ()

Operating Agreement entered into among the ¢ siadl lanal posall & jilall
Right Holders;
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any operation or activity not related to A gl Adatl e yo e dalds

Petroleum Activities;

(u) Area fee. Aalaiall pa ()
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1. Introduction sdadiall
1.1 The objective of this Tender Protocol i) Mallda g dl sy pecasgll ) Y,

(“Tender Protocol”) related to the Second
Exploration and Production Licensing Round
within the Lebanese Offshore (the “Second
Offshore Licensing Round” or the “Licensing
Round”) is the award to pre-qualified companies
of Petroleum Rights to conduct Petroleum
Activities as defined in Article 1 of the Law No
132/2010 (Offshore Petroleum Resources Law)
in designated blocks of the Lebanese offshore
through an Exploration and Production
Agreement (“EPA”).
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This Tender Protocol for the Pre-Qualification of
Applicants and the Award of Exploration and
Production Agreements (this “Tender Protocol”)
describes the procedures by which companies
interested in applying for the award of a
Petroleum Right {(each, an “Individual Company”)
may pre-qualify and participate in this Licensing
Round.

1.2.  The Lebanese offshore has been divided
into 10 blocks (Block 1 to Block 10} with
determined coordinates of latitude and
longitude pursuant to Decree No. 42/2017 (the
division of maritime waters subject to the
jurisdiction of the Lebanese State into areas in
the form of blocks) (each, a “Block”). In 2017,
following the successful conclusion of the First
Offshore Licensing Round, Petroleum Rights in
the form of EPAs were awarded for Blocks Nos. 4
and 9. The Minister of Energy and Water, in
consultation with the Petroleum Administration,
will announce the Blocks to be offered in this
Licensing Round in the Official Gazette and on
the website of the Petroleum Administration as
provided in Article 2.2.

1.3.  Asdescribed more fully in Article 7 of this
Tender Protocol, to participate in this Licensing
Round, Individual Companies must join together
in consortiums of at least three Individual
Companies (each such consortium, an
“Applicant”) and submit an application (the
“Licensing Round Application”) consisting of the
following:

1.3.1. Pre-Qualification
which shall include:

Application,

o Separate pre-qualification
materials in respect of each
individual Company forming
part of the Applicant, each in
the forms provided at
Schedules A, B, C and D to
Exhibit 3D; and
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o Administrative Materials,
consisting of the wvarious
administrative documents and

materials specified in
Article 5.7.
1.3.2. EPA Application, which shall

include:

o A Bid Bond in the form
provided at Exhibit 4: and

o Applicant’s
consisting of:

Proposal,

= A Technical Proposal in the
form provided at Exhibit 5,
including a Technical Report
prepared in accordance with
the guidelines in Exhibit 6;
and

= A Commercial Proposal in
the form provided at Exhibit
7.

Applicants may apply for the award of an EPA to
conduct Petroleum Activities in one (1) or more
Blocks, but must submit a separate Licensing
Round Application for each Block.

1.4. Upon receipt of the Licensing Round
Applications, the Petroleum Administration will
review and evaluate the Pre-Qualification
Applications and will communicate its
recommendation to the Minister, who will
announce the results of the pre-qualification
process by notice published in the Official
Gazette and on the website of the Petroleum
Administration. If an Applicant includes one or
more Individual Companies that are not pre-
qualified, the Applicant’s EPA Application will be
returned unopened, and the Articles of this
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Tender Protocol related to the Online
Submission shall be applicable, and the Minister
will communicate to such Individual Companies
in writing the reasons they were not pre-
qualified. Only Applicants consisting of Individual
Companies that are each pre-qualified will have
their EPA Applications reviewed and evaluated
by the Petroleum Administration.

1.5. Applicants selected as the winning
Applicant in respect of a given Block will be
required to enter into an EPA identical in all
material respects to the Model EPA attached
hereto as Exhibit 1, as the same may be amended
prior to the deadline for submission of Licensing
Round Applications (the “Model EPA”), updated
to incorporate the relevant terms of the
Applicant’s Technical Proposal and Commercial
Proposal, including any revisions thereto agreed
between the Minister and the Applicant and
approved by the Council of Ministers.

2. Announcement of the Licensing Round

21 The opening of the process for receiving
Licensing Round Applications by the Petroleum
Administration shall be announced by notice
published in the Official Gazette and in local and
international media as well as on websites as
shall be determined by the Minister based on the
opinion of the Petroleum Administration.

2.2 The announcement shall include the
Blocks on offer, the date, place and method of
receiving Licensing Round Applications, the
deadline for submitting Licensing Round
Applications (the “Closing Date”), the date on
which the pre-qualified Applicants will be
announced, and the date on which the winning
Applicants will be announced.

3. Definitions

3.1 Capitalized terms not defined in this
Tender Protocol shall have the respective
meanings they have in the Offshore Petroleum
Resources Law No. 132/2010 (the “OPRL"), the
Petroleum Activities Regulations Decree No.
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10289/2013 (the “PAR”) and the Model EPA
attached hereto as Exhibit 1.

3.2 Whenever used in this Tender Protocol,
the following terms shall have the meanings
provided below:

“Ultimate Parent Company” means, in relation
to a group of Affiliated Companies, the company
within such group that is not itself subject to
Control by any other company.

“Affiliate” or “Affiliated Company” means, with
respect to a specified company, a company that
directly or indirectly Controls or is Controlled by,
or is under common Control with, such specified
company.

“Control” means, with respect to a company, the
ownership of a majority of the voting capital of
such company or the power to appoint a
majority of the board of directors or similar
management body of such company.

“Minister” means the Minister of Energy and
Water.

“Petroleum Administration” means the

Lebanese Petroleum Administration.

“Pre-Assessed Operator” means an Individual
Company that was pre-qualified as a Right
Holder- Operator and awarded an exclusive
Petroleum Right through an EPA in a prior
Licensing Round.

“Pre-Assessed Non-Operator” means an
Individual Company that was pre-qualified as a
Right Holder- Non-Operator and awarded an
exclusive Petroleum Right through an EPA in a
prior Licensing Round.
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“Retrieval Fee” means a fee in the amount of
USS$5000 (Fiive Thousand United States dollars)
payable to the Lebanese Treasury - Ministry of
Finance as specified in the amended Article 26 of
the PAR.

“First Ranking Applicant” means the Applicant
that has obtained the highest Global Mark based
on the evaluation of its Proposal (Technical and
Commercial) in a given Block.

“provisional Winner” means the Applicant that
the Minister recommends to the Council of
Ministers to sign an Exploration and Production
Agreement with, based on the results of the
conclusion of the Tender.

4. Submission of Licensing Round Applications

[ Timetable

4.1 Below is the indicative timetable for the
Licensing Round following the publication of this
Tender Protocol:
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EVENT DURATION
FROM
CLOSING
DATE
o Tentative deadline for requesting One (1)
the Minister’s approval of the month
jurisdiction of residence of an hefore
Authorized Representative
outside of Lebanon
e Deadline for submission to the Three (3)
Petroleum Administration of weeks
proposed alternative forms of before
Bid Bonds (as defined below) for
approval by the Minister
e Deadline for submission of Two (2)
questions and requests for weeks
clarification on the Licensing before
Round, including any preliminary
evaluation requests concerning
pre-qualification
e Final disclosure of clarifications Ten (10)
and supplementary information days
by the Petroleum Administration before
e Deadline for payment of the Seven (7)
Retrieval Fee days
before
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e Deadline for submission of On the
Licensing Round Applications. Closing Date

e Deadline for payment of the 3D
seismic data license purchase
price

e Announcement of Applicants | Five (5) days
that submitted Licensing Round after
Applications

o Petroleum Administration Two (2)
requests for additional | weeks after
information and clarifications
concerning Pre-Qualification
Applications

e Evaluation of the Pre-| Uptofour
Qualification Applications and | (4) weeks
announcement of the pre- after
qualification results.

e Evaluation of the EPA | Uptoseven
Applications and announcement | (7) weeks
of the bid results after

o Signature of Exploration and | Up tofour
Production Agreements. (4) months

after

The Minister will communicate any changes to
the indicative timetable above.

4.2 The purchase of the license of the
geophysical data shall not constitute a
requirement for bidding. However, the
purchase of the license of the 3D seismic
data of an awarded Block shall be purchased
after the award in case the 3D seismic data is
not fully licensed before the award. The cost
of the purchased license of the 3D seismic
data of an awarded block is cost recoverable
at the purchase price regardless of the
purchase date of the license.

The Petroleum Administration has made or will
make available to Individual Companies the data
described in Exhibit 2. The data described in
Schedule A of Exhibit 2 can be accessed free of
charge at:

https://www.|pa.gov.lb/english/resource--
center/map-library
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The data described in Schedule B of Exhibit 2,
and the data described in Schedule C of Exhibit 2
will be provided to Individual Companies by the
Petroleum Administration upon receipt of the
Retrieval Fee. described in Article 11 of this
Tender Protocol.( US$ 5000 — five thousand
United States dollars).

Acquired seismic data in the Lebanese Offshore
may be viewed physically through visiting the
data room at the Ministry of Energy and Water
offices in Lebanon or virtually through the Virtual
Data Room and the visit’s request for any of the
two data rooms may be submitted by email on
the following address: datacenter@Ipa.gov.lb. In
addition, the seismic data may also be viewed at
the offices of the seismic services companies that
acquired the data.

4.3 The Minister, upon the recommendation of
the Petroleum Administration and with the
approval of the Council of Ministers, may annul
all or part of the Licensing Round at any time
without any liability incurred by the Lebanese
Republic towards any Applicant, Individual
Company or any other person. In particular, this
would apply in situations where, as a result of
the number and/or quality of Applications
submitted for a certain Block or due to other
compelling circumstances, the Minister in
consultation with the Petroleum Administration
determines that the objectives of the Licensing
Round have not been or could not be adequately
served.

S. Pre-Qualification Application Requirements

Pre-Qualification Materials for Each Individual
Company

5.1 Each Applicant must submit a Pre-
Qualification Application that contains separate
pre-qualification materials in respect of each
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Y.

Individual Company forming part of the
Applicant.
5.2 To participate in the Licensing Round,

each Individual Company must satisfy the pre-
qualification requirements applicable to
companies desiring to participate in this
Licensing Round as a Right Holder-Operator or
Right Holder-Non Operator, respectively, as
described in Article 7.2 of this Tender Protocol.
Each Individual Company must be a joint stock
company whose object allows the carrying out of
Petroleum Activities as defined in Article 1 of the
OPRL. Individual Companies incorporated
outside the Lebanese Republic in countries
which jurisdictions are fully transparent to
Lebanese authorities are deemed to be
equivalent to joint stock companies provided
that the articles of association of such companies
prove that the company possesses the following
legal criteria:

5.2.1 The capital of the company shall
be divided into shares.
5.2.2 The shareholders liability is
limited to the percentage of their
participation in the company.
5.2.3 The shares of the company shall
be subject to assignment or
transfer to third parties, without
the shareholders having a
preemptive right to acquire those
shares.
5.2.4 The company shall be managed by
a board of directors or an
equivalent body.

5.3 Individual Companies seeking pre-
qualification that belong to a group of Affiliates
shall present the evidence that the company
seeking pre-qualification is the Parent Company
of such group of Affiliates or is in compliance
with the applicable pre-qualification criteria
either directly or indirectly through the
credentials of Affiliates under its control. Pre-

Bajike 4S8 (K (M 258 sl Lguiany e

el 23 e 13 e IS
Guual Jaalil el jagw ol cany  0,Y
B3 A AV e 33 58038 50 S 8
cabal f Jadia 3a caliaS oda il il
Asa A Ld'\iéj‘;“,ﬂ\‘_,.\s Wada j 3a
O iy Madl dag 8l yiy e ¥, Y salll b
o daabua 38,0 30 48,3 JS SO
FoLS Ayl etV Wil e g
AKRRVAR A QP PSRN Py X IR SPRTR
S Ay ) oluall (8 A5 0l o ) pall 58
Apaadl) S daaludll 8 WSa 3
i dsn s Ll 4y ) geeall 3las - A
ity of o ALl el Zis
A A g0 il pally AS ) aiad AS 20

Niae 4S80 Jla ) s of 2, Y,
el

Cpealuall Adgpea 8 ol 0,Y,Y
(gj c‘ﬂ"“" Lise 1.\“.'\.1 S.J_,JM
A8yl

JOUl ALE AS y2W pguad S5 0 0, Y, ¥
o o sl I Qysaddt
DY) G b Cabanall 0 5,
AeSlas 4

wulae i il 3yl u.b'.'\_.g u‘ °,Y,¢

ylsaia o5l

o) (ol Al B phiall S e oY
el 2555 21 5 Ao yall IS 580 (o A pana
i a9 AS A e Lef st Baaaall Jaalal
A58 Ll ol Aagpall S 20 (0 e gannall
L2 A o S 3 Bash e o 580 Ahais
s ol Aaedla (o 3l L3 yhagd daunld



ar)

Yoxy/o/3a = Y Y ssall — el a2l

qualification determinations apply solely to the
Individual Company seeking pre-qualification,
and do not extend to its Parent Company or
Affiliates.

5.4 Individual Companies that are Pre-
Assessed Operators or Pre-Assessed Non-
Operators may apply for pre-qualification in this
Licensing Round in the same capacity as
previously pre-qualified by submitting the
following pre-qualification materials:

e The documents set forth at paragraphs 5
and 7 of Schedule A to Exhibit 3D of this
Tender Protocol, updated from those
submitted in the latest pre-qualification
round in which the Right Holder
participated; and

e The documents required by paragraphs
1 and 2(i) through 2(v) of Schedule B to
Exhibit 3D of this Tender Protocol,
updated from those submitted in the
latest pre-qualification round for the
Lebanese offshore in which the Right
Holder participated.

In addition, Pre-Assessed Operators may apply to
pre-qualify as a Right Holder-Non-Operator in
this Licensing Round by submitting the
documents specified in this Article.

5.5 The provisions of Article 5.4 do not apply
to Right Holders operating in the Lebanese
Offshore that were not themselves pre-qualified
in a prior Licensing Round. In the event that such
companies desire to pre-qualify for participation
in this Licensing Round, they must submit the full
scope of pre-qualification materials set forth at
Schedules A, B, C and D to Exhibit 3D of this
Tender Protocol. Similarly, a Pre-Assessed Non-
Operator seeking to pre-qualify as a Right
Holder-Operator in this Licensing Round must
submit the full scope of pre-qualification
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materials set forth at Schedules A, B, C and D to
Exhibit 3D of this Tender Protocol.

5.6 If an Individual Company is submitting
pre-qualification materials in connection with
separate Licensing Round Applications for
different Blocks, only one set of the pre-
qualification materials described in Schedules A,
B, C and D to Exhibit 3D must be provided in
accordance with the notarization, authentication
and Formalization requirements set forth at
Articles 9.6 and 9.7. Accordingly, where the
Individual Company’s pre-qualification materials
are included in multiple Pre-Qualification
Applications, the Individual Company may
submit copies of such materials only, together
with a document instructing the Petroleum
Administration that the original, notarized,
authenticated and Formalized materials are
included in a separate Pre-Qualification
Application, and identifying the Applicant and
Block in respect of which such Pre-Qualification
Application was submit,

Administrative Materials

5.7 In addition to pre-qualification materials
in respect of each Individual Company
comprising an Applicant, an Applicant’s Pre-
Qualification Application must include the
following documentation (collectively, the
"Administrative Materials"):

e The Application Form set forth at Exhibit
3A indicating the Individual Company
nominated to be the Operator (the
“Designated  Operator”) and the
participating interest of each Individual
Company comprising the Applicant ;

o A separate Power of Attorney of
Authorized Representative ("POA”) set
forth at Exhibit 3C signed by each
Individual Company comprising the
Applicant;
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o Evidence demonstrating that the person
signing the POA on behalf of the
Individual Company is authorized to do
50;

e A copy of any cooperation agreements
entered into between the Individual
Companies comprising the Applicant
concerning participation in this Licensing
Round or the conduct of Petroleum
Activitles following the award of an EPA;

e Proof of payment of the Retrieval Fee;

e A parent company guarantee, if
applicable (see Article 19.1).

5.8 By signing the Application Form, the
Designated Operator indicates that it accepts
such nomination, and that each other Individual
Company constituting the Applicant has
appointed the Designated Operator to act in
such capacity and be responsible for all matters
vis-A-vis the Minister and the Petroleum
Administration for the purpose of the Applicant’s
participation in  this Licensing  Round.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the appointment
of the Designated Operator as Operator under
the EPA shall remain subject to the approval of
the Council of Ministers at the time of awarding
an EPA based upon a proposal by the Minister
following consultation with the Petroleum
Administration in accordance with Article 20-2 of
the OPRL.

59 in allocating participating interests,
Applicants should note that the Model EPA
provides that;

(i) the Operator shall hold a
minimum thirty five percent
(35%) participating interest and
that

each other participating Right
Holder shall hold a minimum ten

(i)
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percent
interest.

(10%) participating

5.10 Each Individual Company comprising the
Applicant must sign a separate POA, but the
same person must be appointed to act as
Authorized Representative by each Individual
Company. The Authorized Representative must
be a natural person residing in the Republic of
Lebanon or such other jurisdiction as the
Minister may approve.

5.11 If a cooperation agreement has been
signed between the Individual Companies
comprising the Applicant, the copy provided
must be certified by the Authorized
Representative appointed by the Individual
Companies pursuant to their individual POAs.

5.12 For the avoidance of doubt, one
Retrieval Fee, per Block is due. In the event
where more than one Individual Company
comprising an Applicant has paid the Retrieval
Fee, the amounts paid and related to the
Retrieval Fee will not be refunded, but the
payment of a Retrieval Fee may instead be used
to bid for additional Blocks.

6. Pre-Qualification Questions and Requests
for Clarification / Preliminary Evaluations

6.1 Individual Companies may submit to the
Petroleum Administration questions and
requests for clarification regarding the Licensing
Round, including the pre-qualification
requirements generally or as applied to the
particular circumstances of the Individual
Company. Individual Companies may also
request a preliminary evaluation of whether the
Individual Company satisfies one or more of the
pre-qualification requirements. All  such
questions and requests may be submitted to the
Petroleum Administration by e-mail to

olr2@lpa.gov.lb up until Two (2) weeks prior to
the Closing Date.

6.2 The Petroleum Administration will
publish written responses to questions and
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requests for clarification via the Petroleum
Administration website at www.lpa.gov.|b as per
Paragraph 4 of Article 8 of the Law 84/2018 (Law
Enhancing Transparency in the Petroleum
Sector). The Petroleum Administration may edit
questions and responses for clarity, to protect
confidential information, or to combine
duplicative questions. Individual Companies that
have joined together as an Applicant are
requested to aggregate their questions in order
to minimize the number of submissions by any
given Applicant.

6.3 While the Petroleum Administration
intends to answer all reasonable questions
submitted in a timely manner, it is under no
obligation to do so. Any answers given by the
Petroleum Administration shall be deemed to be
unofficial guidance.

Preliminary Evaluations

6.4 If an Individual Company requests a
preliminary evaluation of whether it satisfies one
or more of the pre-qualification requirements, it
may provide to the Petroleum Administration
such data, information and documents as may
assist the Petroleum Administration to perform
the requested evaluation. The Petroleum
Administration may request such additional
data, information and documents as it deems
necessary to perform the requested evaluation,
and shall provide any such evaluation directly to
the requesting Individual Company.

6.5 Any preliminary evaluation provided by
the Petroleum Administration shall be
considered non-binding, and shall be without
prejudice to the right of the Petroleum
Administration to reach a  contrary
determination at any time. For the avoidance of
doubt, the Petroleum Administration reserves
the right, in its sole discretion, to withdraw,
modify, or amend any preliminary evaluation
provided to an Individual Company, and to reject
any Pre-Qualification Application as insufficient
or not compliant with the applicable pre-
qualification requirements in any material
respect, without any liability to an Applicant,
Individual Company or any other party.
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7. Conditions for Participation
Pre-Qualification

71 In order to participate in this Licensing
Round, an Applicant must consist of three (3) or
more Individual Companies, including one (1)
Individual Company that satisfies the pre-
qualification criteria applicable to a Right Holder-
Operator and no fewer than two (2) other
Individual Companies, each of which satisfies the
pre-qualification criteria applicable to a Right

Holder-Operator or a Right Holder-Non-
Operator.
7.2 The pre-qualification criteria are defined

on the basis of legal, financial, technical and
QHSE requirements, in accordance with the
following Exhibits:

a. Legal criteria and relevant data and
documents, as set forth in Schedule
A to Exhibit 3D hereto.

b. Financial criteria and relevant data
and documents, as set forth in
Schedule B to Exhibit 3D hereto.

c. Technical criteria and relevant data
and documents, as set forth in
Schedule C to Exhibit 3D hereto.

d. Quality, Health, Safety and
Environment (“QHSE”) criteria, and
relevant data and documents as set
forth in Schedule D to Exhibit 3D
hereto.

73 The Petroleum Administration shall
review and evaluate the Pre-Qualification
Applications and ensure that the pre-
qualification information and documentation
provided by the Applicants are in accordance
with the criteria set forth in the Schedules to
Exhibit 3D referenced in Article 7.2.

A b gyl v

Gaall Jal2lf

@b JVL el )l Gkl e e V)
S e 38 05 of dlall yansl il 90
A a0 At o Ao o JiSE ol 30 jie S 2
G A Baaall Jaalil) oy 58 8aal g 39 jike
G o) ey Jidl @Al cala Lk
dalill Jagyd O Lo glhajite S8
_,‘M\éa.“;.uhau.\cg)uﬁqﬂ\é,ud‘
(Jdiall

S Al gueall Jaalll jules 235 VLY
da g 5y A Aglle A gild a g b (M LY
(G g Al g LoDl danall (53 gally Adlatia
AJ Gl
Glatial y Uil g 40 g6 utea)
G A Jsaall ) Led Laglsl) 4y glladll
dy,dll sy @al 3D Galddl
N
Glatiuall 3 Ly Ll el 0
Ga B Jsaall G g Led daill 4 yllaall
bgylll iy Giadl 3p @aldl
|

Olaituall g Glilally 4l el -z
Galal e € Jsaall iy L) dayal
clall Jay 52 oy (3854l 3D

:\:\_._LL“_,LM‘JM‘J'SJ)Q.“ )Hha-d
Al Cilatiuall g <ULl 5 (QHSE)
30 Galdl g D Jsaall Gy L
cellall a2l oy (38 5al

Gdh o35 a5 of Lidl Sl VY
Cilagled) G e 285 5 Gaaaall Jalil
Aaiia el paie gl ) clai )
adlall Jglaall & s33adll Jaaldl jules &

VoY dalall 4l jLidl 3p galadl



ary

Yoxy/o/va = Y Y saall - dpensll syl

7.4 The Petroleum Administration may
eliminate from the Licensing Round any
Application that is lacking information, is
incomplete or is missing any required
documentation.

7.5 The Petroleum Administration reserves
the right to request that additional data,
information, documentation and/or clarification
be provided by the Applicant to assess its
compliance with the applicable pre-qualification
criteria.

7.6 In the event a required document may
not be produced under the applicable laws in an
Individual Company’s country of incorporation
or where the Applicant is unable to provide a
document without incurring prohibitive efforts
or costs, the Petroleum Administration may
authorize the Applicant to provide alternative
documentation or information. The Petroleum
Administration reserves the right to eliminate
from the Licensing Round any Applicant that fails
to provide such alternative documentation or
information.

7.7 The Petroleum Administration shall
eliminate from the Licensing Round any
Applicant that includes an Individual Company
which fails to meet all applicable pre-
qualification criteria set forth in the Schedules to
Exhibit 3D referenced in Article 7.2.

7.8 An Individual Company may be part of
different Applicants bidding for different Blocks.
However, if an Individual Company is part of an
Applicant for any given Block, neither it nor any
of its Affiliates may be part of another Applicant
bidding for the same Block. No Individual
Company may join any of its Affiliates within the
same Applicant.

7.9 Applicants are only allowed to bid for
any or all opened Blocks, and any given Applicant
or Operator may only be awarded a maximum of
two (2) blocks in the Second Offshore Licensing
Round.
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Pre-Qualification Results

7.10 The Petroleum Administration shall
endeavor to decide upon the Pre-qualification
Applications within Three (3) weeks following
the deadline for submission of Licensing Round
Applications. The Minister may, upon a
recommendation of the Petroleum
Administration, decide to extend such period by
an additional One (1) week. Following the
issuance of its decision regarding the Pre-
Qualification  Applications, the Petroleum
Administration shall communicate its
recommendations to the Minister regarding the
list of pre-qualified Applicants and their
respective Individual Companies as well as the
list of Applicants and their respective Individual
Companies that were not pre-qualified. If an
Applicant includes one or more Individual
Companies that were not pre-qualified, the
Applicant’s EPA Application will be returned
unopened and the Minister will communicate to
such Individual Companies in writing the reasons
they were not pre-qualified. In the event of
Online submission the procedures decribed in
Exhbit 9 of this Tender Protocol shall apply in this
regard.

7.11 The Minister will announce the pre-
qualification results by a decision published in
the Official Gazette and on the website of the
Petroleum Administration. as per Paragraph 2 of
Article 8 of the Law 84/2018 (Lae Law Enhancing
Transparency in the Petroleum Sector) Only
Applicants consisting of Individual Companies
that are each pre-qualified will be entitled to
continue participating in the Licensing Round
and have their EPA Applications reviewed and
evaluated by the Petroleum Administration.

8. EPA Application Reguirements

8.1  Applicants that have been pre-
qualified will proceed to have their EPA
Applications reviewed and evaluated by the
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Petroleum Administration. Each EPA
Application shall include a Bid Bond, a

Technical Proposal and a Commercial
Proposal.
Bid Bond
8.2 In order to guarantee the winning

Applicant’s obligation to sign the EPA for the
relevant Block(s), each Applicant must present a
Bid Bond in favor of the Ministry for each Block
for which the Applicant submits a Licensing
Round Application. Each Bid Bond will be in the
amount of US$500,000 (Five hundred thousand
United States Dollars) or €500,000 (Five hundred
thousand Euros). The form of Bid Bond is
included as Exhibit 4 to this Tender Protocol and
must be delivered with the EPA Application as
specified in Exhibit 3A. Alternative forms of Bid
Bond (if proposed by the relevant issuing bank or
financial institution) may be delivered but will
only be accepted if such Bid Bond has been
approved by the Minister, based on the
recommendation of the Petroleum
Administration, prior to submission of the
Licensing Round Application and provides for full
and unconditional payment to the Ministry of
Energy and Water in circumstances identical to
those included in the form of Bid Bond included
as Exhibit 4. The Minister shall have full
discretion to decide whether to accept or reject
an alternative form of Bid Bond. Proposed
alternative forms must be submitted to the
Petroleum Administration according to the
timetable in Article 4.1 of this Tender Protocol in
order to be considered.

8.3 Bid Bonds will take the form of Letters of
Credit issued by a bank or financial institution,
which are rated “A” or better in the publications
of Standard & Poor's Rating Group or the
equivalent ratings of Fitch Ratings or of Moody’s
Investors Service, or issued by Alpha rated
Lebanese banks.
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8.4 Within Two (2) weeks following Council
of Ministers approval of the State entering into
an EPA with the winning Applicant for a given
Block, the Bid Bond of any other Applicant for
that Block will be returned, along with all other
documentation necessary for its cancellation.

8.5 The Minister may draw on the Bid Bond
presented by a winning Applicant In the
following clrcumstances:

a. The winning Applicant does not sign
the EPA and deliver it to the Minister
within the duration defined in Article
17.4 of this Tender Protocol;

b. The fully executed Work
Commitment Guarantee for the first
Exploration Period is not delivered to
the Minister within the duration
described in Article 17.4 of this
Tender Protocol; or

c. The fully executed Parent Company
Guarantee(s) (if any), required by
the Model EPA, are not delivered to
the Minister within the duration
described in Article 17.4 of this
Tender Protocol (to the extent they
have not been provided at the time
of submission of the Licensing Round
Application).

if none of the foregoing events occur, the Bid
Bond will be returned to the winning Applicant,
along with the documentation necessary for its
cancellation within two weeks following the date
on which the documents set forth above are
delivered to the Minister (provided they are
delivered in a timely manner).

Technical and the Commerclal Proposal

8.6 The EPA Application shall include both a
Technical Proposal and a Commercial Proposal in
the forms provided respectively in Exhibits 5 and
7 of this Tender Protocol.
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8.7 The Technical Proposal shall provide a
Minimum Work Commitment specified by the
Applicant in the submitted Technical Prpoposal
and Technical Report and for the first Exploration
Period, together with the other information
specified in Exhibit 5. The Technical Proposal
shall also include indicative United States Dollar
amounts (the “Indicative Minimum Work
Commitment Amounts”) the aggregate of which
will be set forth in Article 8.2 and Article 9.1 of
the EPA (with respect to the first Exploration
Period). The Indicative Minimum Work
Commitment Amounts are meant to be the
Applicant’s good faith estimate of the cost of
carrying out the Minimum Work Commitments
for the first Exploration Period.

8.8 The Commercial Proposal shall provide
the commercial terms open to bid specified in
Exhibit 7 of this Tender Protocol.

Minlmum Requirements

8.9 Considering the significant quantity of
available 2D and 3D seismic coverage of the
Blocks offered in this Licensing Round, the
Minimum Work Commitment to be
proposed by an Applicant in its Technical
Proposal may include drilling exploration
well (s).

Therfore, the Technical Proposal of the
Applicant shall include at leastthe carry out
of exploration activities and studies.

The Applicant shall describe in details the
proposed minimum work commitment in
the Technical Report that constitutes an
integral part of the Technical Proposal.
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8.10 EPA Applications that do not comply
with the above requirements shall not be
considered for evaluation by the Petroleum
Administration.

9. Instructions to Applicants

Submission of Licensing Round Applications (by
hand or online submission)

9.1 Licensing Round Applications shall be
submitted to the Petroleum Administration by
the Authorized Representative of the Applicant
(who shall be the legal representative for
purposes of Article 7 of the PAR) in accordance
with the Application Form set forth in Exhibit 3A
of this Tender Protocol, and must include both a
Pre-Qualification Application and an EPA
Application, including the required documents
and information described in Articles 5 and 8 of
this Tender Protocol, respectively. The
Authorized Representative must be a natural
person residing in the Republic of Lebanon or
such other place as approved by the Minister
following the consultation of the Petroleum
Administration. For this purpose, the Applicant
should request the approval of the Minister any
jurisdiction of residence that is not Lebanon in
advance of the deadline for the submission of a
Licensing Round Application as specified in the
indicative timetable in Article 4.1 of this Tender
Protocol.

9.2 Offshore Licensing Round
Applications may be submitted by hand in
accordance with the provisions of Articles
9.3 and 9.4 of this Tender Protocol, and in
accordance with other provisions of this
Tender  Protocol. Licensing  Round
Applications may be also submitted through
the internet (Online Submission) in
accordance with secure technical
procedures specified in this Tender Protocol
as per the Law no. 81 dated 10/10/2018
(Electronic Transactions and Personal Data),
and in such case, the Authorized
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Representative of the Applicant
(“Applicant”) determined in Article 1.3 of
this Tender Protocol shall upload and save all
the materials constituting the Licensing
Round Application through the internet in
accordance with the secure process of
uploading and saving as set forth Exhibit 9 of
this Tender Protocol in accordance with the
procedures stipulated in the law no. 81
dated 10/10/2018 (Electronic Transactions
and Personal Data) or other applicable laws
in the event the Minister so decides upon
recommendation of the Petroleum
Administration.

9.3 In the event of submission of the
Licensing Round Application by hand, the
Authorized Representative shall submit the
Licensing Round Application in a package
sealed with wax, addressed to the Minister.
The Authorized Person shall also submit with
the Licensing Round Application a separate
sealed envelope containing copies of the
POA and documentation evidencing the
identity of the Authorized Representative
(e.g. passport or national identity card).

9.4 In the event of submission of the
Licensing Round Application by hand
Applicants must include within the Licensing
Round Application Two (2) separate sealed
packages: the first containing the Pre-
Qualification Application and the second
containing the EPA Application. The
Licensing Round Application and the Pre-
Qualification  Application and EPA
Application contained therein must each be
clearly labeled to indicate the Block which is
the subject of the Licensing Round
Application, but should not identify the
Applicant or the Individual Companies
comprising the Applicant on any of those
packages .

ot snall JalS Jaia g Jpaad Mall Jag 3l
Gy pansl 1590 6 )RV Callal 4a gall
A3 el Bais g aatl 25aY1 4,850
Lially Jpeaill el ya) plily @y g o )
S0 e 4 a8 Galall G sadaddl cpiad
A ) sl pa 3150 Lay  (Aall Loy
PR L'.D\.AL:.A\) \ERATYARVAR GJ\_‘E
Le e s al 0l gl o (paadll iy,
i o 2l ld 3 Ja B el Y

Al
5050 b Y (b il Ja B 4,

paziall 3l Jadl o cally Gagsl il
(o) 435 cpadily o g1 3yl (b allall 2385
G of pasiall ([ Jiaal ey 5l
e (6 sing Mit e Lo gisa lilia 3kl 136y
e s=afs ysmas JS Al 2w (e 5 ) gua
el Y o (el BN il ga/hn e Culy Al
By o yiu ) s2) DSl v B cp) sShall

(s
590 b S (b i Jla 0 4,8

| siaazm of cilllall e e 3l (el il
Cilie Gandl 5 5500 B i W) Gl
el e I3 caliall (g sing O sida
s e 80 Caliall g ging g Guaall Jualal
dany o cang L)y Gl BSEf 48U e
580 b ol LAY calls (ya iy (o) Calaal
350 8 LAY lla () gie el il
3 caliall Jany of Gamg s "pansl
Gl ol sie Grsall Jaalill Qlla iy
@Al Caliall Jesy of angy "Baanall Jialal
Olsie gl 5 ClaSTal A8 pia alla Gasaly
u‘ i g "cu&\_} calaSa ) Z._;EMI Gm -?;LL."
g gaiago sl o8 ) clilicall o JS o SH)
Oa sl ol ol e Ay ga 83 (g0 s 3l
¢ e callall a3l 4338l 3o jinall S 43l

Lo



Yory/o/ 4 - VY saadl — dgenyll syl

a¢¢

Submission Requirements for Pre-Qualification
Applications

9.5 The data, information and documents
provided by the Applicant must all be in Arabic or
English or accompanied by a translation in
English in case it was not possible to translate
them into Arabic.

9.6 The data, information and documents
provided by the Applicant must be notarized by
a notary public in the country of origin and must
be consularized by the consulate with
jurisdiction over the place of notarization and
authenticated by the Ministry of Foreign Affairs
and Emigrants, in each case as specified in the
applicable Exhibits, and should be translated into
Arabic or English in case it was not possible to
translate them into Arabic.

9.7 The POA, the evidence of authority to
issue the POA described in Exhibit 3A and certain
other documents specified elsewhere in this
Tender Protocol must be Formalized. A
document is deemed “Formalized” in the
following circumstances: (i) if the document is
issued in Lebanon, it is notarized, and (ii) if it is
issued outside of Lebanon, it must be notarized
by a notary public in the country of origin,
consularized by the consulate with jurisdiction
over the place of notarization, and authenticated
by the Ministry of Foreign Affairs and Emigrants.
Applicants should note that Formalization will
require them to translate any non-Arabic
language documents into Arabic in one of the
two following manners: (i) have the documents
translated into Arabic in the country of origin,
consularized at the relevant Lebanese consulate,
and then authenticated at the Ministry of
Foreign Affairs and Emigrants in Lebanon; or (ii)
as advised by the Lebanese consulate in certain
jurisdictions, have the documents in the foreign
language consularized at the Lebanese consulate
in such jurisdiction, translated into Arabic by a
certified translator in Lebanon, notarized by a
public notary in Lebanon, authenticated by the
Ministry of Justice, and finally authenticated by
the Ministry of Foreign Affairs and Emigrants.
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Applicants are advised to contact the Lebanese
consulate in their jurisdiction as to the
translation requirements applicable to the
consularization of documents.

9.8 In the event of submission of the
Licensing Round Application by hand the
Applicant may submit the original data,
information and documents specified at
Schedule A of Exhibit 3D of this Tender Protocol
with the Pre-Qualification Application or copies
of such data, information and documents
provided to show the original data and
documents upon submission of the Pre-
Qualification Application and prior to their
Formalization, provided that the Applicant
submits the Formalized data, information and
documents within Seven {7) weeks following the
Closing Date. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in
all cases the POA set forth in Exhibit 3C of this
Tender Protocol and the document evidencing
that the person signing the POA on behalf of the
Individual Company is authorized to do so, shall
be both Notarized by a notary public in the
country of origin only when submitted with the
Pre-Qualification Application. The Minister may
extend this deadline for Three (3) additional
weeks by a justified decision upon the
recommendation of the Petroleum
Administration. If the Applicant fails to submit
the required Notarized data, information and
documents, in accordance with Articles 9.6 and
9.7 of this Tender Protocol, within the deadline
fixed or extended in this Article, the evaluation’s
results of the Applicant’'s Technical and
Commercial Proposals shall be disregraded by a
decision of the Minister upon the
recommendation of the Petroleum
Administration

9.9 In the event of Online Submission of
Applications, the following procedures shall be
applied:

a- the Authorized Representative of the Applicant
shall:
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1) Upload and save in the electronic folder
pertaining to the Licensing Round Application all
materials required for pre-qualification (Pre-
qualification Materials) and Administrative
Materials stated in Articles 1.3.1 and 5.7 of this
Tender Protocol, in any electronic format that is
universally supported and secure, such as
encrypted, in accordance with the process set
forth in Exhibit 9, and without these documents
being formalized in accordance with Articles 9.6
and 9.7 of this Tender.Protocol The Application
Form set forth at Exhibit 3A of this Tender
Protocol and signed by the Authorized
Representative must be uploaded and saved,
provided to submit the original Application
Form to the Lebanese  Petroleum
Administration in the form stipulated in Exhibit
3A of this Tender Protocol following the
procedures stipulated in Paragrah (f) of this
Article (Without being Formalized).

2) Upload and save in the electronic folder
pertaining to the Licensing Round Application a
copy of the Power of Attorney of Authorized
Representative ("POA") set forth at Exhibit 3C of
this Tender Protocol signed by each Individual
Company comprising the Applicant and a copy
of the evidence of authority to issue the POA on
behalf of each Individual Company (stated in
Article 5.7 of this Tender Protocol), both
notarized only by a notary public in the country
of origin, and submitted in any electronic format
that is universally supported and secure, such as
encrypted, in accordance with the process set
forth in Exhibit 9 of this Tender Protocol.

3) Upload and save in the electronic folder
pertaining to the Licensing Round Application
the materials constituting the Exploration and
Production Agreement Application as specified
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in Article 8.6 of this Tender Protocol, in any
electronic format that is universally supported
and secure, such as encrypted, and in
accordance with the process set forth in Exhibit
9 of this Tender Protocol.

b- Provisions of Article 5.4 of this Tender Protocol
shall be observed.

c- The Authorized Representative shall complete
the electronic procedures to upload and save the
Licensing Round Application and its content
within the deadline for submission of Applications
to participate in this Licensing Round, as
determined by a decision of the Minister, and
shall notify the Petroleum Administration of such
and complete the procedures in accordance with
the process set forth in Exhibit 9 of this Tender
Protocol. And the Authorized Representative may
allow delegated persons on behalf of Individual
Companies constituting the Applicant to upload
and save only the materials pertaining to the Pre-
qualification Application of each Individual
Company.

d- The Authorized Representative shall, in case of
pre-qualification of the Applicant he/she
represents, complete the procedures in
accordance with the process set forth in Exhibit 9
of this Tender Protocol and that enables the
Petroleum Administration to access the
Exploration and  Production  Agreement
Application pertaining to the Applicant, upon
issuance of the Minister’s decision related to the
results of pre-qualification.

e- The applicant may review Exhibit 10 of this
Tender Protocol, which includes the list of
documents mentioned in paragraphs (a-1), (a-2)
and (a-3) of Article 9.9 of this Tender Protocol and
related information.

f- Each Applicant shall submit to the Petroleum
Administration, by hand or by certified mail, all
Pre-qualification Materials, including the Power of
Attorney of Authorized Representative (“POA”)
set forth at Exhibit 3C signed by each Individual
Company comprising the Applicant and the
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evidence of authority to issue the POA signed by
each Individual Company, shall be submitted
Formalized in accordance with the procedures set
forth in Articles 9.6 and 9.7 of this Tender
Protocol, within 7 (seven) weeks from the closing
date for the submission of Licensing Round
Applications. The Minister may extend this
deadline for 3 (three) additional weeks by a
justified decision upon the recommendation of
the Lebanese Petroleum Administration.

g- The date of submission of the documents
mentioned in paragraph (f) of this Article by
certified mail shall be considered as the date of
submission of such documents, on the condition
to provide evidence of the date of submission. The
signature of the recipient on the delivery receipt,
on behalf of the Petroleum Administration, shall
be considered as an evidence of submission of
such documents.

h- The result of the evaluation of the Technical
and Commercial Proposals pertaining to a pre-
qualified Applicant shall be disregarded, by a
decision of the Minister upon the
recommendation of the Petroleum
Administration, if the pre-qualified Applicant fails
to submit the Pre-qualification Materials including
the Power of Attorney of Authorized
Representative and the evidence of authority to
issue the POA on behalf of each Individual
Company, both formalized in accordance with the
procedures set forth in Articles 9.6 and 9.7 of this
Tender Protocol and within the deadline as fixed
or extended in paragraph (f) of this Article.

i- Each pre-qualified Applicant shall submit to the
Petroleum Administration, by hand or by certified
mail, the original Bid Bond within 7 (seven)
working days of the issuance of the Minister’s
decision related to the results of pre-qualification.

j- The date of submission of the original Bid bond
by certified mail shall be considered as the date of
submission of such Bid Bond, on the condition to
provide evidence of the date of submission. The
signature of the reciplent on the delivery receipt,
on behalf of the Petroleum Administration, shall

168 Leade Walias «8a yite 4S5 (S e Al
Oe V5 9,7 ofaldl A saaaall ciled a2l
el (o) ¥ Alga 8 el dag 3l i
o Y il 20 Alge oLl g i 01
Ugall 030 3208 3550 (Sag 5 i) 5l 5 ) 50
ol Jlaa Jl iy Agilca) b 2D (1) 32

Sl gUad 3 )1} A4 dsa 53 o

b 5583 it ) play) g NS aaing -
Osamaall 3,0l A Balall 038 (e () A
'@)UQWL)JQ‘M\ Y ﬁﬁﬂ@)\:\s
J8 50 pliad pas 2l i ey gl
o3a ppil] Bl sl il jla &) o gl

Calatiuall

ﬂ\wﬂ\F}LMMY-C
).\\_m J\_)i.\_, sdu\ ?M u.!A.\La.“ gs_)\aﬂ\_s
Al ¢ Ayl paa i o ol 59 0o
pailal) Clatiwnal) aadii e ilaSyy lina
Saall J 55 dian g Loy Banall Jialill allal
Lada g diua Gl allue g ajiall A 6l
3OS oo Al S 5 s e a8 gall s
el s L g Lgle 183l iaa o83 jite 48,3
Jida e Y5 4,7 cpdalall 8 521 aal)
saaall ol Baasall Ugall paia Mol da g -
Salall sda (e () 3AAN G

A o Biae aliali 23 Glla anie S e - da
d.a‘ u}ma.sj'l .la_).x!'l d.la...ul_,.i_gll ..1.11144.\.\9.“ U‘“
Jee ‘.\g‘ (Aa.\..u) Y JOA 3oy jall AS aiia
gy Glddl sl S8 )sa—a fa ) (e

o) Jaalal

'o.\g\_}d\i.\\.iSd_m‘ &1y Fu )l adind - (g
b.!g‘)a“ aus HM@J\"SU}“'—“‘“ ..\.a‘).\.“
u&d\&ﬂy}m;c&hfi\@_)\:\a\.ﬂkﬂ
B3] bl at] e Kl 08 (0 s

RUFNIFAVRPeErd



4¢4

Yory/o/va o Y Y saadl - danyll a5l

be considered as an evidence of submission of the
Bid Bond.

k- The evaluation results of the Technical and
Commercial Proposals of each Applicant that is
pre-qualified to be awarded an Exploration and
Production Agreement and that fails to submit
the original Bid Bond within the deadline set
forth in paragraph (i) of this Article shall be
disregarded.

9.10 In accordance with Article 5.7 above, each
Pre-Qualification Application must include
evidence of payment of the Retrieval Fee (in the
form of the receipt to be issued by the Petroleum
Administration).

Submission Requirements for EPA Applications

9.11 EPA Applications must comply with the
submission requirements described above for
Pre-Qualification Applications in Articles 9.3
through 9.6, as the same may be applied to the
data, information and documents required to be
included in the EPA Application.

Additlonal Requirements for Licensing Round
Applications

9.12 Applicants undertake to inform the
Petroleum Administration promptly of any
material changes occurring after the date of the
Licensing Round Application with respect to the
information disclosed therein.

9.13  The checklist of documents submitted
included in Exhibit 3B of this Tender Protocol
contain the applicable requirements for
Formalization of documents and translation. All
documents are to be submitted in hard copy and
in soft copy (portable document format PDF)
unless otherwise indicated. In the event of
Online Submission of Applications the provisions
of Article 9.9 and Exhibits 9 and 10 of this Tender
Protocol shall apply.
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9.14 In the event that the required
information or a required document may not be
produced under the applicable laws in an
Individual Company’s country of incorporation
or where an Individual Company or an Applicant
is unable to provide a document without
incurring prohibitive efforts or costs, the
Petroleum Administration may authorize such
Individual Company or Applicant to provide
alternative documentation or information. The
Petroleum Administration reserves the right to
disqualify an Applicant or an Individual Company
if it fails to provide such alternative
documentation or information.

9.15 Upon submitting its Licensing Round
Application, each Applicant shall receive a
receipt signed by the Petroleum Administration
attesting that a Licensing Round Application has
been submitted and the date of such submission.
And in the event of Online Submission of
Applications the procedures (Procedures for
Online Submission of the Second Licensing
Round Applications) stipulated in Exhibit 9 of this
Tender Protocol sall apply.

9.16 An Applicant, at its discretion, may
include in its Application such additional
information that it deems relevant or useful,
even if such information is not required by this
Tender Protocol.

10. Validity of Licensing Round Applications

10.1. A Licensing Round Application shall
remain valid for a period of one hundred eighty
(180) days as from the Closing Date.

10.2. The Minister of Energy and Water may,
upon a recommendation of the Petroleum
Administration at least fifteen (15) days prior to
the expiry of the period of the validity of the
Licensing Round Applications, decide to extend
such period by an additional period of time
which will be further specified by the Minister
(but which in any event shall not exceed ninety
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(90) days). Any further extensions of the validity
of the Licensing Round Application shall be
subject to the approval of the Applicant.

11, Payment of the Retrieval Fee

11.1. The payment of the Retrieval Fee shall be
made to the Treasury Account, Ministry of
Finance of the Republic of Lebanon within the
period defined in the timetable in Article 4.1, as
per the procedures determined by the Minister’s
decision.

11.2.  The Applicant making the payment will
be delivered a receipt upon acknowledgement of
payment.

12. Costs and expenses incurred by the

Applicant
12.1. Each Applicant shall bear all costs and

expenses incurred in the preparation and
submission of its Licensing Round Application.
Regardless of the final outcome of the Licensing
Round (including, for the avoidance of doubt,
any cancellation of the Licensing Round), the
Petroleum Administration will in no case be
responsible or liable for any such costs and
expenses incurred by any Applicant or Individual
Company comprising an Applicant. Article 4.2
shall be taken into consideration regarding the
cost recoverability provisions related to the
purchase price of the 3D seismic data.

13. Confidentiality _of  Licensing Round
Application
13.1. Anyinformation notin the public domain

contained in a Licensing Round Application shall
be kept confidential by the Petroleum
Administration, provided, however, that
following the announcement of the winning
Applicants the Petroleum Administration may
disclose the contents of the Commercial
Proposal and the Technical Proposal (excluding
the Technical Report described at Exhibit 6,
which shall remain confidential).
Notwithstanding the foregoing, any information
may be disclosed as is required by applicable
laws.
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14. Model EPA

14.1. The Model EPA applicable to this
Licensing Round is attached to this Tender
Protocol as Exhibit 1.

14.2. The following provides a general
overview of the EPA that will be entered into
between the Lebanese State and a winning
Applicant in the Licensing Round for the right to
conduct Petroleum Activities in the selected
offshore Block. The Applicant will be required to
enter into an EPA in a form identical to the Model
EPA provided at Exhibit 1, updated to
incorporate the relevant terms of the
Applicant’s Technical Proposal and Commercial
Proposal including any revisions hereto agreed
between the Minister and the Applicant and
approved by the Council of Ministers. This
overview does not amend or modify in any way
the terms of the Model EPA.

14.3. Pursuant to the OPRL, an EPA shall be
executed by no fewer than three (3) Right
Holders, among which one shall be the Operator.
Each “Individual Company” that is awarded a
petroleum Right may appoint a Signing Affiliate
in accordance with the requirements of
Articles 18 and 19 of this Tender Protocol.

14.4. The EPA extends over the exploration,
appraisal, development and production up until
decommissioning and accounts for all necessary

legal provisions in relation to Petroleum
Activities. Under the EPA, the Operator is
responsible for carrying out day-to-day

Petroleum Activities on behalf of the other Right
Holders, and all Right Holders are jointly and
severally liable for their obligations.

14.5. The EPA authorizes the Right Holders to
explore for oil and gas during an Exploration
Phase of maximum Six (6) years, which is divided
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into two periods: a First Exploration Period of
Three (3) years and a second Exploration Period
of Two (2) years (that may be extended One (1)
additional year based on Minister's decision
upon the recommendation of the Petroleum
Administration. Upon approval of the Council of
Ministers, the Exploration Phase may be
extended for a period not to exceed Ten (10)
years.

14.6. In the event that the Minimum Work
Commitment suggested by the Right Holders,
upon submission of the Application to
participate in the Licensing Round, does not
include drilling an Exploration Well during the
first Exploration Period, Right Holders shall
decide, during the First Exploration Period and
within a period not exceeding twelve months
from the date of approval of the Exploration Plan
by the Minister, whether or not they commit to
drill an Exploration Well in the Block awarded to
them by an Exploration and Production
Agreement, within the period specified in Article
14.6 of the current Tender Protocol, and shall
notify the Minister and the Petroleum
Administration about their decision to drill the
well or not before the expiry of such period.

In the event that the Right Holders commit to
drill an Exploration Well within the deadline
specified in Article 14.6 of this Tender Protocol,
they shall sign the document of commitment to
drill the Well pursuant to Annex G of the EPA
(Form of Commitment to drill an Exploration
Well During the First Exploration Period) and
shall submit to the Minister the Minimum Work
Commitment Guarantee related to this Well.

The provisions of Article 14.6 of this Tender
Protocol shall not apply in the event that the
Minimum Work Commitment suggested by the
Right Holders, upon submission of the
Application to participate in the Licensing
Round, includes drilling an Exploration Well
during the first Exploration Period. Therefore, in
this case, the Applicant shall submit to the
Minister, upon signature of the Exploration and
Production Agreement, the Work Commitment
Guarantee to fulfill the work obligations
determined in its Technical Proposal.
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14.7 In the event that the Rights Holders
decide not to commit to drill an Exploration Well
in the Block awarded to them by an Exploration
and Production Agreement, their decision is
deemed to be a termination of their petroleum
license granted by an Exploration and Production
Agreement and a termination of all their rightsin
the Block subject to an Exploration and
Production Agreement.

In the event that the Minister and the Petroleum
Administration are not notified about any
decision by the Rights Holders regarding the
drilling of the Exploration Well within the period
specified in Article 14.6 of this Tender Protocol,
this shall be deemed as a decision by the Rights
Holders not to commit to drill the well.

The Right Holders may submit an Exploration
Plan for the second Exploration Period to the
Minister with a copy to the Petroleum
Administration. The Exploration Plan related to
the Second Exploration Period shall include the
commitment of Right Holders to drill at least one
Exploration Well during the Second Exploration
Period and this Well is deemed to be among the
Minimum Work Commitment Obligations
related to the Second Exploration Period and the
Right Holders shall sign with the Minister the
document of “Commitment to drill an
Exploration Well during the Second Exploration
Period as per the Form provided in Annex H of
the EPA and the Right Holders shall submit to the
Minister the Minimum Work Commitment
Guarantee related to the well that they
commited to drill during the Second Exploration
Period.

14.8 Petroleum produced from the Block
covered by the EPA will be split between the
Lebanese State and the Right Holders. First, the
Right Holders must pay Royalties (in kind or in
cash) to the Lebanese State, equal to 4% of the
gas produced, and a varying percentage
(between 5% and 12%) of the oil produced.
Second, the Cost Recovery Ceiling is up to 80% of
the disposable Petroleum which is allocated to
the Right Holders to recover their costs, with the
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actual percentage determined by the winning
Applicant’s Commercial Proposal. The Profit
Petroleum is split between the State and the
Right Holders in proportions determined by the
winning Applicant’s Commercial Proposal under
a formula pursuant to which the States’s share
increases after the Right Holders have recovered
their Costs. Right Holders are subject to the
provisions of Law No.57/2017 (Tax Provisions
related to Petroleum Activities in accordance
with Law 132/2010).

149 The EPA requires the Right Holders to
conduct Petroleum Activities in accordance with
Best International Petroleum Industry Standards,
to safeguard health, safety and the environment
and remedy any accidents, and to pay cash into a
Decommissioning Fund to ensure that facilities
are properly dismantled during
Decommissioning.

The Right Holders must give preference to
Lebanese goods and services in awarding
contracts in connection with facility’s
construction or procurement of goods and
services related to Petroleum Activities when the
terms submitted by Lebanese companies are
equal to the terms of their competitors.

The Right Holders and their contractors and
subcontractors shall hire qualified Lebanese
nationals if available , and at least 80% of the
employees must be Lebanese nationals, in the
Development and Production Phase, with an
exemption when the 80% is not reachable.

15. Evaluation

15.1 The Petroleum Administration may
eliminate any Licensing Round Application thatis
lacking information, that is incomplete or thatis
missing any required documentation.

15.2 The Petroleum Administration shall
eliminate any Licensing Round Application that
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does not meet the conditions set forth in this
Tender Protocol.

15.3 The Petroleum Administration shall review
and evaluate the EPA Applications on the basis of
the following:

® The Technical Proposal (Exhibit 5),
including:

©  The minimum work commitment
proposed by the Applicant for the first
exploration period.

e The Indicative Minimum Work
Commitment Amount provided
by the Applicant for the first
exploration period; and

¢ The Technical Report in line with
the guidelines as per Exhibit 6.

® The Commercial Proposal (Exhibit 7)

154 During the evaluation process, the
Petroleum Administration reserves the right to
request that additional information,
documentation and/or clarification be provided
by the Applicant, within a specified time period.

15.5 The Petroleum Administration may retain
experts and consultants, where it deems
appropriate, subject to obtaining appropriate
confidentiality undertakings from those experts
and consultants.

16 Evaluation Mark

16.1 The table below identifies the criteria of
the Technical Proposal and the Commercial
Proposal that the Petroleum Administration shall
evaluate, and the grading methodology. The
Technical Report submitted in line with the
guidelines as per Exhibit 6 and the Indicative

ol o clllall o 58 5 gl aali Yo,
bl

el (0 Glaall) Sl G el - @

Jeadl Cla gl Y1 ol o
bl adie J (g0 4 g yaall
sd s ISR Bae e

SR NI T
cllall e U (e Al
3 el ALY 50 e

& pedly L q.'\.iﬂ| 2l o
(o B2aall AJal_ )Y 2t al)

U Ggald

(Véa“‘)gj.)ﬂ‘ua)d'- ®

G e gl Aglee DA (diygdl Laiiag Vo, ¢
C_lLa‘_a.a_..l“ J‘/J [ K\ A _,‘/_, LLI\A)LA&_AL
Upa v callal i 18 (e L) Aoz

B Ay )

sl md pa 2latill Ay ) 0S4y V0,0
Ja)_&,\t. L’uéﬂ‘.\gj\.afla\;a,:ﬁj_;ﬁ_mb
e Ramiiall 4y i) Cilagad e Janiouy)

T W sl yuall R

poidll Ade 1%
il (a pell Cail g olial Jgandl gy V1,0
5030 Ay 0 485 Chgsn Al (g il i pall
Aldall il A8y yla g Lagay sifiy J 5 i)
A:I_,i]‘cntoc-bl-—lgl.q,‘nm1 ‘.,.ﬁﬂ‘ _)_.g)a'ﬂlu.h.;
daalls 1 Galall & 333 sl Al Y




LAY

voxy/o/3a o ¥ Y saall - dgene i 535l

Minimum Work Commitment Amount will be
graded separately. The Minister and the
Provisional Winner or the Second Ranking
Applicant (as the case may be) will attempt to
agree upon the final amounts to be set forth in
the relevant Articles of the EPA.

16.2 The Technical Proposal will contribute up
to twenty (20) marks of the overall grade. It will
be evaluated based on the indicative amount of
the minimum work commitment for the First
Exploration period (15) marks, and the
evaluation of the technical report (5) marks,
based on the following pro-rata formula:

N
Technical mark = (—— X 15) +K

Niax

(“K” is the mark of the Technical Report
earned by the Applicant)

16.3 The Commercial Proposals will be
evaluated on the basis of the total government
take under a number of identified scenarios. The
Petroleum Administration shall evaluate the
Commercial Proposals for any given Block using
the same set of scenarios (with the same
assumptions regarding costs and production
profiles) in order to compare the Commercial
Proposals for each Block. The scenarios shall not
provide for cost and price escalation. Exhibit 8
includes detailed information regarding the

scenarios and the commercial evaluation
methodology.
16.4 The respective Technical mark and

Commerclal mark will be added in order to
obtain a global mark.
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Component

Marks

Technical (T)

Indicative Work
Commitment Amount

N
Technical Mark 1 = N x 15

max

Where,

N refers to the proposed indicative Work Commitment
Amount of the applicant for a given block in the
first Exploration period.

Nmax refers to the maximum number of proposed
indicative Work Commitment Amount amongst
Applicants for a given block in the first
Exploration period.

Technical report

Technical Mark 2 = K from0to 5
Where,

K refers to the grade of the applicant's submitted
technical report based on the guidelines of Exhibit 6.

Commerclal (C)

Discounted Average
Total Government Take
(TGT) under predefined
scenarios

. _ TGT —TGTyy,
Commercial Mark = TG — TGTyr, X 80

Where,

TGTmin is computed as the average discounted Total
Government Take (calculated based on the
predefined scenarios) using the following
commercial parameters:

A=B=30%
CP = 80%.

TGTma is the highest average discounted Total
Government Take (calculated based on the
predefined scenarios) among all commercial bids
received in a given block.

Global Mark (T14T2+C)

(Maximum Mark: 100)
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16.5 The Petroleum Administration shall
prepare and submit to the Minister a report with
respect to the evaluation of the Licensing Round
Applications by Block, including a ranking of the
Applicants on the basis of their respective global
mark as determined in accordance with Article
16.4 of this Tender Protocol and
recommendations of the Petroleum
Administration on the selection of the Applicants
to proceed. This report shall be kept confidential
by the Petroleum Administration.
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4.

16.6 As a result of its overall evaluation in the
context of the Block concerned and the
objectives of the Licensing Round, the Petroleum
Administration may recommend selecting no
Applicant as the winning Applicant for a Block.

17 _Conclusion of the Tender

171 The Minister based on the
recommendation of the Petroleum
Administration shall decide, on the basis of the
report referred to in Article 16.5 of this Tender
Protocol, to invite the first ranking Applicant for
a given Block (the “First Ranking Applicant”) to
proceed to the negotiation stage.

17.2  For each Block, the negotiation stage will
be conducted in accordance with the following
procedure:

17.2.1 The First Ranking Applicant will be
invited to discuss its Proposal with the
Minister in cooperation with the
Petroleum Administration.

17.2.2  The First Ranking Applicant may be
requested to improve its Proposal for
any aspects that are considered by the
Minister, upon the recommendation of
the Petroleum Administration, to be
unrealistic or sub-optimal.

17.2.3 The Minister in cooperation with
the Petroleum Administration and the
First Ranking Applicant will discuss any
potential improvements to the First
Ranking Applicant's Proposal and will
attempt to agree upon any such
improvements.

17.2.4  If the Minister and the First Ranking
Applicant reach  agreement on
improvements to the First Ranking
Applicant's Proposal, the Minister will
submit a report to the Council of
Ministers containing the resuits of the
negotiations and a recommendation
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that the State sign an EPA with the First
Ranking Applicant as Provisional Winner,
in accordance with Article 18-3 of the
OPRL.

17.2.5 If the First Ranking Applicant and

the Minister fail to reach agreement on
improvements to the First Ranking
Applicant's Proposal proposed by the
Minister, the second ranking Applicant
for the relevant Block (the "Second
Ranking Applicant") will be invited by the
Minister to follow the procedure
described in Articles 17.2.1 to 17.2.3
above in place of the First Ranking
Applicant, if the Second Ranking
Applicant's  Commercial Proposal
received a higher mark than the First
Ranking Applicant's Commercial
Proposal in the evaluation described in
Article 16.3.

17.2.6 If the Minister and the Second

Ranking Applicant reach agreement on
improvements to the Second Ranking
Applicant's Proposal which render it
superior to that of the First Ranking
Applicant's Proposal, the Minister shall
conduct additional negotiations with the
First Ranking Applicant aimed at
matching or exceeding the
improvements proposed to the Second
Ranking Applicant's Proposal.
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17.2.7 Ifthe Minister and the First Ranking  caslia § 5 3ll Ja g Ja GSIYVLYLY

Applicant reach an agreement on such
improvements to the First Ranking
Applicant's Proposal, the procedure
described in Article 17.2.4 shall apply.
Otherwise, the Minister may submit a
report to the Council of Ministers
containing the results of the
negotiations and a recommendation
that the State sign an EPA with the
Second Ranking Applicant as Provisional
Winner, in accordance with Article 18-3
of the OPRL.

17.2.8 Without prejudice to Article 17.5
of this Tender Protocol, if the
Minister and the Second Ranking
Applicant fail to reach agreement
on improvements to the Second
Ranking Applicant's Proposal, the
Minister shall have the discretion
to recommend to the Council of
Ministers that the State sign an
EPA  with the First Ranking
Applicant as Provisional Winner in
the form of the definitive Model
EPA, as supplemented by the

Commercial Proposal ~and
Technical  Proposal originally
submitted by the Provisional

Winner (including the Indicative

Minimum Work Commitment
Amounts), and by any
improvements subsequently

agreed by the Minister and the
Provisional Winner.
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be deemed an offer made to the State by the
individual Companies comprising the relevant
Applicant, to enter into the EPA, as
supplemented by the Commercial Proposal and
Technical Proposal submitted by such Applicant
(including the Indicative Minimum Work
Commitment Amounts), together with any
improvements subsequently agreed by the
Applicant and the Minister, and such offer shall
remain effective during the period described in
Article 10.

17.4 At the request of the Minister, the
Provisional Winner shall deliver to the Minister,
within Thirty (30) days of such request, a fully
executed EPA together with all fully executed
Parent Company Guarantees(s) required by the
definitive Model EPA (to the extent that these
have not been provided at the time of
submission of the Licensing Round Application),
as well as the fully executed Work Commitment
Guarantee for the first Exploration Period. Upon
receipt of such fully executed agreement and
other documents, the Minister shall submit a
report to the Council of Ministers containing the
results of the negotiations with the selected
Applicant(s) and the relevant fully executed
agreement with its annexes for approval. The
EPA shall become effective from the date of the
Council of Ministers’ approval. Following such
approval, the Minister will countersign the
agreement(s).

17.5 The Council of Ministers reserves the
right, in its sole discretion, to decide whether or
not to award an EPA and to accept or reject any
Licensing Round Application, for any reason it
deems proper upon the suggestion of the
Minister based on the recommendation of the
Petroleum Administration.

18. Substitution of Affiliates

18.1  Any Individual Company that is awarded
a Petroleum Right may appoint an Affiliate (the
“Signing Affiliate”) to enter into the relevant EPA,

Jb e gl ) Lidie e o gl 50
A3y ciplall il 3 3 52 pikall S M
;.SL.S tam‘_,d._.&_uiml fl_»_‘r..'n...';
i e pally (bl el LellaSil
sl el 3 Lug) 134 ol e S (ga (ipalial
((aall i gal (33Y) 32l ol 55Y (V!
o el Y 35 Al i) lipsan’ (5l 2y
1 gy ¢ slly ldal gNia (o B2 Sy
o Aiaall 3l I Jgmiall (g Jlss m jalt

,“.“-\-“-L_,)ﬁ“ _).'Ii.ho.a Yo Balall

) cibpall 3l axiy ¢ gl callal eliy VY€
g oom Lags (F0) 0D g s < 9550
Aad g Y1 g ALBSE L) A ¢ 355l ol
21 48 8l CYUS/ANS Y Al Yyl
LSS WY AUSY gl 23 gaill A & gllaal
s,,aqi‘ﬂt_,z._.‘.'ﬁlg,.d.k‘.pismaiwi
Q\*ﬂr‘m‘oh.n"%)l‘sswi\)ﬂl
o) 385 Al pay (3 L (b Janl)
PETI LIRTR Y P> - PUN B (Ao | P
Sl e Y gual dal gall (5 A Y Cilaiiunally
2 iy o) )5l e (o8} 8 b 0
Ol g3l cllall ( gadie/pia o Cilsin giall
ALl cald Cigiasy) g aa JLisl/e L) 5 )
c,.....:,t..,hm,.n‘unxﬂ,._lm_,.n
Kbl ga e 5 (pe 32U AEY1 5 HLASILYI A i)
U siy il gall 03¢ lai \gale o)) sl ulaa
(CILIRSYVABEYY adb iy )59l o)y sl pulaa

Agbuaiiun¥) dilalusy col )5 gl Gulpa Jaiing NV, 0
SV A e ks O (g 6B ikl
) e A gall g LaS Lgaia pae o ZLSY1y
@Y iy o a5l 53 b il lla
oo Aiaaall 35 g0 2 SEY oLy Liulia o 3 (g

| Al s

Aag jall S )8l Jlagiust VA
Ga e 8 e 53 jile 48 3 (5Y (Say VA
38 5 8I) L At yo 48 ) s o (g 5




Yory/o/va o ¥ Y saal _ dpanyl 5y sal

an¢

provided the conditions set forth in this Article
are met. The Signing Affiliate meeting the
conditions set forth in this Article is deemed pre-
qualified within the meaning of the OPRL.

18.2  Any such Signing Affiliate must be wholly
owned by and under the Control of the
appointing Individual Company.

18.3  The shares of the Signing Affiliate must
be either:

18.3.1 Directly or indirectly wholly
owned by the Individual Company.
For purposes of this Article, a
company is deemed to be directly
wholly owned by the Individual
Company if the Individual
Company owns directly 100% of
the shares of the owned company.
As an exception to the foregoing, if
required by the law of the
Jurisdiction in which the owned
company is organized, some of the
owned company’s shares may also
be held by:

(i) the owned company’s directors
(pursuant to the legal requirement
that a director also be a
shareholder of the owned
company) and/or

(ii)such minimum number of other
shareholders as are required for the
owned company to be properly
formed under the law of its
jurisdiction of organization, in
which case the owned company
shall be deemed to be wholly
owned by the Individual Company,
but only if the shares held pursuant
to clauses (i) and (ii) represent the
strict minimum number of shares
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4o
required to meet the legal
requirements in the owned
company’s jurisdiction of

organization and do not represent
more than 1% of the owned
company’s share capital

A company Is deemed to be
indirectly wholly owned by the
Individual Company if all of its
shares are owned by the Individual
Company or companies directly or
indirectly owned by the Individual
Company (subject to the limited
exception set forth in Article 18.3.1
of this Tender Protocol); or

18.3.2 Partly owned by the Individual
Company, with all of the remaining
shares in the Signing Affiliate
owned by the state under whose
laws the Individual Company is
organized or agencies or
instrumentalities of such State, or
companies wholly owned by such
state.

18.4  The Signing Affiliate must be a joint stock
company whose object must permit the conduct
of Petroleum Activities. The Signing Affiliate may
be incorporated in Lebanon pursuant to Article 9
of the Law No. 57/2017 (Tax Provisions related to
Petroleum Activities in accordance with Law
132/2010).If the Signing Affiliate is incorporated
outside the Lebanese territories, the Signing
Affiliate shall be incorporated, registered and
headquartered in a jurisdiction fully transparent
to Lebanese authorities. Upon request, the
Petroleum Administration will determine
whether a certain jurisdiction would be
considered as a jurlsdiction that is fully
transparent to Lebanese authorities.
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18.5  The Signing Affiliate must, as a condition
to being eligible to sign the EPA, provide the
disclosures and meet the criteria set forth in
Schedule A to Exhibit 3D(except that, in lieu of
the document required by paragraph 1 of
Schedule A, the Signing Affiliate must present to
the  Petroleum Administration evidence
(whether in the form of an extract of a
commercial register, a copy of a resolution of the
board of directors, or a legal opinion by a
reputable attorney practicing in the jurisdiction
of incorporation of the Signing Affiliate) showing
that the person it proposes to sign the EPA on its
behalf is duly authorized to bind the Signing
Affiliate). The requirements of Article 9.6
regarding  translation, notarization and
consularization apply to such documents as if
they had been submitted as part of the Pre-
Qualification Application. The evidence to be
submitted of the authority of the person signing
the EPA on behalf of the Signing Affiliate shall be
Formalized.

18.6  On or prior to the signing of the EPA by
such Signing Affiliate, the Individual Company
must issue a parent company guarantee with
respect to the Signing Affiliate in the form
attached as an Annex E to the Model EPA.

19. Certain Conditions

Conditions related to companies relying on the
credentials of Controlling parent companies

19.1  Certain Individual Companies may be
pre-qualified by relying in part on the credentials
of a parent company that Controls such
Individual Company. On or prior to the
submission of a Licensing Round Application bya
consortium  comprising  such Individual
Company, such parent company must issue a
parent company guarantee with respect to the
Individual Company (or its Signing Affiliate, if it is
to appoint one pursuant to Article 18 of this
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Tender Protocol) in the form attached as Annex
E to the Model EPA.

Replacement of Guarantees

19.2 In the event where the obligations of an
Individual Company are guaranteed by (a Parent
Company Guarantee (as described in Article 19.1
above), and such Individual Company elects to
appoint a Signing Affiliate to enter into the
Exploration and Production Agreement, the
Minister reserves the right to require that a
Parent Company Guarantee be replaced by a
guarantee in the same form but guaranteeing
the obligations of the Signing Affiliate.
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EXHIBIT 2 - ¥ !

SCHEDULE A OF EXHIBIT 2 — FRAMEWORK GIS PROJECT

REF | DESCRIPTION FORMAT

1 | Culture

1.1 Lebanon Shaded Area ESRI-Digital

1.2 Coastline ESRI-Digital

1.3 Countries Names ESRI-Digital

1.4 Cities ESRI-Digital

1.5 Rivers ESRI-Digital

1.6 Lakes ESRI-Digital
2 International Boundaries

2.1 Lebanon Onshore Boundaries ESRI-Digital

2.2 Lebanon Offshore Boundaries ESRI-Digital

2.3 Regional International Boundaries ESRI-Digital
3 | Contract Areas/Blocks _

3.1 | Contract Areas / Blocks ESRI-Digital
4 Wells '

4.1 Well Coordinates ESRI-Digital

4.2 Well Attributes (Formation Tops) Digital

4.3 Well Summary Digital
5 | Geology (Onshore)

5.1 Stratigraphic Column pdf

5.2 Geological Cross Sections (Hyperlinked) Pdf

5.3 Stratigraphic Correlation (Hyperlinked) Pdf

5.4 Field Trip Photographs pdf

5.5 Geology (200,000 Scale) ESRI-Digital

5.6 Structural Elements (Regional) ESRI-Digital
6 | Geophysical Surveys

6.1 2D Seismic Surveys ESRI-Digital

6.2 3D Seismic Surveys ESRI-Digital

6.3 Airborne Surveys ESRI-Digital

7 | Seismic Interpretation

71 Regional Seismic Profiles (Hyperlinked) pdf

7.2 Seabed Horizon (Two Way Time) ESRI-Digital

7.3 Seabed Horizon (Depth) ESRI-Digital
8 | Topography and Bathymetry Sy

8.1 Regional Bathymetry 250m ESRI-Digital

8.2 Gebco - Topography ESRI-Digital

8.3 Gebco - Global Bathymetry ESRI-Digital

8.4 Lebanon Hillshade 50m ESRI-Digital
9 | Presentations and Reports

9.1 Overview pdf

9.2 Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA) ESRI-Digital & pdf

Volumes 1to 5
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EXHIBIT 2 - ¥ )
SCHEDULE B OF EXHIBIT 2 — DIGITAL ATLAS GIS PROJECT

~ REF | DESCRIPTION FORMAT
11 Lebanon Shaded Area ESRI-Digital
1.2 Coastline ESRI-Digital
1.3 Countries Names ESRI-Digital
14 Cities ESRI-Digital
15 Rivers ESRI-Digital
1.6 Lakes ESRI-Digital
2 | International Boundaries ST
2.1 Lebanon Onshore Boundaries ESRI-Digital
2.2 Lebanon Offshore Boundaries ESRI-Digital
2.3 Regional International Boundaries ESRI-Digital
3 | ContractAreas/Blocks _
3.1 | Contract Areas / Blocks ESRI-Digital
4.1 Well Coordinates ESRI-Digital
4.2 Well Attributes (Formation Tops) Digital
43 Well Summary Digital
75 [Geologylomshore)
5.1 Stratigraphic Column pdf
5.2 Geological Cross Sections (Hyperlinked) Pdf
5.3 Stratigraphic Correlation from Wells (Hyperlinked) Pdf
5.4 Field Trip Photographs pdf
5.5 Geology (200,000 Scale) ESRI-Digital
5.6 Structural Elements (Regional) ESRI-Digital
6 | Geophysical Surveys _
6.1 2D Seismic Surveys ESRI-Digital
6.2 3D Seismic Surveys ESRI-Digital
6.3 Airborne Surveys ESRI-Digital
7 | Selsmic Interpretation
7.1 Regional Seismic Profiles (Hyperlinked) pdf
7.2 Seabed Horizon (Two Way Time) ESRI-Digital
7.3 Seabed Horizon (Depth) ESRI-Digital
7.4 Plio Quaternary TWT (10 km) ESRI-Digital
7.5 Plio Quaternary Depth (10 km) ESRI-Digital
7.6 Base Messinian TWT (10 km) ESRI-Digital
7.7 Base Messinian Depth (10 km) ESRI-Digital
7.8 Base Middle Miocene TWT (10km) ESRI-Digital




Yoxy/o/va - Y Y saall _ Gl s sall

V.
REF DESCRIPTION FORMAT
7.9 Base Middle Miocene Depth (10km) ESRI-Digital
7.10 Base Miocene TWT (10 km) ESRI-Digital
7.11 Base Miocene Depth (10 km) ESRI-Digital
7.12 Senonian Unconformity TWT (10 km) ESRI-Digital
7.13 Senonian Unconformity Depth (10 km) ESRI-Digital
7.14 Upper Jurassic TWT (10 km) ESRI-Digital
7.15 Upper Jurassic Depth (10 km) ESRI-Digital
8 | Gravity & Magnetic Data
8.1 Bouguer Gravity (Global) Digital
8.2 Free Air Gravity (Global) Digital
8.3 World Digital Magnetic Anomaly Map (WDMAM) Digital
9 | National Oil Spill Contigency : SN
9.1 Oil Spill Simulation Scenarios ESRI-Digital
9.2 Environmental Sensitivity (ESI) Maps ESRI-Digital
10 | Topography and Bathymetry
10.1 Regional Bathymetry 250m ESRI-Digital
10.2 Gebco - Topography ESRI-Digital
10.3 Gebco - Global Bathymetry ESRI-Digital
10.4 Lebanon Hillshade 50m ESRI-Digital
11 | Presentations and Reports
11.1 Overview Presentation pdf
11.2 Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA) ESRI-Digital & pdf
Volumes 1to 5
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SCHEDULE C OF EXHIBIT 2 - ENHANCED GIS PROJECT
REF DESCRIPTION FORMAT
1 | Culture
11 Lebanon Shaded Area ESRI-Digital
1.2 Coastline ESRI-Digital
13 Countries Names ESRI-Digital
1.4 Cities ESRI-Digital
1.5 Rivers ESRI-Digital
1.6 Lakes ESRI-Digital
2 | International Boundaries
2.1 Lebanon Onshore Boundaries ESRI-Digital
2.2 Lebanon Offshore Boundaries ESRI-Digital
2.3 Regional International Boundaries ESRI-Digital
3 | Contract Areas / Blocks y
31 | Contract Areas / Blocks ESRI-Digital
4 | Wells
41 Well Coordinates ESRI-Digital
4.2 Well Attributes {(Formation Tops) Digital
43 Well Summary Digital
5 | Geology (Onshore)
5.1 Stratigraphic Column pdf
5.2 Geological Cross Sections (Hyperlinked) Pdf
5.3 Stratigraphic Correlation from Wells {(Hyperlinked) Pdf
5.4 Faults (200,000 Scale) ESRI-Digital
5.5 Geology (200,000 Scale) ESRI-Digital
5.6 Structural Elements (Regional) ESRI-Digital
5.7 Faults (50,000 Scale) ESRI-Digital
5.8 Geology (50,000 Scale) ESRI-Digital
5.9 Field Work Module ESRI-Digital-pdf

6 | Geophysical Surveys

6.1 2D Seismic Surveys ESRI-Digital
6.2 3D Seismic Surveys ESRI-Digital
6.3 Airborne Surveys ESRI-Digital
6.4 Seismic Images ESRI-Digital-pdf
7 | Seismic Interpretation

7.1 Regional Seismic Profiles (Hyperlinked) pdf

7.2 Seabed Horizon (Two Way Time) ESRI-Digital
7.3 Seabed Horizon (Depth) ESRI-Digital
7.4 Plio Quaternary TWT (1 km) ESRI-Digital
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.5 Plluaternary Depth (1 km)

ESRI-Digital
7.6 Base Messinian TWT (1 km) ESRI-Digital
7.7 Base Messinian Depth (1 km) ESRI-Digital
7.8 Base Middle Miocene TWT (1 km) ESRI-Digital
7.9 Base Middle Miocene Depth (1 km) ESRI-Digital
7.10 Base Miocene TWT (1 km) ESRI-Digital
7.11 Base Miocene Depth (1 km) ESRI-Digital
7.12 Senonian Unconformity TWT (1 km) ESRI-Digital
7.13 Senonian Unconformity Depth (1 km) ESRI-Digital
7.14 Upper Jurassic TWT (1 km) ESRI-Digital

7.15 Upper Jurassic Depth (1 km) ESRI Digltal

Bouguer Grawty (1 80g-cm3)with SOkm Resldual f' Iter o . Digltal

8.2 Bouguer Gravity (1.80g-cm3) Digital
8.3 Bouguer Gravity (2.00g-cm3) with 50km Residual filter Digital
8.4 Bouguer Gravity (2.00g-cm3) Digital
8.5 Bouguer Gravity (2.20g-cm3) with 50km Residual filter Digital
8.6 Bouguer Gravity (2.20g-cm3) Digital
8.7 Free Air Gravity Digital
8.8 Magnetic Anomaly with 60km Resldual filter Digital
8.9 Magnetic Anomaly RTP Digital
8.10 Magnetic Anomaly Digital
8.11 Gravity Onshore Digital
8.12 Bouguer Gravity (Global) Digital
8.13 Free Air Gravity (Global) Digital

Digltal

8.14 World Dlgltal Magnetic Anomaly Map (WDMAM)

Reginal Bathymetry 250m - ESRI- Digital

9.2 Gebco - Topography ESRI-Digital
9.3 Gebco - Global Bathymetry ESRI-Digital

9.4 Lebanon Hillshade 50m ESRI Digltal

Overwew Presentatlon i

Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA)
Volumes 1to 5
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PRE-QUALIFICATION APPLICATION MATERIALS

EXHIBIT 3A: APPLICATION FORM
EXHIBIT 38: CHECKLIST OF DOCUMENTS SUBMITTED
EXHIBIT 3C: POWER OF ATTORNEY

EXHIBIT 3D: PRE-QUALIFICATION CRITERIA
SCHEDULE A - LEGAL CRITERIA AND REQUIRED DOCUMENTS AND DISCLOSURES

SCHEDULE B — FINANCIAL CRITERIA AND REQUIRED DOCUMENTS AND DISCLOSURES
SCHEDULE C — TECHNICAL CRITERIA AND REQUIRED DOCUMENTS AND DISCLOSURES
SCHEDULE D - QHSE CRITERIA AND REQUIRED DOCUMENTS AND DISCLOSURES
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EXHIBIT 3A
APPLICATION FORM
(to be provided on the Designated Operator’s letterhead)

H.E. Minister of Energy and Water

C/o Lebanese Petroleum Administration
Lebanese Petroleum Administration

1% Floor — Marfaa 200 Building

George Akouri Street — Down Town
Beirut, Lebanon

Having examined the Tender Protocol for the Second Offshore Licensing Round dated finsert date] (the
“Tender Protocol”), issued pursuant to Law No. 132 dated 24/08/2010 (the Offshore Petroleum
Resources Law), with due care, and having examined the applicable legislation, the Applicant,
constituted by the individual companies set forth in the list below (the “Individual Companies”) acting
jointly and severally, hereby informs you that it wishes to submit a Licensing Raund Application for a
Petroleum Right in respect of Block [insert Block number] offered pursuant to the second Licensing
Round for Hydrocarbon Exploration within the Offshore of the Lebanese Jurisdiction (the “Second
Offshore Licensing Round”). Capitalized terms used but not defined herein have the meanings
provided in the Tender Protocol.

The Applicant encloses herewith, for this purpose, in duplicate hardcopies (one original and one copy)
and a soft copy, the data, documents and information required pursuant to Articles 5 and 8 of the
Tender Protocol. All documents that are not in English or Arabic are accompanied by a translation in
English. ‘

The Applicant has also agreed to submit this Licensing Round Application and the documents attached
hereto in a sealed package delivered by hand by its Authorized Representative to the following
address:

H.E. Minister of Energy and Water

C/o Lebanese Petroleum Administration
Lebanese Petroleum Administration

1% Floor — Marfaa 200 Building

George Akouri Street — Down Town
Beirut — Lebanon

Tel. 00961-1-998784

Beirut — Lebanon

The Applicant represents that the pre-qualification information presented by each Individual Company
in the Pre-Qualification Application included in this Licensing Round Application is complete, true and
accurate. The Applicant represents that each Individual Company seeking pre-qualification that
belongs to a group of Affiliates has provided evidence in its Pre-Qualification Application that it is the
Parent Company of such group of Affiliates or otherwise satisfies the applicable pre-qualification
criteria either directly or indirectly through the credentials of Affiliates under its control. The Applicant
represents that each Individual Company comprising the Applicant understands that pre-qualification
determinations apply solely to the Individual Company seeking pre-qualification, and do not extend to
its Parent Company or Affiliates.
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The Applicant agrees that it is bound by this Licensing Round Application for a period of validity of one
hundred and eighty (180) days following the Closing Date, and for any additional period for which it
has been extended pursuant to the provisions of Article 10 of the Tender Protocol. This Licensing
Round Application constitutes an offer made to the State by the Individual Companies comprising the
Applicant to enter into the EPA in the form of the definitive Model EPA attached as Exhibit 1 to the
Tender Protocol, as supplemented by the Commercial Proposal and Technical Proposal included in the
Applicant’s EPA Application included herein, and any improvements subsequently agreed by the
Applicant and the Minister of Energy and Water.

The Applicant hereby indicates whether any of the Individual Companies was previously awarded an
exclusive Petroleum Right in the Lebanese Offshore.

O Yes O No

If yes:
Identity of Individual Company:
Previous Prequalification: O Right Holder - Operator [ Right Holder - Non-Operator

Year of Prequalification:
Previous Award: 0 Right Holder - Operator O Right Holder - Non-Operator

Year of Award: Block(s):
Seeking qualification as: O Right Holder - Operator DO Right Holder - Non-Operator

[Repeat the above information in respect of each Individual Company comprising the Applicant that
was previously awarded an exclusive Petroleum Right in the Lebanese Offshore]

Please note that this application relates to the following [Applicant to insert number] Individual
Companies constituting the Applicant:

Name of potential Right Holder - Operator
(the “Designated Operator”)
Jurisdiction of Incorporation:
Registered address:

Participating interest: %

Name of potential Right Holder:
Jurisdiction of Incorporation:
Registered address:

Participating interest: %

Name of potential Right Holder:
Jurisdiction of Incorporation:
Registered address:

Participating interest: %

(To be repeated if there are more participating companies)
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Each Individual Company comprising the Applicant has designated the following Authorized
Representative.! Originals of the necessary powers of attorney? are attached. Also attached is
evidence (whether in the form of an extract of a commerclal register, a copy of a resolution of the
board of directors, or a legal opinion by a reputable attorney practicing in the jurisdiction of
incorporation of the Individual Company providing the relevant power of attorney) demonstrating that
the power of attorney granted by each Individual Company appointing the Authorized Representative
was signed by a person or persons duly authorized to bind such Individual Company.

- Representative’s Name:

- Position:

- Address:

- Tel:

- Fax:

- E-mail:

The Right Holder - Designated Operator hereby accepts its appointment as such. Each other Individual
Company hereby appoints the Right Holder — Designated Operator to act in such capacity and to be
responsible for all matters with the Petroleum Administration and the Minister of Energy and Water
for the purpose of this Licensing Round Application and participation in the Second Offshore Licensing
Round.

The Applicant also hereby submits as part of its Pre-Qualification Application proof of payment of the
Retrieval Fee

The Applicant represents that it has accurately completed the enclosed checklist of documents
submitted, which contains requirements for submission of documents in electronic form, translation
and Formalization requirements.

The Applicant represents that:
(i) all the documents submitted as originals are authentic;

(i} all of the documents submitted as photocopies are true and complete copies of the
original documents;

(iii)  all data and information submitted is responsive, in all material respects, to the
required disclosure and contains no material misstatements or omissions; and

(iv)  the submitted translations are true and fair translations of the originals.

The Applicant undertakes to inform the Lebanese Petroleum Administration promptly of any material
changes occurring after the date hereof with respect to the data and information provided in the
Licensing Round Application submitted herewith.

! The Authorlzed Representative must be a natural person residing in the Republic of Lebanon or such other place
as approved by the Minister following consultation with the Petroleum Administration.

2 The power of attorney presented by each Individual Company should be in the form attached as Exhibit 3C to
the Tender Protocol (as the same may be modified in accordance with the Instructions provided therein).
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The Applicant agrees that it will be subject to all applicable Lebanese laws and regulations. The
Applicant acknowledges that the Lebanese Petroleum Administration may seek further data and
information from the Applicant, and that any decision to pre-qualify any Individual Company or
Applicant remains the sole prerogative of the Minister, in accordance with applicable law. The
Applicant also acknowledges that the Minister may withdraw any pre-qualification following the
granting thereof or annul the entire process of the Second Offshore Licensing Round at any time
without incurring any liability towards any Applicant, individual Company or any other person.

Date:

[Typed Name of Authorized Representative]

[Signature of Authorized Representative]
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EXHIBIT 3B

CHECKLIST OF DOCUMENTS SUBMITTED BY HAND

PRE-QUALIFICATION APPLICATION DOCUMENTS

Ex. | Administrative Materials s‘;:'“'“:‘.’" Formalized® |  Submitted
rma ) TR 7
3A | Application Form (Exhibit 3A) S&H No YesCINo [

3C Power of Attorney of Authorized Representative (Exhibit 3C) R

N . ) S&H Yes YesCiNo O
{from each Individual Company comprising the Applicant)

N/A | Copy of allny coope.ra.tlon agreerr.\ents between the Individual S&H No vesONo O3 |
Companies comprising the Applicant

N/A | Proof of payment of the Retrieval Fee S&H No YesCNo 0

N/A | Parent company guarantee {(Annex E to the Model EPA)

(applicable for {Individual Companies seeking pre-

qualification based wholly or partly on credentials of parent S&H = 'Ye-SDNO 0
company per Article 19.1 of the Tender Protocol)

PRE-QUALIFICATION MATERIALS FOR [INSERT NAME OF INDIVIDUAL COMPANY]
[(DESIGNATED OPERATOR)] [NON-OPERATOR]

A Exhibit 3D - Schedule A - Legal Criteria & Required b Formallzed® Submitted
Documents il Original |  Copy. | Fermesees

1 Evidence of authority of persons signing Power of Attorney Yes YesOl | YesD) | YesO

No | NeD | NeDO

2 An official cng of the const|tue'n.t documents (as appl|ca}ble Yestl | YesO | vess)
by the jurisdiction): Certificate of Incorporation, Yes NoD | NoDO No D
Memorandum of Association, Articles of Incorporation, etc. §

3 Extract of commercial registry showing specified information ) ,
regarding the Individual Company OR notarized, signed Yes YesOD | YesOl | YesO
statement from the company secretary or similar officer NoDl | Noed | NoO
providing such information

4 If no.t subfmtted u:! 3, document. f'rom a governrpe.ntal or YesOl YesOl YesEl
official entity showing that the Individual Company is in good Yes NoO | NoD | NoDD
standing in its jurisdiction of incorporation S&H \ }

5 If not submitted in 3, document from a governmental or
off'|C|aI 'en'flty showmg. that t.he.lndlwdual Company is not vest | Yes | YesO
being liquidated and is not in insolvency proceedings OR Yes 5 | A

) A NoEl | Nold | NeO
notarized, signed statement from the company secretary or :
similar officer providing such information

6 Partner(s) or Shareholder-(s) .(more than 20%)‘detalls. 'lf not vesO | Yes
ultimate parent, organization chart showing chain of No . 3}

) NoO | NeD
ownership [ ?

7 Signed statement from the general counsel or similar officer : e

. A - YesCl | YesO
that there are no pending material litigation, arbitration, Yes {
. NolJ | No[d
legal proceedings |
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B Exhibit 3D - Schedule B - Financlal Criteria and Required Documents & Dlsclosures

i;

1 Proof for meeting eligibility criteria

2 Audited consolidated financial statements for the last 3 years

3 Auditor's or auditors’ report(s) referencing the financial
statements for the last 3 years

4 Reference from a reputable bank or financial institution

5 Present and historical (prior three (3) years’) credit rating

[ Description of the material lines of credit, credit agreements,

S&H N
publicly traded debt securities, off-balance sheet liabilities °

and guarantees of third party obligations

7 Details of any medium-term plans and/or material
contingent liabilities

8 A statement describing any material changes in any of the
information set forth above, since the date as of which such
information was prepared

9 Any additional information regarding financial capacity

C Exhibit 3D - Schedule € - Technlcal Criteria and Required Documents & Disclosures

1 Proof for meeting eligibility criteria

S&H No

2 | Technical data required

D Exhibit 3D - Schedule D — QHSE Criteria and Required Documents & Disclosures

1 Description of the Quality, Health, Safety and Environment
Management System(s)
2 Evidence of established and implemented QHSE

Management System (s)

QHSE performance records for the previous five (5) years S No

Copy of CSR reports or initiatives for the past five (5) years

Experience of Operator in environmentally sensitive areas

[ 0 Y I I 7S

Commitment of company to QHSE through membership and
affiliations with international initiatives
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EPA APPLICATION DOCUMENTS

EX. Submisslon | Formallze SuhrﬁItted__ il
Format? d® _— s =
Yes | No
Bid Bond
4 | Bid Bond (Exhibit 4) | san | o ]'T“‘-'5"iﬁ:?’-“'f7f_ s
Proposal
5 Technical Proposal Form (Exhibit 5) S&H No
6 Technical Report {inline with Exhibit 6) S&H No
7 Commercial Proposal Form (Exhibit 7) S&H No
Miscellaneous
Any additional information that may be useful (see S&H No
Article 9.16 of the Tender Protocol)
a S: Soft Copy (pdf or MS Office)  H: Hard Copy
b

For documents issued outside Lebanon, notarize , translate to Arabic or to English when it is not possible to translate to Arabic,
and consularize and seal by the Ministry of Forelgn Affalrs In Lebanon. For documents Issued in Lebanon, they shall be notarlzed

only.

Notes to Applicant

1 - Applicants should include a separate checklist indicating the pre-qualification materials submitted

by each Individual Company comprising the Applicant in response to the requirements of Schedules A,
B, C and D to Exhibit 3D

2- Document submission options:

ii.

iii,

Option 1:
The Applicant submits the Individual Company’s documents Formalized with the Pre-
Qualification Application.

Option 2:

The Applicant submits the Individual Company’s original documents (not Formalized at
the closing date) with the Pre-Qualification Application, on a condition that the
documents shall be submitted Formalized within Seven (7) weeks following the closing
date. This deadline is subject to extension for Three Weeks as per the provisions of
Article 9.8 of this Tender Protocol.

Option 3:

Where the conditions described in Article 5.7 of the Tender Documents are present, the
Applicant submits copies of the Individual Company’s original documents (not
Formalized) together with a document instructing the Petroleum Administration to the
Pre-Qualification Application for a separate Block that includes the Individual
Company’s Formalized documents.

3- For any submission option selected, the Individual Company’s Power of Attorney (Exhibit 3C of the
Tender Protocol) shall be submitted Formalized with the Pre-Qualification Application. Failure to submit

the Formalized Power of Attorney with the Pre-Qualification Application shall lead to the rejection of
such Application.
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EXHIBIT 3C
POWER OF ATTORNEY OF AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

By the present instrument, [insert name of Individual Company] (the “Company”), organized and
existing in accordance with the laws of [insert Individual Company’s country of incorporation), with
registered address [insert registered address of Individual Company], through [insert name(s) of legal
representative(s) of Individual Company] who is legally authorized to bind the Company, hereby
nominates [insert name of and full title of Authorized Representative] (the “Authorized
Representative”), as its duly authorized representative empowered to represent the Company before
the Ministry of Energy and Water of the Republic of Lebanon, in connection with the Second Licensing
Round for Hydrocarbon Exploration and Production within the Offshore of the Lebanese Jurisdiction
(the “Second Offshore Licensing Round”) relating to the exploration and production of oil and natural
gas, with the power to take any and all actions and to assume any and all obligations, in our name and
on our behalf (including in our capacity as an individual company constituting an applicant for pre-
qualification and for the award of an Exploration and Production Agreement), in respect to such
Second Offshore Licensing Round, including without limitation (i) to submit the Licensing Round
Application on behalf of any applicant of which we constitute an individual company, (ii) to execute
any contracts, documents or instruments as may be necessary or useful in connection therewith, (iii)
to submit all documents and information to be submitted by the Company in connection with the
Second Offshore Licensing Round, (iv) to receive information and/or data packages, or to authorize
third parties to receive information and/or data packages, and (v} to pay any fees required in
connection with the Second Offshore Licensing Round.

Signed by:

[insert name(s) of the person legally authorized to bind the Individual Company with signature.]
Position:

[insert position(s) of the person legally authorized to bind the Individual Company]

[insert location and date]

INFORMATION RELATING TO AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE®

[insert name and signature of Authorized Representative]
[insert position of Authorized Representative]

[insert address of Authorized Representative]

[insert phone, fax and e-mail of Authorized Representative]

SNote to Individual Company executing Power of Attorney ("POA”):

1-  The POA shall comply with the form of Exhibit 3C to the Tender Protocol. However, additlonal provisions may be included, If needed,
reflecting those provisions.

2- Al Individual Companies comprising the Applicant must appoint the same Authorized Representative, who must be a natural
person residing in the Republic of Lebanon or such other place as approved by the Minister following consultation with the
Petroleum Administration,

3-  Itis acceptable to have an expiry date on the POA.



Yorv/o/18 o ¥ saall - a5y sl A%

wlasiall gl Sl JuS g3 s

Cua A il 80 Tid a5 Aadaiall (MAS ") [ piialf IS sl ann]AS i &f caiuall 138 (o gy
53 pdiall IS pill JZasall gt N G ginll] (g Jdasall push N W) gie oflauno 53 pdiall IS
u'.'lus[dﬂw_phﬂwﬁaﬂ/q{};hﬂwf,:Lc.w//‘a.uf]uﬁ.:_,.lw|L&Jlm/wywl@.nm&hwly
U.a_,u q.n_,.al.! de ("ua_,u.“ _,J'Lnl'l du.al’l") [Ua‘;.u!/g.u.rl.nf/ Sicdl) cuaiay {auq 4 pas
\Agéc‘\.u\.um-u_)‘”a;.“ »\..\A\_,MLH\U\_)J‘.LJAS)ﬂdMAJUAJacd_,.mﬂ(h_mm
A0 21 gl 2Rl 2N 1 Al i) 2y ja olpall b ey i) CLASELY AN anal M5 53
e () JAH D g ¢ paglall all g daiidl U 5 CilaSiad bl ("Bl a5 ")
UjSASAJﬁAZS)AUGEwJS@Lu)U:LL\JUJMU“_l\.ta‘,-&eua_,“;‘dm_,u\;\);w
U“\Jﬂ\w.uuwu@‘(cu,uu&u\ FEF] u.\c‘,,_,md.\ht.\u.\r-d_,maﬂuu:em
e gl oo Ll el il 550 A& A8 ‘:{\uﬂa A (1) andl 50 lld i Lay coda A8
9 Lo 3y ilai of ot f u,aggiu.\;t_s,ﬂ\(v) ‘uL..'a;‘.\aHa)MlL'ﬁS_).:. 055 Gl
A8 5l (e Lt amg () il glacall g Colaiinall ayan 03385 (Y) ¢ geadll 08 6 e ) (55 00
il plal oy g ol ccilibadl gl 5 ila ghaall 3yl 2Bl (£) AN asdl) 0 B g0 Gty L b
55y aidy e (b g sia a5 b (0) ccililall I/ cilaslaaddl 355k QDY oA
Al agad il

100 g se

[ 53l aa e / pedl/ad) jldal) (i pildl] Spliaallf i gildl] Siaall ;Luuf/f.u)_]
‘aiall

[ Cred silall culieddl/ e i ildll Siaall ¢ualio/ uaid

(&l plsad]

" pagial (3 sl Fiadly Bla e slaa

e giall i gildl] Siaall eaid]

[ il (il sl 5] 5ic]

[Ua_ju.//g_r_;.vl.i” MQ.UJIS/‘)’/ il g guSld ;w’lﬁ]

:dlad *
oS oSl e Mall dagp8ll b e 3C Galdl b Ghyall gpaill ablas aiddl (gl iaddl YKt 00 o na =
Aalal) poaimi L 38y gz 3sadl o plSa il
sal ol i (g T 0% o ans (glly A agial) (g fhadd) @i of llall a3add 253€all 3 jinall Sy e —
cJy sl g Ul 5ol 24 gl ) Tolmud olaally 28Ul 3y U (e Ll (3ilsall (521 cald)
Ladla elgmil gyl agaal ) Fadll U3 st 00 of ofa -




AAY

Yoxy/e/va - VY saall - duan sy sl

EXHIBIT 3D - SCHEDULE A
LEGAL CRITERIA AND REQUIRED DOCUMENTS AND DISCLOSURES

The Individual Company (whether applying to become a Right Holder-Operator and/or a Right Holder-
Non-Operator (each as defined in Article 1 of Law 132/2010 (the “Offshore Petroleum Resources Law”))
should submit the following documents:

(1)

()

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7

Evidence (whether in the form of an extract of a commercial register, a copy of a
resolution of the board of directors, or a legal opinion by a reputable attorney
practicing in the jurisdiction of incorporation of the Individual Company) showing that
the Authorized Representative Power of Attorney was signed by a person or persons
duly authorized to bind the Individual Company.

An official copy of the constituent documents of the Applicant (i.e., depending on the
jurisdiction of incorporation of the Individual Company, the Certificate of
Incorporation, Memorandum of Association, Articles of Incorporation, statuts and/or
By-Laws). {The Individual Company should be aware that, pursuant to Article 15 of the
Offshore Petroleum Resources Law, Exploration and Production Agreements may only
be awarded to pre-qualified joint stock companies or the equivalent under local law.
The Individual Company’s corporate object must permit the undertaking of Petroleum
Activities as defined in Article 1 of the Offshore Petroleum Resources Law.

An extract of the commercial registry relating to the Individual Company, showing its
full name, main business address, and capital stock. Where such information is not
available from the commercial registry, a notarized, signed statement from the
company secretary or similar officer providing such information.

If not indicated in document (3) above, a document from a governmental or official
entity showing that the Individual Company is in good standing in its jurisdiction of
incorporation.

If not indicated in document (3) above, a document from a governmental or official
entity showing that the Individual Company is not being liquidated and is not in
insolvency proceedings. Where such information is not available from the commercial
registry, a notarized, signed statement from the company secretary or similar officer
providing such information.

The name, nationality/jurisdiction of incorporation and address of any partner or
shareholder who, directly or indirectly, holds twenty (20) percent or more of the voting
shares of the Individual Company or otherwise has an interest that could constitute
control, together with the names, nationality and addresses of the officers and
directors of such partner or shareholder. Such information should be provided to the
extent known by the Individual Company or its directors and officers after due inquiry.
Where the Individual Company is not the parent company of the group of companies
of which it is a member, a corporate organization chart showing the chain of
ownership from the parent to the Applicant.

A notarized, signed statement from the general counsel or similar officer that there
are no pending litigation, arbitration, legal proceedings or other circumstances which
may lead to the insolvency or bankruptcy of the Individual Company or that could
reasonably be expected to prevent individual Company from fulfilling its obligations
under the Exploration and Production Agreement.
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EXHIBIT 3D - SCHEDULE B
FINANCIAL CRITERIA AND REQUIRED DOCUMENTS AND DISCLOSURES

An Individual Company may seek pre-qualification as a Right Holder - Operator and/or as a Right Holder
- Non-Operator by satisfying the criteria and presenting the documents and disclosures set forth below.

1 Eligibility Criteria

An Individual Company is eligible for such pre-qualification if it is able to demonstrate, to the
reasonable satisfaction of the Petroleum Administration, that the Individual Company had, as of the
end of its most recent financial year:

(i) Inthe case of Individual Companies seeking pre-qualification as a Right Holder - Operator,
total assets of US$10 billion or more.

(ii) In the case of Individual Companies seeking pre-qualification as a Right Holder - Non-
Operator, total assets of US$500 million or more.

2 Financial Data

The Individual Company (whether seeking pre-qualification as a Right Holder - Operator and/or Right
Holder - Non-Operator) should submit the data below. All financial statements must be prepared under
International Financial Reporting Standards or other internationally recognized generally accepted
accounting principles. Companies may furnish their published annual reports filed with a stock
exchange or securities regulators, and supplement those reports with any data below that is not
contained therein.

(1) The audited consolidated financial statements for the Individual Company for the last
three (3) years, including the balance sheet, income statement, statement of changes
in shareholders’ equity, cash flow statement, notes to the accounts and, where
required under local law or applicable accounting principles, the Directors’ report.

(2) The auditor's or auditors’ report(s) referencing the abovementioned financial
statements of the Individual Company, signed by an independent public accountant of
international standing and prepared in accordance with applicable auditing standards.
Alternatively, in the case of a state-owned companies organized In a jurisdiction that
does not provide for an external audit of such companies’ accounts, and no such
external audit has been performed, the financial statements described in clause (1)
must be prepared by a certified public accountant, and should be submitted together
with a statement signed by a lawyer affirming the absence of an audit requirement for
such state-owned company under the law of such jurisdiction.

(3) Reference from a reputable bank or financial institution doing business with the
Individual Company.
(4) Present and historical (prior Three (3) years) credit rating of the Individual Company's

(or its parent company’s) long-term unsecured debt from Standard & Poor’s Rating
Services, Moody’s Investor Services Inc. or Fitch Ratings, if available.

(5) A description of the Individual Company’s material lines of credit, credit agreements,
publicly traded debt securities, off-balance sheet liabilities and guarantees of third
party obligations.
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(6) Detdils of any medium-term plans and/or material contingent liabilities, if these could
reasonably be expected materially and adversely to impact the financial status of the
Individual Company.

(7) A statement describing any material changes in any of the data set forth above, since
the date as of which such information was prepared.

(8) Any additional information supporting the financial capacity of the Individual
Company.

k

The details provided under Section 2 will be checked to demonstrate evidence of fulfilling
the Eligibility Criteria.
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EXHIBIT 3D - SCHEDULE C
TECHNICAL CRITERIA AND REQUIRED DOCUMENTS AND DISCLOSURES

An Individual Company may seek pre-qualification as a Right Holder - Operator and/or as a Right Holder
- Non-Operator by satisfying the criteria and presenting the documents and disclosures set forth below.

1 Eligibility Criteria

An Individual Company is eligible if it is able to demonstrate, to the Lebanese Petroleum
Administration:

(1) For Individual Companies seeking pre-qualification as a Right Holder - Operator:
Evidence of Operatorship
i.  With established experience in exploration drilling in water depths in excess of
Three Hundred meters (300 m)
ii.  With an approved offshore development plan.
jii.  With at least one producing field (onshore/offshore).

(2) For Individual Companies seeking pre-qualification as a Right Holder - Non-Operator:
i.  Holding a participating interest in a producing field.(onshore/offshore).

2 Technical Data

The Individual Company (whether seeking pre-qualification as a Right Holder - Operator and/or Right
Holder - Non-Operator) should disclose details on the Individual Company’s experience with respect to
exploration and production activities including specifically (to the extent applicable):

i - For Individual Companies seeking pre-qualification as a Right Holder — Operator
A - Data requested:

(1) Provide a good faith estimate of operated deep water wells as per the table below:
Number of Exploration Wells Number of Development Wells
Year in water depths: in water depths:

300 - 500m 500-1,500m >1,500m 300 - 500m 500-1,500m >1,500m

Prior to 2017
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021°

(2) Provide at least one example of your experience as Operator in offshore field development
(or approved development plan) clearly identifying field name, location, water depth.
{3) Provide at least one example of your experience as Operator of a producing field.

B - Additional Information requested:
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(1) Indicate a good faith estimate of the total capital expenditure for the last five (5) years as
per the table below.

Exploration
CAPEX (MMS$)

Other Upstream
CAPEX (MMS)

Total CAPEX
(MMS$)

Year

2017
2018
2019
2020
2021

Ii- For Individual Companies seeking pre-qualification as a Right Holder — Non-Operator:
A - Data requested:

(1) Provide at least one example showing that you hold a participating interest in a producing
field, clearly identifying field name, location, and volume produced.

B - Additional information requested:

(1) Indicate a good faith estimate of the total capital expenditure for the last five (5) years as per
the table below.

Exploration
CAPEX (MMS)

Other Upstream Total
CAPEX (MMS) CAPEX (MMS)

Year

2017
2018
2019
2020
2021

(2) Indicate a good faith estimate of the number of wells and yearly production for the last five
(5) years as per the table below.

Year

Number of Exploration
Wells

Number of
Development Wells

Yearly Production
BOE*

Prior to 2017

2017

2018

2019

2020

2021

* Barrel of oil equivalent

Note:

e The details provided under Sections 2(I-A) and 2(lI-A) will be checked to demonstrate evidence

of fulfilling the Eligibility Criteria.
o The details provided under Sections 2(I-B) and 2 (11-B) will be used for information only.




vory/e/va - ¥V ssall o Zyaus i 52y 50l aqy

EXHIBIT 3D - SCHEDULE D
QHSE CRITERIA AND REQUIRED DOCUMENTS AND DISCLOSURES

An Individual Company may seek pre-qualification as a Right Holder - Operator and/or a Right Holder
- Non-Operator by satisfying the criteria and presenting the documents and disclosures set forth below.

1 Eligibility criteria,

(1) For Individual Companies seeking pre-qualification as a Right Holder - Operator

The Individual Company shall be able to demonstrate, to the reasonable satisfaction of the
Lebanese Petroleum Administration, its ability to manage safe and secure operations in offshore
waters through its organizational and technical capacity. Specifically, the individual Company is
required to submit:

(1)

()

A description of the Quality, Health, Safety and Environment Management System(s)
(QHSEMS), or equivalent (with scope applicable to offshore exploration and
production) including the management system arrangements for high risks and major
accidents.

Evidence of established and implemented QHSE Management System(s) (with scope
applicable to offshore exploration and production) i.e. valid QHSE certification(s)
according to best international industry practice (such as 1SO 9001, ISO 14001, OHSAS
18001 etc.) and/or audit reports.

(1) For individual Companies seeking pre-qualification as a Right Holder ~ Non-Operator:
The Individual Company is required to submit:

(1)
()

2 QHSE Data

A description of the Quality, Health, Safety and Environment Management System(s)
(QHSEMS), or equivalent (with scope applicable to petroleum production).

Evidence of established and implemented QHSE Management System(s) (with scope
applicable to petroleum production) i.e. valid QHSE certification(s) according to best
international industry practice and/or audit reports.

The Individual Company (whether applying to become a pre-qualified Right Holder - Operator and/or
Right Holder - Non-Operator) shall additionally disclose the following data:

(1)

2)
3)

QHSE performance records for the previous five (5) years including:

a. Annual QHSE reports

b. Major reported accidents

c. Major reported environmental incidents

d. Other e.g. Prohibition notices, criminal convictions, civil penalties, fines

related to occupational

A copy of Corporate Social Responsibility reports or initiatives for the past five (5) years
in line with international best standards i.e. Global Reporting Initiative or equivalent
Experience as operator in environmentally sensitive areas as well as the general
approach and management arrangements for identification, assessment and
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(4)

management of environmental aspects and impacts, taking account of local
sensitivities.

Commitment of company to QHSE through membership and affiliations with
international initiatives such as International Association of Oil & Gas Producers
(IOGP), International Petroleum Industry Environmental Conservation Association
(IPIECA), Offshore Pollution Liability Association (OPOL), Oil and Gas Climate Initiative
(OGC), World Bank Zero Flaring Initiative ... etc.

The details provided under Section 2 will be checked to demonstrate evidence of fulfilling
the Ellgibllity Criterla.
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EXHIBIT 4 — ¢ (galall
FORM OF BID BOND

IRREVOCABLE STAND-BY LETTER OF CREDIT

Issued by [Name of Bank]

Date:
No.:
Face Amount: [US$500,000 or €500,000]

The Ministry of Energy and Water of the Republic of Lebanon (the “Ministry”)
Ministry of Energy and Water — Republic of Lebanon

Corniche Al Nahr

Beirut, Lebanon

Dear Sirs:

1. [NameofBank], a organized under the laws of (the “Issuer”),
hereby establishes in favor of the Ministry of Energy and Water of the Republic of Lebanon its
irrevocable stand-by Letter of Credit No. {this “Letter of Credit”), whereby the

Issuer authorizes the Ministry to draw hereunder, in a single drawing, the sum of [U$$500,000 or
€500,000] (the “Face Amount”) by presentation of a Draft and a Drawing Certificate (each as
defined below) at the Issuer’s office specified in Article 3 of this Letter of Credit.

The Face Amount of this Letter of Credit may be drawn by the Ministry in the manner specified in
Article 3 of this Letter of Credit between 9:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on any
Banking Day, on or after the date of this Letter of Credit and prior to the expiration of this Letter
of Credit. A “Banking Day” is any day other than a Saturday, a Sunday or a day on which
commercial banks in New York City are authorized or required by law, regulation or executive order
to close.

A drawing may be made hereunder only by the presentation by the Ministry to the issuer of a sight
draft of the Ministry drawn on the Issuer in the form attached hereto as Appendix 1 (a “Draft”)
and a certificate executed by the Ministry in the form attached hereto as Appendix 2 (a “Drawing
Certificate”). Presentation of a Draft and Drawing Certificate must be made at the Issuer’s office
in New York City located at , or at such other address in New York City as the
Issuer may designate to the Ministry by notice given in accordance with Article 8 of this Letter of
Credit.

Upon the presentation by the Ministry to the Issuer of the Draft and Drawing Certificate at the
office of the Issuer designated pursuant to Article 3 of this Letter of Credit, the Issuer shall pay the
Face Amount by wire transfer of immediately available funds to the Ministry of Energy and Water
(or other body of the Lebanese Republic) as designated in the Drawing Certificate, within two (2)
Banking Days.

This Letter of Credit shall expire upon the earliest of (i) the date on which a certificate executed by
the Ministry, in the form attached hereto as Appendix 3 (an “Expiration Certificate”), is presented
to the Issuer, {ii) the indefeasible payment by the Issuer to the Ministry in the manner set forth in
Article 4 of this Letter of Credit of the Face Amount upon a drawing properly made hereunder, and
(i) 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on December 15" , 2022 (the “Long Stop Date”).
Notwithstanding the foregoing, any drawing properly made hereunder prior to the expiration of
this Letter of Credit shall be honored by the issuer. Notwithstanding anything contained in Rule 3
of ISP98 (defined below) or herein, in the event that the Issuer’s office designated in Article 3 of
this Letter of Credit is closed on the date set forth in (iii) of this Article 5, the expiration date of this
Letter of Credit shall be extended to the next Banking Day on which such office is open.
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6.

9.

This Letter of Credit may only be drawn by, and other rights hereunder may only be exercised by,
the Ministry.

This Letter of Credit is issued subject to the International Standby Practices 1998, ICC brochure 590
(“1SP98”), and to the extent not inconsistent therewith, shall be governed by and construed in
accordance with the laws of.... The courts of ...shall have exclusive jurisdiction to settle any dispute
or claim arising out of or in connection with this Letter of Credit or its subject matter or formation
(including non-contractual disputes or claims).

All notices, demands, instructions, waivers or other communications to be provided pursuant to
this Letter of Credit shall be in writing in English, shall be effective upon receipt, and shall be sent
by personal delivery, courier or first class mail, to the following addresses:

(i) if to the Issuer, to:

[to be completed]

(ii) If to the Ministry, to:

Ministry of Energy and Water - The Republic of Lebanon
Ministry of Energy and Water — Republic of Lebanon
Corniche Al Nahr

Beirut, Lebanon

Attention: The Minister of Energy and Water

With a copy to:

The Petroleum Administration

1% Floor, Marfa 200, Georges Akouri Street, Downtown
Beirut, Lebanon]

Attention: President of the Petroleum Administration

The addresses for notices given pursuant to this Letter of Credit may be changed by the Issuer or
the Ministry by means of a written notice given to the other at least fifteen (15) Banking Days prior
to the effective date of such change.

10. This Letter of Credit sets forth in full the Issuer’s undertaking, and such undertaking shall not in

any way be modified or amended by reference to any document, instrument or agreement
referred to herein, except the Draft, the Drawing Certificate and any Expiration Certificate.

Very truly yours,
[NAME OF BANK]
By:
Name:
Title:
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EXHIBIT 4 - ¢ Jald
APPENDIX 1

FORM OF DRAFY
Letter of Credit No.
[New York, New York]
[Date Of Drafi)

At sight

Pay to the order of the Ministry of Energy and Water, the Republic of Lebanon the sum of US$500,000
(Five hundred thousand) U.S. Dollars/€500,000, for value received. Drawn under [Name of issuer]
Letter of Credit No. .

MINISTRY OF ENERGY AND WATER, THE REPUBLIC OF
LEBANON

By:

Name:

Title:

To: [Name of Issuer]

[Address of Issuer]
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EXHIBIT 4 - ¢ (Jaldl
APPENDIX 2

FORM OF DRAWING CERTIFICATE

Reference is made to the Letter of Credit (the “Letter of Credit”), No. dated
, lssued by in favor of the Ministry of Energy and Water, the
Republic of Lebanon. Capitalized terms used herein and not defined have the respective meanings set
forth in the Letter of Credit or the Final Tender Protocol dated [[date], 2022] (the “Tender Protocol”)
issued by the Ministry of Energy and Water of the Lebanese Republic with respect to the Second
Licensing Round for Hydrocarbon Exploration within the Offshore of the Lebanese Jurisdiction (the
“Second Licensing Round”).

The undersigned, being duly authorized to execute this certificate on behalf of the Ministry, hereby
certifies that pursuant to the Second Licensing Round a consortium composed of [include names of
consortium members)] (the “Applicant”) was selected to enter into an Exploration and Production
Agreement with the Republic of Lebanon, and that one of the following events has occurred:

1. The Applicant did not sign the Exploration and Production Agreement and
deliver it to the Minister of Energy and Water (the “Minister”) by the date
defined in Article 17.4 of the Tender Protocol; or

2. The fully executed Work Commitment Guarantee for the first Exploration
Period required by the Exploration and Production Agreement was not
defivered to the Minister by the date defined in Article 0 of the Tender Protocol;
or

3, The fully executed Parent Company Guarantee(s) required by the Exploration
and Production Agreement was/were not delivered to the Minister by the date
defined in Article 17.4 of the Tender Protocol.

Payment of the Face Amount of the Letter of Credit is to be made by the issuer to the following
account: (to be communicated by the Ministry in due course)

This certificate has been duly executed by the undersigned as of the day of

MINISTRY OF ENERGY AND WATER, THE REPUBLIC OF
LEBANON

By:
Name:
Title:
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EXHIBIT 4 - ¢ galall
APPENDIX 3

FORM OF EXPIRATION CERTIFICATE

Reference is made to the Letter of Credit (the “Letter of Credit”) No. , dated
, issued by in favor of the Ministry of Energy and Water, the
Republic of Lebanon. Capitalized terms used herein and not defined have the respective meanings set
forth in the Letter of Credit.

The undersigned, being duly authorized to execute this certificate on behalf of the Ministry, hereby
certifies that conditions permitting the expiration of the Letter of Credit have occurred, and that
accordingly the Letter of Credit shall expire as of the date of this Certificate.

This certificate has been duly executed by the undersigned as of the day of

MINISTRY OF ENERGY AND WATER, THE REPUBLIC OF
LEBANON

By:

Name:

Title:
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EXHIBIT 5 — © (galall
TECHNICAL PROPOSAL FORM

Block No. (the “Block”)

Applicant [state names of Individual Companies):

1. The technical report in line with the guidelines as per Exhibit 6
2. Proposed Minimum Work Commitments and Indicative Work Commitment Amounts:

Proposed Minimum Work | Indicative Work Commitment Amount per Total Indicative Work Commitment
Commitments items * item (Millions of US Dollars) Amount (Millions of US Dollars)
(to be filled) (to be filled)
(to be filled) (to be filled)
(to be filled) (to be filled)
(to be filled) (to be filled)
(to be filled) (to be filled)
(to be filled) (to be filled)
(to be filled) (to be filled)

(to be filled)

The proposed minimum work commitment items may include drilling a well and/or other exploration
activities as stated in Article 8.9 in the tender Protocol.

*

3. The Applicant hereby attests that the Indicative Work Commitment Amount provided above are
the Applicant’s good faith estimate of the cost of carrying out the Minimum Work Commitments
for the first Exploration period. .

Date:

[Typed Name of Authorized Representative]

[Signature of Authorized Representative]
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EXHIBIT 6 —  (§alal)

GUIDELINES FOR THE TECHNICAL REPORT

(In the event of online submission the Applicant shall refer to Articles 9.2 and 9.9 of this Tender
Protocol and to Exhibits 9 and 10)

E6.1 - GENERAL INFORMATION

The purpose of these guidelines is to outline the required technical report that each Applicant shall
submit in addition to the Technical and Commercial Proposals. The required report includes the
following:

- the overall geological understanding and exploration strategy

The content of the technical report submitted by the Applicant shall be considered confidential by the
Petroleum Administration and shall be treated accordingly as per Article 13 of the Tender Protocol.

The Technical report will contribute up to five (5) marks of the overall grade.

£6.1.1 General Procedures

The technical guideline shall be delivered both as paper copy (in binder) and electronic format on USB
Memory Stick (USB). A label with the Applicant’s name must be securely affixed to the USB. The USB
must be labelled in a manner which clearly shows which Licensing Round Application it relates to. The
USB version of the geologic report will be digitally archived by the authorities. Note, the paper copy
and the USB copy should be identical.

E6.1.2 Report Publishing Guidelines / Standards

Loy

Font: Times New Roman - size 12

Single/standard line spacing

All information in the figures and maps is legible

All maps must have coordinates and scale

All measurements (depth, area, volume etc.) must be given in metric units

Digital Versions (PDF)

GIS format (layers) ~ shapefile {.shp) or ArcGIS Geodatabase including attribute tables
Additional information (per aforementioned layer) - Metadata

GIS Project format - .mxd project (ArcGIS Version 10.x). Coordinate System — UTM 36 N
(Universal Transverse Mercator) Spheroid WGS 84

10. Maps must be presented as separate files and must include:
- GIS format (layers) — shapefile (.shp) or ArcGIS Geodatabase including attribute tables

W oo NOULREWN

- Metadata
- GIS project format - .mxd project (ArcGIS version 10.x)

- Coordinate System (UTM 36 N) Spheroid WGS 84
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E6.1.3 Deliverables

1. Loose-leaf binder
2. Paper copy of report based on tables supplied at the end of this guide
3. USB attached inside each binder. The USB must contain:
— One file in pdf-format (Adobe Acrobat Document) with the report

—  One file pdf-format showing the block applied for, with outline of all prospects/leads
presented in the report representing the good middle estimate (P50) of the prospect
assessment, unless it is deemed necessary to include outlines representing other
statistical confidence levels for estimates, specifically P10 and/or P90

— Components of Tables 2 & 3 duly and accurately supplied

Templates of the forms for use in the report can be found on the LPA’s website,
www.lpa.gov.|b/technicalproposalforms. These should be filled in as accurately as possible and
supplied along with the report. There are stated guidelines for the number of pages in the different
parts of the report.

£6.1.4 Nomenclature of Seismic Horizons

Formal nomenclature should be used where it exists. There are seven main seismic horizons (SH)
throughout the whole offshore Lebanon, plus additional local horizons (LH).

Table 1 lists the following seismic horizons that have been interpreted offshore Lebanon and mapped
regionally along with a short description.

Figure 1 shows a horizon identification example along an arbitrary line.
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Table 1 Formal Nomenclature for Horizons

Horizon Identification

Short Description

Seabed
(SH1)

Corresponds to a strong and continuous reflection induced by the contrast
of velocity between the seawater and the Quaternary sediments below the
seabed

Seismic Horizon 2

(SH2)

Shallowest interpreted reflector which separates the sediments above
from the Messinian Evaporites

Seismic Horizon 3

(SH3)

Comprises both the base of the evaporites in the basin and the Messinian
erosional surface on the margin:

- Strong reflector corresponding to the contrast between high velocities in
the Messinian Evaporites and low velocities in the underlying unit.

- On the margin, the base Messinian is the shallowest unconformity.

Seismic Horizon 4

(SH 4)

In the deep basin, this horizon corresponds to the base of a strong
amplitude reflections package that becomes thinner towards the margin
and pinches out on the unconformity (see below).

Seismic Horizon 5

(SH 5)

Corresponds to a strong regionally continuous seismic reflection. This
horizon pinches out on unconformity eastward on the margin.

Seismic Horizon 6

(SH6)

Corresponds to the top of a significant transparent unit that ends with two
series of reflectors slightly more powerful. ®

Seismic Horizon 7

(SH7)

This is a regional unconformity:
- In the basin, it corresponds to the top of high amplitude package.

- On the margin, it corresponds to the top of the carbonate platform.
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E6.2 GEOLOGICAL UNDERSTANDING AND EXPLORATION STRATEGY

The objective of the exploration work programme is to effectively evaluate and test the petroleum
resource potential in all parts of the license area. Hence, the Applicant shall submit an exploration
strategy that will advance the understanding of the petroleum potential and test the viable targets.
The strategy will explain and qualify the proposed work programme and should include:

e The database that has been utilized and special studies done to evaluate the blocks applied
for.

e The understanding of the reglonal geology in terms of sedimentology and structural geology
and how this applies to the evaluation of the area.

e An analysis of the hydrocarbon system and risk elements.
¢ The resource assessment of leads and prospects and the evaluation of probability of discovery.

e Theplan for implementation of the work program reflecting the time schedule, milestones and
prospect interdependency.

e Detailed description of the proposed minimum work commitment with how it was translated
into the indicative work commitment amount given in Exhibit 5 of the Tender
Protocol.Minimum amount required to submitted as fully executed Work Commitment
Guarantee to the Minister in line with articles in the EPA.

The mapping process, namely illustrations to accompany text of the areas applied for regarding the
identification of plays, leads and prospects should be provided.

The above listed Iitems, that are further detailed in the following table, will be graded from a minimum
of (0) to a maximum of five (5).

The Technical Report Grade (TRG) will be based on the following formula:

k= (TR s)
~\ 30

As detailed in Article 16.2 of this Tender Protocol “K” is the mark of the Technical Report earned by
the Applicant contributing up to a total of flve (5) marks of the overall Technical Proposal grade.
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Indicator Grade ] t )
Sub-Indicator ment on
Amount of 3D and 2D geophysical data licensed offshore Lebanon
Database Geogl;::lcal Plan and reasoning of data to be reprocessed In the block, if any.
Any plan and reasoning to acquire additional technical data In the block that will add value, If any
(e.g. EM, deep selsmic ...)
Knowledgeable understanding of the area (studles performed/used, description of critical factors)
Reglonat
Geology # Play Models and how they are Identified
Degree of focus in refation to applled for acreage
Stratigraphic and sedimentologlcal framework Including reservoir development and prediction of
Reservolr
reservolr quality
Petroleum Seali/iCHective Structural framework including trap development and evaluation of seal/retention characterlstics
Geologlcal Trap
Analysis
Basin
Development Basin development including source rocks, maturlty and migration
Assessment of depositional environment and reservolr types on a prospect scale
Prospect
Desc‘:lptlt()sn) Assessment of Trap and Seal on a prospect scale
Hydrocarbon type, source, migration and trap fill on a prospect scale.
Estimation of rock volume
Resource Choice of reservolr parameters (gas/oll ratio, expansion/shrink factors, recovery rate)
Calculation Cholce of gas / ol ratio and expanslon / shrink factors
Total resource estimate methodology
Plock Evaluation Discussion of the risk analysls method used
|POS and method
for risk analysis Probability of success of the identifled prospect
Probability of Individuat risk elements
Discussion of leads Identified
Estimate of the resource potentlal, if possible
Lead (s)
Description of the resource estimation method
Description of what Is needed to mature the lead to a prospect
Timeline and duration of projected activities
Duratlon Time Schedule
Explanation and justification for projected actlvitles
Propsoed
Minimum Work ) Description of the proposed minimum work commitment and how it was transiated into the
Commitment indicative work commitment amounts
Amounts

Hiustrations to Accompany Text
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£6.2.1 Database

This section should contain the following components presenting the amount, type and details of the
geophysical datasets and any new reprocessing the applicant proposes to undertake, if any. It should
be limited to three pages, including maps/figures/tables/charts.

In this regard, the Applicant should address the following points:

¢ Amount of 3D and 2D geophysical data licensed offshore Lebanon, if any.

e Additional proprietary or multiclient data used in their wider evaluation.

e Justification of the amount of data to be reprocessed in the block, if any.

e Plan to acquire additional technical data in the block that will add value, if any.

E6.2.2 Regional Geology

This section should contain the following components presenting a regional approximation of the
prospectivity of the block applied for. It should be limited to 10 pages, including
maps/figures/tables/charts.

The following items should be discussed:

e Geodynamic evolution of the eastern Mediterranean
e Main Tectonic and Stratigraphic events

e Play Fairway and Play Fairway Map

e Play Models

e Description of relevant studies used for evaluation i.e. short summary, limited to one page,
consisting of conclusions and arguments for the relevance of each report

E6.2.3 Petroleum Systems Analysis

This section should contain the following components presenting a petroleum systems analysis of the
acreage applied for. It should be limited to 10 pages, including maps/figures/tables/charts.

The following items should be briefly discussed:

e Basin Development

o Stratigraphic and sedimentological framework, including reservoir development and
prediction of reservoir quality

o Structural framework, including trap development and evaluation seal/retention
characteristics

o Basin development, including source rocks, maturity and migration
e Modeling & evaluation of petroleum system elements

The analysis must focus on the elements of the petroleum system which are considered critical for the
prospectivity of the area and for its evaluation. lllustrations should be provided to accompany text.

E6.2.4 Block Evaluation (Geological and Technical)

A geological and technical evaluation report shall be prepared for each block, containing a technical
evaluation for the prospect and/or leads identified, in the format defined below. The report should
include completed summary sheets as shown in table 2 below.
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Table 2: Summary — Resource Potential

(B e el |
nrisked recoverable resources |
astct AL, Probabilfty L
of discovery

Base | High

E6.2.4.1 Prospect Description
The following should be documented and assessed for each prospect:

Depositional environment and reservoir type
Trap and seal

Hydrocarbon type

Source

Migration

Trap fill

The evaluation must explain conditions which are considered critical for the prospect.

The following documentation should be included for each prospect:

e Overview map with coordinates, clearly showing the outlines representing statistical
confidence levels for estimates of high case (P10), expected case (P50) & low case (P90)
Position of the seismic line and the geological profile (should also be submitted digitally)
Seismic profiles in crossing directions and geological profile across the prospects

Time- and depth maps of reservoir horizons presented at identical scales, if available

If relevant, seismic attribute maps

Other documentation and figures can be included if they are relevant to the prospect
description

Available key data for each prospect should be listed in Table 3.

e o o o @

E6.2.4.2 Estimation of Prospective Resources
The following should be documented and briefly commented upon:

e Estimation of rock volume and uncertainty

e Description and reasoning behind the choice of reservoir parameters, gas/oil ratio,
expansion/shrink factors, recovery rate
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e Total resource estimate

e Resource estimates in metric unit with their uncertainty ranges for estimates (P90, P10 and
expected value) should be stated in table 3

If only parts of the mapped prospect occur in the block applied for, you must clearly indicate the
percentage this constitutes within the block, as well as the total resource estimate. lllustrations should
be provided to accompany text.

£6.2.4.3 POS and Method for Risk Analysis
The following should be documented and assessed for each prospect:

e Risk analysis method used
e  Probability of success of the identified prospect
o  Probability of the individual risk elements

E6.2.4.4 Leads
The following should be documented and assessed for each lead:

e Leads identified
e Estimate of the resource potential, if possible
e Description of what is needed to mature the lead to a prospect
e |llustrations to accompany text
Available key data for each lead should be listed in Table 3.
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Table 3 Key Dota for Prospect / Lead

Confldentlal - Leb 2nd Offshore Licensing Round
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E6.2.5 Tentative Duration of the Projected Activities

This section should contain the following components presenting a tentative duration of the projected
activities for the exploration phase:

e Timing and duration of projected activities
e Explanation and justification for projected activities
e Timeline {e.g. figure)

E6.2.6 Proposed Minimum Work Commitment Amount

This section should contain a description of the proposed minimum work commitment and how it was
translated into the indicative work commitment amounts given in Exhibit 5 of the TP. Minimum work
commitment amounts required to submit a fully executed Work Commitment Guarantee to the
Minister in line with Articles in the EPA.
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EXHIBIT7 -V )
COMMERCIAL PROPOSAL FORM

Block No. ____

Applicant [state names of Individual Companies]:

1. Cost Petroleum ceiling (%) (as applied pursuant to Article 23.3 of the definitive Model
Exploration and Production Agreement):

Cost Petroleum
Ceiling (%) (to be filled)

2. Profit Petroleum sharing formula (as defined in Article 24 of the definitive Model
Exploration and Production Agreement):

A (%) 30
B (%) (to be filled)
Re (to be filled)

- Rs must be greater than 1. B must be greater than A.

- The above mentioned percentages are on a pre-tax basis.

- Cost Petroleum Ceiling shall not exceed a limit of 80% of disposable petroleum.
- Ashall be fixed at a value of 30%.

Date:

{Typed Name of Authorized Representative]

[Signature of Authorized Representative]
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EXHIBIT 8 - A )
THE NINE SCENARIOS AND THE COMMERCIAL BID EVALUATION METHODOLOGY

The Nine Scenarios

Model Flelds:
Three hypothetical model field sizes, identical in each block:

2 (two) tcf of gas & 14 (fourteen) mmbb! of liquids
5 (five) tcf of gas & 35 (thirty-five) mmbb! of liquids
10 (ten) tcf of gas & 70 (seventy) mmbbl of liquids

Prices;

Three price cases (low, base and high):

Liquids: $50 (fifty USD)/bbl, $65 (Sixty-five USD)/bbl , $80 (eighty USD)/bbl

Gas: 4 (four USD)/mcf , $5.5 (five USD and fifty cents)/mcf , $7 (seven USD)/mcf
Liquids price assumptions are based on the Long Term Brent forecast.

Gas price assumptions are benchmarked against relevant international market gas prices
with no Brent linkage and applied to domestic and export production (priced at beach).

Discount Rate:

The discount rate (10%/year) will be used in calculating the discounted average total
government take..

Number of Scenarios:
Three (3) field sizes, Three (3) price cases, One (1) discount rate result in Nine (9) scenarios

Scenarios should be profitable on a ‘pre-tax’ and ‘minimum bid’ basis.

Basis of Data:

The assumptions that are used within the scenarios are created solely for the purpose of
comparing different commercial bids.

They should not be seen as an indication of the expectations of the Lebanese Petroleum
Administration with respect to pricing or prospect sizes.

Calculation of Total Government Take Methodology:

The total government take for each bid will be calculated as the discounted net cash flow
accruing to the Government of Lebanon. The total government take will consist of the
following elements that are payable on a block by block basis:

e Royalty
¢ Government Profit Share
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o Corporate Income Tax (CIT) (as per law 57/2017: Tax Provisions related to petroleum
activities in accordance to Law 132 dated 24 August 2010)

Scoring Methodology:
A - For each bid per Block:

1- For each scenario, the discounted total government take is calculated.

2- The average of a bid’s total government take (7GT) for the nine scenarios is
calculated.

B - The bid with the highest average Total Government Take (TGTmax) is given a worth of 80
marks. Other bids will receive marks as below:

TGl ~ TG s

TGl TGT 20

Commercial Mark =

Where,

TGTmin is computed as the average discounted total government take (calculated based on
the predefined scenarios) using the following commercial parameters:

A=8=30%
CP = 80%
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EXHIBIT 9 — 4 (dalall
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Procedures for Online Submission of the Second Licensing Round Applications

The Applicant submitting online shall follow the below procedures:

1. The Applicant’s Authorized Representative(s) advises the LPA by email (olr2@Ipa.gov.Ib) that
they wish to submit an Application including:

a. Names and email addresses of the Authorized Representative(s) who can approve
documents for submission for the following categories:
i. Right holder- Operator
ii. Right Holder- Non-Operator

b. Names and email addresses of the delegated person(s) by the authorized
representative(s)who can upload and save authorized documents to the site
communicated by the LPA as per Article 9.9 (c) of this Tender Protocol for the
following categories:

i. Right Holder- Operator — Prequalification and EPA Application
ii. Right Holder Non Operator — Prequalification information only

2. LPA provides the Applicant with a “Bid Application Number”. Note that each block applied for
requires a separate unique “Bid Application Number”.

3. The LPA will provide by email, each Authorized Representative and delegated person(s) who
are authorized to upload and save documents, a link to the secure folder for the related ”Bid
Application Number”. The default upload permissions for each individual will be set as
follows:

a. Authorized Representative(s): Upload, save and View access — Prequalification
Application & EPA Application

b. Delegated persons: Upload, save and View access - only Prequalification documents
related to Prequalification Application of each individual company as per Article
9.9(c) of this Tender Protocol.

4. Application Folder Structure
a. Cover Letter

b. Sealed Envelope
e Copy of Power of Attorney
e Copy of evidence of authority to issue the POA on behalf of each individual
Company
o Copy of Authorized Representative Identification Documents
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¢. Pre-Qualification Files
e Operator Prequalification Package Documents
e Non Operator Prequalification Package Documents
@ Non Operator Prequalification Package Documents
e Non Operator Prequalification Package Documents (If required)

d. EPA Application Folder
e Copy of Applicant Bid Bond Documents
o Applicant Technical Proposal Documents
® Applicant Commercial Proposal Documents

The Applicant will be notified through automated email that their files were successfully
uploaded. The LPA will confirm to the Applicant when files have been successfully
downloaded by the LPA (date/time/size).

Before the licensing round submission deadline, the Applicant shall provide the LPA by email
with required passwords to unlock the Cover Letter, Checklists, and Sealed Envelope & Pre-
Qualification Documents.

The Pre-Qualification Documents will then be evaluated by the LPA.

Following the evaluation of the Pre-Qualification documents the Minister of Energy and
Water announces the Pre-Qualified individual companies and Consortia by a decision.

Post announcement of the Pre-qualification results, the LPA requests from Applicant’s
Authorized Representative the passwords for the EPA Application documents submitted as
part of their EPA Application.
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EXHIBIT 10 — ¥+ cdall
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CHECKLIST OF REQUIRED DOCUMENTS FOR ONLINE SUBMISSION AND RELATED INFORMATION

PRE-QUALIFICATION APPLICATION DOCUMENTS

Ex. Administrative Materials Submission Notarized®
Format*
3A Application Form (Exhibit 3A) S No

3C Power of Attorney of Authorized Representative (Exhibit
3C) S Yes
{from each Individual Company comprising the Applicant)

N/A | Copy of any cooperatlon agreements between the

N
Individual Companles comprising the Applicant s i
N/A | Proof of payment of the Retrieval Fee S No
N/A | Parent company guarantee {Annex E to the Model EPA)
(applicable for Individual Companies seeking pre- s No

qualification based wholly or partly on credentials of
parent company per Article 19.1 of this Tender Protocol)

PRE-QUALIFICATION MATERIALS FOR [INSERT NAME OF INDIVIDUAL COMPANY]
[(DESIGNATED OPERATOR)] [NON-OPERATOR]

A Exhibit 3D - Schedule A — Legal Criterla & Required | Submisslo | Notarized®
Documents n Format®

1 Evidence of authority of persons signing Power of

Attorney ves

2 An official copy of the constituent documents (as
applicable by the jurlsdiction): Certificate of
Incorporation, Memorandum of Associatlon, Articles of
Incorporation, etc.

No

3 Extract of commercial registry showing specifled
information regarding the Individual Company OR
notarized, signed statement from the company secretary
or similar offlcer providing such information

No

4 If not submitted in 3, document from a governmental or s
official entity showing that the Individual Company is in No
good standing in its jurisdiction of incorporation

5 If not submitted in 3, document from a governmental or
official entity showing that the Individual Company is not
being liquldated and is not in insolvency proceedings OR No
notarized, sighed statement from the company secretary
or similar officer providing such information

6 Partner(s) or Shareholder(s) (more than 20%) details. If
not ultimate parent, organization chart showing chain of No
ownership
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A Exhibit 3D - Schedule A — Legal Criterla & Required | Submisslo | Notarized® i
Documents Ry
7 Signed statement from the general counsel or simllar
officer that there are no pending material litigation, No
arbitration, legal proceedings
B Exhibit 3D - Schedule B - Financlal Criterla and Required | Submission | Notarized®
Documents & Disclosures format
1 Proof for meeting eligibility criteria
Audited consolidated financial statements for the last 3 years
3 Auditor’s or auditors’ report(s) referencing the financlal
statements for the last 3 years
4 Reference from a reputable bank or financial institution
5 Present and historical (prior three (3) years’) credit rating
6 Description of the material lines of credit, credit agreements, s
publicly traded debt securities, off-balance sheet liabilities
and guarantees of third party obligations
7 Details of any medium-term plans and/or material
contingent liabilities
8 A statement describing any material changes in any of the
information set forth above, since the date as of which such
information was prepared
9 Any additional information regarding financial capacity
c Exhibit 3D - Schedule C - Technical Criteria and Required | Submission | Notarized®
Documents & Disclosures Forgat®
1 Proof for meeting eligibility criteria N
S o
2 Technical data required
D Exhibit 3D - Schedule D — QHSE Criteria and Required | Submission | Notarized®
Documents & Disclosures format
1 Description of the Quality, Health, Safety and Environment
Management System(s)
2 Evidence of established and implemented QHSE
Management System (s)
3 QHSE performance records for the previous five (5) years S No
4 Copy of CSR reports or initiatives for the past five (S) years
5 Experience of Operator in environmentally sensitive areas
6 Commitment of company to QHSE through membership and

affiliations with international initiatives

EPA APPLICATION DOCUMENTS
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Ex. Submission
Format®

Bid Bond

4 | BidBond (Exhibit 4) | sahe |
Proposal

5 Technical Proposal Form {Exhibit 5) S

6 Technlcal Report (inline with Exhlbit 6) S

7 Commercial Proposal Form (Exhibit 7) S
Miscellaneous
Any additional information that may be useful (see s
Article 9.16 of the Tender Protocol)
a S: Soft Copy as specified In Annex 9 of this Tender Protocol
b Approved by a Notary Public
4 H: Hard Copy of Orlginal Bld 8ond

s to i

1 - Applicants should include a separate checklist indicating the pre-qualification materials submitted
by each Individual Company comprising the Applicant in response to the requirements of Schedules A,
B, Cand D to Exhibit 3D of this Tender Protocol.

2 - Formalized documents as specified in Exhibit 3B of this Tender Protocol Issued shall be submitted
within Seven (7) weeks from the Deadline for submission of Licensing Round Applications or within the
extended period as per Article 9.9 (f) of this Tender Protocol

3 - The original Bid Bond shall be submitted to the Minister of Energy and Water or to the Lebanese
Petroleum Administration by hand or by certified mail within Seven (7) working days from the
announcement of Prequalification Results by the Minister as per Article

9.9 (i) of this Tender Protocol.
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